


Company Profile

Standard Parking is leading national provider of parking facility management services

providing on-site management services at multi-level and surface parking facilities for

all major markets of the parking industry The Company manages parking facilities

containing more than one million parking spaces in hundreds of cities across the United

States and Canada

The Companys diversified client base includes some of the nations largest private and

public owners managers and developers of major office buildings residential properties

commercial properties shopping centers and other retail properties sports and special

event complexes hotels and hospitals and medical centers In the airport market the

Company manages parking shuttle bus and ground transportation operations serving

airports throughout the United States and Canada

The Company also provides an array of related ancillary services to its clients such as

valet parking services at both urban and airport locations as well as on-street parking

enforcement and meter collection services for municipal clients

2008 HghIights

Earnings per share of $1.07 Free cash flow per share of $1.2

Completed two strategic acquisitions Completed $60 million stock repurchase
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Seected Financas In Thousands

2008 2007 2006

Revenue

Lease contracts 154311 145327 153336

Management contracts 145828 119612 106554

300139 264939 259890

Reimbursed

management contract expense 400621 356782 346055

Total Revenue 700760 621721 605945

Gross Profit 90796 85663 75857

General administrative expense 47619 44796 41228

of gross profit 52.4% 52.3% 54.3%

Operating income 37118 35532 28991

Pre-tax income 30667 28640 20871

Net income $19045 $17373 35751

Total assets 229241 $215388 $212528

80363Total debt $125064 85665



Standard Parking

To Our Shareholders

We are pleased to present this report of our 2008 activity Our Companys solid performance under

the preyailing economic conditions reflects well on the disciplined business model weve designed

with the goal of achieving steady predictable growth

Key 2008 metric highlights include

Earnings per share of $1 .07 19% increase over 2007

Free cash flow of $22.2 million

Total revenue of $300 million an increase of 13% over 2007

revenue figures exclude reimbursed management contract expense

Gross profit and operating income growth of 6% and 4% respectively

An increase in total number of locations to 2215 up 4% from 2007

The completion of two strategic acquisitions in existing core markets

During 2008 the Company completed common stock repurchases of $60 million In addition

we were pleased to sign an amended and restated senior credit agreement that increased the

Companys total credit facility by $75 million to $210 million and extended the facilitys maturity

to July of 2013

Throughout 2008 the Company continued to invest for the future with the development and

recruiting of experienced and talented human resources to strengthen our transportation

maintenance municipal and security product offerings thus augmenting the core parking

management services we offer our clients In addition we increased our talent base in the hotel

residential and retail markets in order to enhance our depth across the full range of parking

markets which includes dedicated Airport Division that in 2008 was awarded contracts to operate

the parking at several U.S airports including Denver International and Richmond International

We continue to invest in technology as key underpinning for future growth Our implementation

of an automated workforce time attendance and management system is nearing completion

Implementation of company-wide electronic procurement system is scheduled to begin in 2009

and development of new monthly parker billing system continues to progress Collectively

implementation of these initiatives will result in improved back office processes capable of supporting

growing business and ultimately lowering our general and administrative expenses as percentage

of gross profit

As public company we adhere to accounting internal control and reporting standards that are

more rigorous than those typically followed by our non-public competitors We are pleased to

report that in 2008 for the fourth consecutive year we have determined that our internal controls

over financial reporting are effective and without material weaknesses Our independent auditor



Standard Parking

Ernst Young LLP completed its evaluation and testing of our internal controls over financial

reporting and issued an unqualified opinion

We view 2009 with guarded optimism confident that our management contract culture geographic

diversity and lack of dependency upon single market type or dominant client will help us

withstand the economic downturn that began in 2008 and continues in 2009 Looking beyond the

nonrecurring events that the Company experienced in 2008 we expect the business to continue to

grow on an organic basis in 2009 albeit at slower pace than usual due to anticipated declines in

volume Nevertheless we see solid
opportunity for the Company and its shareholders in 2009 in

the form of an active and expanding market place the further development of additional service

offerings to our client base and improvement in our operating efficiencies and margins due to our

technology upgrades

Thank you again for your partnership with us as shareholders

Jame ilhelm

Presiden Chief Executive Officer

Holten

Chairman of the Board



Stock Performance Graph

The performance graph below shows the cumulative total stockholder return of our common stock

for the period starting on May 27 2004 which was the initial trading date of the common stock to

December 31 2008 This performance is compared with the cumulative total returns over the same

period of the Standard Poors 500 Index and the Standard Poors SmailCap 600 Commercial and

Professional Services Index previously called the SmallCap 600 Commercial Services and Supplies

Index which includes our direct competitor ABM Industries Incorporated The graph assumes that

on May 27 2004 $100 was invested in our common stock and $100 was invested in each of the

other two indices and assumes reinvestment of dividends The stock performance shown in the

graph represents past performance and should not be considered an indication of future performance

Company Index 5/27/04 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08

Standard Parking corporation sioo.oo $127.62 $162.98

SP500lndex $100.00 $109.22 $114.58

SP Smallcap 600 $100.00 $113.26 $121.68

commercial Professional Services

$319.55 $403.41 $321.80

$132.68 $139.97 $88.18

$143.10 $133.96 $104.14
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Act Yes LII No IIII
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Act Yes LII No
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90 days Yes jJ No LII

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
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SPECIAL CAUTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These statements relate to analyses and other information that are based on

forecasts of future results and estimates of amounts not yet determinable These statements also relate to our

future prospects developments and business strategies The statements contained in this Form 10-K that are

not statements of historical fact may include forward-looking statements that involve number of risks and

uncertainties

We have used the words anticipate believe could estimate expect intend may
plan predict project will and similar terms and phrases including references to assumptions in

this Form 10-K to identify forward-looking statements These forward looking statements are made based on

our managements expectations and beliefs concerning future events affecting us and are subject to

uncertainties and factors relating to our operations and business environment all of which qre difficult to

predict and many of which are beyond our control These uncertainties and factors could cause our actual

results to differ materially from those matters expressed in or implied by these forward-looking statements

The following factors are among those that may cause actual results to differ materially from our forward-

looking statements

the financial difficulties or bankruptcy of our major clients including the impact on our ability to

collect receivables

availability terms and deployment of capital

potential impact on the market price of our common stock from the sale or offer of substantial

amount of our common stock by our majority shareholder and the ability of our majority

shareholder to control our major corporate decisions

potential for change of control default under our credit agreement if an unaffiliated person obtains

majority of our common stock

the loss or renewal on less favorable terms of management contracts and leases

our ability to renew our insurance policies on acceptable terms the extent to which our clients

choose to obtain insurance coverage through us and our ability to successfully manage self-insured

losses

the impact of public and private regulations

our ability to form and maintain relationships with large real estate owners managers and

developers

integration of acquisitions in light of challenges in retaining key employees synchronizing business

processes and efficiently integrating facilities marketing and operations

the ability to obtain performance bonds on acceptable terms to guarantee our performance under

certain contracts

extraordinaiy events affecting parking at facilities that we manage including emergency safety

measures militaiy or terrorist attacks and natural disasters

changes in federal and state regulations including those affecting airports parking lots at airports or

automobile use



the loss of key employees

development of new competitive parking-related services

changes in general economic and business conditions or demographic trends and

the other factors discussed under Item 1A Risk Factors and Item Managements Discussion

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and elsewhere in this Form 10-K

All of our forward-looking statements should be considered in light of these factors We undertake

no obligation to update our forward-looking statements or risk factors to reflect new information

future events or otherwise except as may be required under applicable securities laws and regulations

NOTE

On December 2007 our board of directors declared 2-for-i stock split in the form of 100%
common stock dividend to stockholders of record as of the close of business on January 2008 which

was distributed on January 17 2008 All share and per share data included in this Form iO-K have

been adjusted to reflect this stock split



PART

ITEM BUSINESS

General

We are leading national provider of parking facility management services We provide on-site

management services at multi-level and surface parking facilities for all major markets of the parking

industry We manage approximately 2200 locations containing over one million parking spaces in over

330 cities across the United States and Canada Our diversified client base includes some of the

nations largest private and public owners managers and developers of major office buildings

residential properties commercial properties shopping centers and other retail properties sports and

special event complexes hotels and hospitals and medical centers including properties such as the

MET Life Building in New York the Four Seasons Hotel in Chicago Harvard Medical School in

Boston Nationwide Arena in Columbus Westfield Shoppingtown Century City in Los Angeles and

Greenway Plaza in Houston In addition we manage 133 parking-related and shuttle bus operations

serving 63 airports including Chicago OHare International Airport Cleveland Hopkins International

Airport and Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport

Since entering the parking business in 1929 we have focused on providing our clients with superior

management services to attract customers We believe that our management services coupled with

leading position in our core markets help to maximize profitability per parking facility for both us and

our clients We believe that we have created our leading position by providing

Ambiance in Parking an approach to parking that includes on-site value-added services and

amenities

service enhancing information technology including Client ViewTM proprietary client reporting

system that allows us to provide our clients with on-line access to site-level financial and

operating information

comprehensive training programs for on-site employees including our web-based Standard

UniversitySM training programs that promote customer service and client retention and

an internal audit and contract compliance group to monitor cash and operational controls

Moreover as public company subject to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act we adhere to accounting internal control and reporting standards that are

more rigorous than those typically followed by our non-public competitors

We believe that these factors distinguish us from our competitors and contribute to our high

location retention rate which averaged 89% for the year ended December 31 2008 which statistic

includes the impact of our decision to exit from unprofitable contracts

We do not own any parking facilities and as result we assume few of the risks of real estate

ownership We
operate our clients parking properties through two types of arrangements management

contracts and leases Under management contract we typically receive base monthly fee for

managing the facility and we may also receive an incentive fee based on the achievement of facility

performance objectives We also receive fees for ancillary services Typically all of the underlying

revenues and expenses under standard management contract flow through to our client rather than to

us Under lease arrangements we generally pay either fixed annual rent percentage of gross

customer collections or combination thereof to the property owner We collect all revenues under

lease arrangements and we are responsible for most operating expenses but we are typically not

responsible for major maintenance capital expenditures or real estate taxes As of December 31 2008
we operated 90% of our locations under management contracts and 10% under leases



We also provide range of ancillary services to satisfy client needs such as municipal meter
collection and valet parking

Industry Overview

General

The commercial parking industry comprises large number of
participants The vast majority of

firms are privately held companies consisting of
relatively few nationwide companies and hundreds of

small regional or local operators including substantial number of companies that provide parking as
an ancillary service in connection with property management or ownership The parking industry from
time to time experiences consolidation as smaller operators find that

they lack the financial resources
economies of scale and management techniques required to compete with larger providers We expect
this trend will continue and provide larger parking management companies with opportunities to win
business and acquire smaller operators

Operating Arrangements

Parking facilities operate under three general types of arrangements management contracts leases
and ownership The general terms and benefits of these three types of arrangements are as follows

Management Contracts Under management contract the facility operator generally receives

base monthly fee for managing the facility and may receive an incentive fee based on the achievement
of facility performance objectives Facility operators generally charge fees for various ancillary services

such as accounting equipment leasing and consulting Responsibilities under management contract
include hiring training and staffing parking personnel and providing revenue collection accounting
record-keeping insurance and facility marketing services In general under management contract the

facility operator is not responsible for structural or mechanical repairs and typically is not responsible
for providing security or guard services Under typical management contracts the facility owner is

responsible for operating expenses such as taxes license and permit fees insurance premiums payroll
and accounts receivable processing and wages of personnel assigned to the facility However some
management contracts which are referred to as reverse management contracts usually provide for

larger management fees and require the facility operator to pay certain of these costs Generally under

management contracts the facility owner is responsible for non-routine maintenance repair costs and

capital improvements Management contracts are typically for term of one to three years though the

client often reserves the right to terminate without cause on 30 days notice and may contain

renewal clause

Leases Under lease arrangement the parking facility operator generally pays to the property
owner either fixed annual rent percentage of facility revenues or combination thereof The
parking facility operator collects all revenues and is responsible for most operating expenses but is

typically not responsible for major maintenance capital expenditures or real estate taxes In contrast to

management contracts leases are typically for terms of three to ten years often contain renewal

term and provide for fixed payment to the facility owner regardless of the facilitys operating

earnings However many of these leases may be cancelled by the client for various reasons including

development of the real estate for other uses Some are cancelable by the client on as little as 30 days
notice without cause Leased facilities generally require longer commitment and larger capital
investment by the parking facility operator than do managed facilities

Ownership Ownership of parking facilities either independently or through joint ventures

typically requires larger capital investment and greater potential risks and rewards than managed or
leased facilities All owned facility revenues flow directly to the owner and the owner has the potential
to realize benefits of appreciation in the value of the underlying real estate The owner of parking



facility is responsible for all obligations related to the property including all structural mechanical and

electrical maintenance and repairs and property taxes Due to the high cost of real estate in many
major urban markets ownership of parking facilities usually requires large capital investments Standard

Parking does not own any parking facilities

Industry Growth Dynamics

number of opportunities for growth exist for larger parking facility operators including the

following

Growth of Large Properly Managers Owners and Developers Over the past several years there has

been substantial increase in the number of national property managers owners and developers with

multiple locations Sophisticated property owners consider parking profit center that experienced

parking facility management companies can maximize This dynamic favors larger parking facility

operators that can provide specialized value-added professional services with nationwide coverage In

order to streamline their business many of these large national property managers owners and

developers have reduced the number of suppliers with which they conduct business

Increased Outsourcing of Parking Management and Related Services Growth in the parking

management industry has resulted from continuing trend by parking facility owners to outsource the

management of their parking and related operations to independent operators We believe that entities

such as large property management managers owners and developers as well as cities municipal

authorities hospitals and universities will increasingly retain parking management companies to operate

facilities and provide related services in an effort to focus on their core competencies reduce operating

budgets and increase profitability and efficiency We believe this trend is expanding to include

outsourcing of shuttle bus operations municipal meter collection and valet parking

Industiy Consolidation The parking management industry is highly fragmented with hundreds of

small regional or local operators We believe national parking facility operators have competitive

advantage over local and regional operators by reason of their

broad product and service offerings

deeper and more experienced management

relationships with large national property managers developers and owners

efficient cost structure due to economies of scale and

financial resources to invest in infrastructure and information systems

Services

As professional parking management company we provide comprehensive turn-key package of

parking services to our clients Under typical management contract structure we are responsible for

providing and supervising all personnel necessary to facilitate daily parking operations including

cashiers porters valet attendants managers bookkeepers and variety of maintenance marketing

customer service and accounting and revenue control functions By way of example our typical

day-to-day operating duties whether performed using our own personnel or subcontracted vendors

include

Collection and deposit of daily and monthly parking revenues from all parking customers

Daily housekeeping to maintain the facility in clean and orderly manner

Restriping of the parking stalls as necessary



Routine maintenance of parking equipment e.g ticket dispensing machines parking gate arms
fee computers

Marketing efforts designed to maximize gross parking revenues

Delivery of courteous and professional customer relations

Painting of walkways curbs ceilings walls or other facility surfaces

Snow removal from sidewalks and driveways

The scope of our management services typically also includes number of functions that support

the basic daily facility operations such as

Preparation of an annual operating budget reflecting our estimates of the annual gross parking

revenues that the facility will generate from its parking customers as well as the costs and

expenses to be incurred in connection with the facilitys operation

Evaluation and analysis of and consultation with our clients with respect to price structures that

will optimize our clients revenue objectives

Consultation with our clients regarding which of our customer amenities are appropriate and/or

desirable for implementation at the clients parking facility

Implementation of wide range of operational and revenue control processes and procedures

including internal audit procedures designed to maximize and protect the facilitys parking

revenues Compliance with our mandated processes and procedures is supervised by dedicated

internal audit and contract compliance groups

Consultation with our clients regarding any recommended modifications in facility design or

traffic flow or the installation of new or updated parking equipment designed both to enhance

the ease and convenience of the parking experience for the parking customers and to maximize

facility profitability

Monthly reporting to our clients regarding the facilitys operating results For those clients who

wish to directly access their financial reporting information on-line we offer the use of our

proprietary Client ViewSM client reporting system which provides on-line access to site-level

financial and operating information

Ancillary Services

Beyond the conventional parking facility management services described above we also offer an

expanded range of ancillary services For example

At various airports throughout the United States we provide shuttle bus vehicles and the drivers

to operate them in support of on-airport car rental operations as well as private off-airport

parking locations

At certain airports we provide ancillary ground transportation services such as taxi and livery

dispatch services as well as concierge-type ground transportation information and support

services for arriving passengers

For municipalities we provide basic shuttle bus services on-street parking meter collection and

other forms of parking enforcement services

Within the medical center and hospital market we provide valet parking and shuttle bus

services



Amenities and Customer Service Programs

We offer comprehensive package of amenity and customer service programs branded as

Ambiance in Parking that can be provided to our customers many at nominal or no cost to the client

These programs not only make the parking experience more enjoyable but also convey sense of the

clients sensitivity to and appreciation of the needs of its parking customers In doing so we believe the

programs serve to enhance the value of the parking properties themselves

Musical Theme Floor Reminder System Our musical theme floor reminder system is designed to

help customers remember the garage level on which they parked different song is played on each

floor of the parking garage Each floor also displays distinctive signage and graphics that correspond
with the floors theme For example in one parking facility with U.S colleges as theme different

college logo is displayed and that colleges specific fight song is heard on each parking level Other

parking facilities have themes such as famous recording artists musical instruments and professional

sports teams

Books-To-Go CD Libray Monthly customers can borrowfree of chargeaudio CD to which

they can listen as they drive to and from work wide selection of fiction non-fiction and business

titles is maintained in the facility office

Films-To-Go DVD Library This amenity builds on the success of our popular Books-To-Go

program DVDs of many popular movie titles are stocked in the parking facility office and made
available free of charge to monthly customers The movie selections are updated on regular basis

Little Parkers Child-Friendly Facilities This amenity creates family atmosphere at the parking

facility Customers may use baby changing stations installed in the public restrooms Kids
appreciate

the distribution of free toys such as bubble bottles coloring books and stuffed animals

Complimentay Driver Assistance Services Parking facility attendants provide wide range of

complimentary services to customers with car problems Assistance can include charging weak batteries

inflating/changing tires cleaning windshields and
refilling windshield washer fluid Attendants also can

help customers locate their vehicles and escort them to their cars

Standard Equipment Technology Upgrade Program Services SETUP Standard Parking

provides clients with complete turnkey solution to managing all phases of new equipment projects

from initial design to installation to ongoing maintenance Our design team will suggest complete
solution intended to return to our cients the greatest value for their investment based upon
consideration of wide array of choices as to both equipment such as Pay-On-Foot Automated
Vehicle Identification and Automated Credit/Debit Card machine technology and services

procurement project management installation and maintenance

Standard Road Assist Emergency Services Parking customers experiencing vehicle problems

beyond weak batteries and low tire pressure call our toll-free number to receive on
pay-per-use basis

basic package of emergency services including towing up to five miles jump starting flat tire

changing fuel delivery extracting vehicle from the side of the road and lock-out service The

emergency services are provided at the parking facility or anywhere on the road

CarCare Maintenance Services car service vendor will pick-up customers car from the

parking facility contact the customer with an estimate service the car during normal working hours

and return it to the facility before the end of the business day

ParkNet Traffic Information System The system provides customers with continuously updated
traffic reports on site-specific basis so that drivers can learn not only about traffic conditions on the

area highways but also about conditions in the immediate vicinity of the parking facility



Automated Teller Machines On-site ATM machines provide customers access to cash from

bankcards and credit cards We arrange for the installation of the machine operated and maintained by

an outside vendor The parking facility realizes supplemental income from fixed monthly rent and

share of usage transaction fees

Complimentaiy Courtesy Umbrellas and Flashlights Courtesy umbrellas are loaned to customers on

rainy days similar lending program can be implemented to provide flashlights in emergency

situations or power outages

Complimentaiy Services/Customer Appreciation Days Our clients select from variety of

complimentary services that we provide as special way of saying thank you to our parking

customers Depending on client preferences coffee donuts and/or newspapers occasionally are

provided to customers during the morning rush hour On certain holidays candy with wrappers that

can be customized with the facility logo can be distributed to customers as they exit We also can

distribute personalized promotional items such as ice
scrapers

and key-chains

Business Development

Our efforts to attract new clients are primarily concentrated in and coordinated by dedicated

business development group whose background and expertise is in the field of sales and marketing

and whose financial compensation is determined to significant extent by their business development

success This business development group is responsible for forecasting sales maintaining pipeline of

prospective and existing clients initiating contacts with such clients and then following through to

coordinate meetings involving those clients and the appropriate members of our operations hierarchy

By concentrating our sales efforts through this dedicated group we enable our operations personnel to

focus on achieving excellence in our parking facility operations and maximizing our clients parking

profits and our own profitability

We also place specific focus on marketing and client relationship efforts that pertain to those

clients having large regional or national presence Accordingly we assign dedicated executive to

those clients to address any existing portfolio issues as well as to reinforce existingand develop

newaccount relationships and to take any other action that may further our business development

interests

Operations

We maintain regional and city offices throughout the United States and Canada in order to

support approximately 13320 employees and approximately 2200 locations These offices serve as the

central bases through which we provide the employees to staff our parking facilities as well as the

on-site and support management staff to oversee those operations Our administrative staff accountants

are based in those same offices and facilitate the efficient accurate and timely production and delivery

to our clients of our monthly reports Having these all-inclusive operations and accounting teams

located in regional and city offices throughout the United States and Canada allows us to add new

locations quickly and in cost-efficient manner To facilitate the training of our facility personnel

throughout the country we have created Standard Universiysm the foundation of all our formal training

programs that span wide range of topics including soft skills technology software leadership skills

and operating procedures Courses are deployed using multitude of methods including classroom

sessions web-based sessions and self-managed computer-based training Standard University8m is

available to our employees on 24/7 basis so they may access training and information when they need

it

Our overall basic corporate functions in the areas of finance human resources risk management

legal purchasing and procurement general administration strategy and information and technology are

based in our Chicago corporate office The Chicago corporate office also supports and promotes
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consistency throughout our field
operations by developing and administering our operational financial

and administrative policies practices and procedures

Clients and Properties

Our client base includes diverse cross-section of public and private owners developers and

managers of real estate list of some of our clients and the types of properties for which we operate
their parking include

Client Property Property lype

American Museum of Natural History Museum
Brookfield Properties Ltd Office

Chicago OHare International and Chicago Midway

Airports Airport
The Cleveland Clinic Foundations Medical center

Crescent Real Estate Equities Company Office

Four Seasons Hotel Hotel

Hartford Bradley International Airport Airport

Harvard Medical School
University/Medical

JMB Realty Corporation Office

JPMorgan Chase Bank NA Retail

Nationwide Realty Investors Ltd Office and Special event

Westfield Properties Shoppingtowns Retail

No single client represented more than 6.3% of revenues or more than 4.8% of our gross profit

for the year ended December 31 2008 For the
years ended December 31 2008 and December 31

2007 we retained an average of 89% and 91% respectively of our locations which statistic includes

the impact of our decision to exit from unprofitable contracts

Information Technology

We believe that automation and technology can enhance customer convenience lower labor costs

improve cash management and increase overall profitability We have been leader in the field of

introducing automation and technology to the parking business and we were among the first to adopt
electronic fund transfer EFT payment options pay-on-foot ATM technology and bar code decal

technology

To promote internal efficiency we have created advanced information systems that connect local

offices across the country to our corporate headquarters These systems support accounting financial

management and reporting practices general operating procedures training employment policies cash

controls and marketing procedures Our commitment to the application of technology in the parking

management business has resulted in the creation of proprietary product Client View Client ViewTM

is an Internet-based system that gives our clients the flexibility and convenience to access and download

their monthly financials and detailed back-up reports We believe that our standardized processes and

controls enhance our ability to successfully add new locations and expand our operations into new
markets

Employees

As of December 31 2008 we employed approximately 13320 individuals including approximately
7690 full-time and 5630 part-time employees As of December 31 2007 we employed approximately
12600 individuals including approximately 7060 full-time and 5540 part-time employees

Approximately 24% of our employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements No single
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collective bargaining agreement covers material number of employees We believe that our employee

relations are good

Insurance

We purchase comprehensive liability insurance covering certain claims that occur at parking

facilities we lease or manage The primary amount of such coverage is $2.0 million per occurrence and

$2.0 million in the aggregate per facility for our garage liability and garage keepers legal liability

coverages In addition we purchase workers compensation insurance for all eligible employees and

umbrella/excess liability coverage Under our various liability and workers compensation insurance

policies we are obligated to reimburse the insurance carrier for the first $250000 of any loss As

result we are in effect self-insured for all claims up to that deductible level We utilize third-party

administrator to process and pay claims We also purchase property insurance that provides coverage

for loss or damage to our property and in some cases our clients property as well as business

interruption coverage for lost operating income and certain associated expenses The deductible

applicable to any given loss under our property insurance policy varies based upon the insured values

and the peril that causes the loss We also purchase group health insurance with respect to eligible

full-time employees and family members whether such employees work at leased or managed facilities

and are fully-insured for all covered expenses We believe that our insurance coverage is adequate and

consistent with industry practice

Because of the size of the operations covered and our claims experience we purchase insurance

policies at prices that we believe represent
discount to the prices that would typically be charged to

parking facility owners on stand-alone basis The clients for whom we operate parking facilities

pursuant to management contracts have the option of purchasing their own liability insurance policies

provided that we are named as an additional insured pursuant to an additional insured endorsement

but historically most of our clients have chosen to obtain insurance coverage by being named as

additional insureds under our master liability insurance policies Pursuant to our management contracts

we charge to such clients an allocated portion of our insurance-related costs at rates that we believe are

competitive material reduction or increase in the number of clients who obtain their insurance

coverage by being named as additional insureds under our liability policies could have material effect

on our operating income In addition material change in insurance costs due to change in the

number or severity of claims or an increase in claims costs or premiums paid by us could have

material effect on our operating income

Competition

The parking industry is fragmented and highly competitive with limited barriers to entry We face

direct competition for additional facilities to manage or lease while our facilities themselves compete

with nearby facilities for our parking customers and in the labor market generally for qualified

employees Moreover the construction of new parking facilities near our existing facilities can adversely

affect our business There are only few national parking management companies that compete with

us We also face competition from numerous smaller locally owned independent parking operators as

well as from developers hotels national financial services companies and other institutions that manage

their own parking facilities as well as facilities owned by others Many municipalities and other

governmental entities also operate their own parking facilities potentially eliminating those facilities as

management or lease opportunities for us Some of our present and potential competitors have or may

obtain greater financial and marketing resources than us which may negatively impact our ability to

retain existing contracts and gain new contracts We face significant competition in our efforts to

provide ancillary services such as shuttle bus services and on-street parking enforcement because

several large companies specialize in these services
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Seasonality

During the first quarter of each year seasonality impacts our performance with regard to

moderating revenues with the reduced levels of travel most clearly reflected in the parking activity

associated with our airport and hotel businesses as well as increases in certain costs of parking services

such as snow removal both of which negatively affect gross profit Although our revenues and

profitability are affected by the seasonality of the business general and administrative costs are

relatively stable throughout the fiscal year See Item Selected Financial Data for further

information

Regulation

Regulatiors by the Federal Aviation Administration may affect our business The FAA generally

prohibits parking within 300 feet of airport terminals during times of heightened alert The 300 foot

rule and new regulations may prevent us from using number of existing spaces during heightened

security alerts at airports Reductions in the number of parking spaces may reduce our gross profit and

cash flow for both our leased facilities and those facilities we operate under management contracts

Our business is not otherwise substantially affected by direct governmental regulation although
both municipal and state authorities sometimes directly regulate parking facilities We are affected by
laws and regulations such as zoning ordinances that are common to any business that deals with real

estate and by regulations such as labor and tax laws that affect companies with large number of

employees In addition several state and local laws have been passed in recent years that encourage car

pooling and the use of mass transit Laws and regulations that reduce the number of cars and vehicles

being driven could adversely impact our business

We collect and remit sales/parking taxes and file tax returns for and on behalf of ourselves and our
clients We are affected by laws and regulations that may impose direct assessment on us for failure

to remit sales/parking taxes or to file tax returns for ourselves and on behalf of our clients

Under various federal state and local environmental laws ordinances and regulations current or

previous owner or operator of real property may be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of

hazardous or toxic substances on under or in such property Such laws typically impose liability without

regard to whether the owner or operator knew of or was responsible for the presence of such

hazardous or toxic substances In connection with the operation of parking facilities we may be

potentially liable for any such costs In addition from time to time we are involved in environmental

issues at certain of our locations or in connection with our operations While it is difficult to predict
the ultimate outcome of any of these matters based on information currently available management
believes that none of these matters individually or in the aggregate are reasonably likely to have

material adverse effect on our financial position results of operations or cash flows The cost of

defending against claims of liability or of remediating contaminated property could have material

adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations

Various other governmental regulations affect our operation of parking facilities both directly and

indirectly including the ADA Under the ADA all public accommodations including parking facilities

are required to meet certain federal requirements related to access and use by disabled persons For

example the ADA requires parking facilities to include handicapped spaces headroom for wheelchair

vans attendants booths that accommodate wheelchairs and elevators that are operable by disabled

persons When negotiating management contracts and leases with clients we generally require that the

property owner contractually assume responsibility for any ADA liability in connection with the

property There can be no assurance however that the property owner has assumed such liability for

any given property and there can be no assurance that we would not be held liable despite assumption
of responsibility for such liability by the property owner Management believes that the parking
facilities we operate are in substantial compliance with ADA requirements
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Available Information

Our Internet address is www.standardparking.com There we make available free of charge our

annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-0 current reports on Form 8-K and any

amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material

with or furnish it to the SEC Our SEC reports can be accessed through the investor relations section

of our website The information found on our website is not part of this or any other report we file

with or furnish to the SEC

Intellectual Property

Standard Parking and the Standard Parking logo are service marks registered with the United

States Patent and Trademark Office In addition we have registered the names and as applicable the

logos of all of our material subsidiaries and divisions as service marks with the United States Patent

and Trademark Office or the equivalent state registry including the right to the exclusive use of the

name Central Park in the Chicago metropolitan area We invented the Multi-Level Vehicle Parking

Facility musical Theme Floor Reminder System and obtained trademark registrations for our

proprietary parker programs such as BookstoGo FilmsToGo Little Parkers and Ambiance in

Parking and our comprehensive training program Standard Universitysm We have also registered the

copyright rights in our proprietary software such as Client TM Hand Held ProgramTM License Plate

Inventoiy ograms and ParkStatTM with the United States Copyright Office

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following specific risk factors as well as other information

contained or incorporated by reference in this report as these among others are important factors

that could cause our actual results to differ from our historical results It is not possible to predict or

identify all such factors Consequently you should not consider any such list to be complete

statement of all potential risks or uncertainties applicable to our business

Adverse economic trends and turmoil in the credit markets and the financial services industry may reduce

demand for our services lower our earnings and harm our operations

Recently the credit markets and the financial services industry have been experiencing period of

unprecedented turmoil and upheaval characterized by the bankruptcy failure collapse or sale of

various financial institutions and an unprecedented level of intervention from the United States

government While the ultimate outcome of these events cannot be predicted they may have material

adverse effect on us and our costs of borrowing These events could also adversely impact the

availability of financing to our clients and therefore our ability to collect amounts due from them or

cause such clients to terminate their contracts with us completely

The financial djfficullies or bankruptcy of one or more of our major clients could adversely affect results

Future revenues and our ability to collect accounts receivable depend in part on the financial

strength of our clients We estimate an allowance for accounts we do not consider collectible and this

allowance adversely impacts profitability In the event our clients experience financial difficulty and

particularly if bankruptcy results profitability is further impacted by our failure to collect accounts

receivable in excess of the estimated allowance Additionally our future revenues would be reduced by

the loss of these clients
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Our working capital and liquidity may be adversely affected if significant number of our clients require us

to deposit all parking revenues into their respective accounts

We frequently contract with clients to hold parking revenues in our account and remit the

revenues minus the operating expenses and our fee to our clients at the end of the month Some
clients however require us to deposit parking revenues in their accounts on daily basis This type of

arrangement requires us to pay costs as they are incurred and receive reimbursement and our

management fee after the end of the month There can be no assurance that significant number of

clients will not switch to the practice of requiring us to deposit all parking revenues into their

respective accounts which would have material adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition

The offer or sale of substantial amount of our common stock by our controlling shareholder could have an
adverse impact on the market price of our common stock

In February 2009 we were informed by Steamboat Industries LLC that it intends to sell majority

and potentially all or substantially all of its stake in the Company Steamboat which is controlled by
our chairman John Holten and which currently controls majority of the voting power of our

common stock intends that such sale occur through one or more public or private transactions

Steamboat has informed the Company that it plans to sell such shares in order to raise sufficient

proceeds to repay loan of approximately $110 million that it currently has with third-party lenders
which loan matures in the second quarter of 2009 and is secured by pledge of all of Steamboats

common stock in the Company We understand the loan agreements provide that if Steamboat is not

able to repay the loan in full on or before the maturity date due to market conditions or otherwise
then the lenders will take any remaining shares in full satisfaction of the loan We can provide no

assurance as to the number of shares of the Companys common stock that will be sold or transferred

by Steamboat or the manner timing or other terms of such sale or transfer

Steamboat Industries LLC is permitted to sell dispose of or otherwise enter into other

transactions involving significant amounts of our common stock under Rule 144 and other exemptions
from

registration under the federal securities laws Steamboat Industries LLC also has transferable

registration rights with respect to such common stock which will be assigned to its lenders in the event

of foreclosure The offer sale disposition or consummation of other such transactions involving

substantial amounts of our common stock by these or other significant shareholders could have

significant negative impact on our stock price particularly if such offers sales dispositions or

transactions occur simultaneously or relatively close in time

If person or group unaffihiated with our parent company acquires majority of our common stock

change of control default could be triggered under our credit facility which would adversely impact our

liquidity capital resources and business operations

Our parent company Steamboat Industries LLC which is controlled by our chairman John

Holten owns 50.3% of our outstanding common stock as of March 2009 Steamboat has pledged all

of its Company common stock as security for its debt obligations and has announced its intent to sell

majority and potentially all or substantially all of its stake in the Company If one person or group
acquires majority of our common stock change of control default could be triggered under our
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement If such an event were to occur we would need to obtain

waiver from our lenders or amend the credit facility If such waiver or amendment were not granted
we could be forced to obtain new credit facility and our liquidity capital resources and business

operations could be adversely impacted
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Our parent company Steamboat Industries LLC which is controlled by our chairman controls our major

corporate decisions

Our parent company Steamboat Industries LLC which is controlled by our chairman John

Holten owns 50.3% of our outstanding common stock as of December 31 2008 As result Steamboat

Industries LLC is able to control us the election and removal of the directors on our board of

directors and our management and policies Steamboat Industries LLC also controls all matters

regarding stockholder approval including the amendment of certain provisions of our Certificate of

Incorporation and By-Laws and the approval of fundamental corporate transactions If Steamboat

Industries LLC sells or transfers its majority ownership stake to one person or group such person

would also have the same ability to control us

As of December 31 2008 we have 21300000 shares of common stock authorized of which

5189219 shares remained unissued As result we require and expect to require the consent of

Steamboat Industries LLC or any successor to its majority interest in order to authorize and issue

additional common stock in connection with certain corporate actions that may be beneficial to our

business or to our stockholders such as pursuing acquisitions and mergers involving issuance of our

common stock The ability of our parent company to control our major corporate decisions may harm

the market price for our common stock by delaying deferring or preventing business combination

involving our company causing us to enter into transactions that are not in the best interests of all

stockholders or discouraging third-party investors

Our management contracts and leases expose us to certain risks

The loss or renewal on less favorable terms of substantial number of management contracts or

leases could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of

operations In addition because certain management contracts and leases are with state local and

quasi-governmental entities changes to certain governmental entities approaches to contracting

regarding parking facilities could affect such contracts material reduction in the operating income

associated with the integrated services we provide under management contracts and leases could have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations To the extent that

management contracts and leases are cancelable without cause most of these contracts would also be

cancelable in the event of our clients bankruptcy despite the automatic stay provisions under

bankruptcy law

Our indebtedness could adversely affect our financial health and prevent us from fulfilling our obligations

We cannot assure you that cash flow from operations combined with additional borrowings under

the senior credit facility and any future credit facility will be available in an amount sufficient to enable

us to repay our indebtedness or to fund other liquidity needs We and our subsidiaries may be able to

incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future which could cause the related risks to intensif

We may need to refinance all or portion of our indebtedness on or before their respective maturities

We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance any of our indebtedness including our senior

credit facility on commercially reasonable terms or at all If we are unable to refinance our debt we

may default under the terms of our indebtedness which could lead to an acceleration of the debt We

do not expect that we could repay all of our outstanding indebtedness if the repayment of such

indebtedness was accelerated

Our business would be harmed if fewer clients obtain liability insurance coverage through us

Many of our clients have historically chosen to obtain liability insurance coverage for the locations

we manage by being named as additional insureds under our master insurance policies Clients do

however have the option of purchasing such insurance independently as long as we are named as an
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additional insured pursuant to an additional insured endorsement We purchase insurance policies at

prices that we believe
represent discount to the prices that would typically be charged to parking

facility owners on stand-alone basis Pursuant to our management contracts we allocate portion of

our risk management costs at rates we believe are competitive to those clients who choose to obtain

their insurance coverage by being named as additional insureds under our insurance policies

material reduction in the number of clients who choose to obtain their insurance coverage from us in

that manner could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of

operations

Additional fluids would need to be reserved for future insurance losses if such losses are worse than expected

We provide liability and workers compensation insurance coverage consistent with our obligations

to our clients under our various management contracts and leases We are obligated to reimburse our

insurance carrier for each loss incurred in the current policy year up to the amount of deductible

specified in our insurance policies The deductible for our various liability and workers compensation

policies is $250000 We also purchase property insurance that provides coverage for loss or damage to

our property and in some cases our clients property as well as business interruption coverage for lost

operating income and certain associated expenses The deductible applicable to any given loss under

our property insurance policy varies based upon the insured values and the peril that causes the loss

Our financial statements reflect our funding of all such obligations based upon guidance and evaluation

we have received from third-party insurance professionals There can be no assurance however that

the ultimate amount of our obligations will not exceed the amount presently funded or accrued in

which case we would need to set aside additional funds to reserve for any such excess Our obligations

could increase if we receive greater number of insurance claims or if the severity of or the

administrative costs associated with those claims generally increases material increase in insurance

costs due to change in the number or severity of claims claims costs or premiums paid by us could

have material adverse effect on our operating income

Our ability to expand our business will be dependent upon the availability of adequate capital

The rate of our expansion will depend in part upon the availability of adequate capital which in

turn will depend in large part upon cash flow generated by our business and the availability of equity

and debt capital We believe that we will be able to obtain equity or debt capital on acceptable terms

However we will require the consent of shareholders holding majority of shares in order to authorize

and issue additional shares of common stock above the current number of shares of authorized capital

stock which may be required in connection with any future acquisitions In addition our senior credit

facility contains provisions that restrict our ability to incur additional indebtedness and/or make

substantial investments or acquisitions As result we cannot assure you that we will be able to finance

our current growth strategy

We must comply with public and private regulations that may impose significant costs on us

Under various federal state and local environmental laws ordinances and regulations current or

previous owner or operator of real property may be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of

hazardous or toxic substances on under or in such property These laws typically impose liability

without regard to whether the owner or operator knew of or was responsible for the presence of such

hazardous or toxic substances In connection with the operation of parking facilities we may be

potentially liable for such costs In addition from time to time we are involved in environmental issues

at certain of locations or in connection with our operations While it is difficult to predict the ultimate

outcome of any of these matters based on information currently available management believes that

none of these matters individually or in the aggregate are reasonably likely to have material adverse

effect on our financial position results of operations or cash flows The cost of defending against
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claims of liability or remediation of contaminated property could have material adverse effect on

our business financial condition and results of operations In addition several state and local laws have

been passed in recent years that encourage car pooling and the use of mass transit Laws and

regulations that reduce the number of cars and vehicles being driven could adversely impact our

business

In connection with certain transportation services provided to our clients including shuttle bus

operations we provide the vehicles and the drivers to operate these transportation services The

Department of Transportation and various state agencies exercise broad powers over these

transportation services including licensing and authorizations safety and insurance requirements Our

employee drivers must also comply with the safety and fitness regulations promulgated by the

Department Transportation including those related to drug and alcohol testing and service hours We

may become subject to new and more restrictive federal and state regulations Compliance with such

regulations could hamper our ability to provide qualified drivers and increase our operating costs

We are also subject to consumer credit laws and credit card industry rules and regulations relating

to the processing of credit card transactions including the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act

and the Payment Card Data Security Standard This law and these industry standards impose

substantial financial penalties for non-compliance purported class action was recently filed against us

alleging violations of the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act Similar complaints have been filed

against many credit card processors

We collect and remit sales/parking taxes and file tax returns for and on behalf of ourselves and our

clients We are affected by laws and regulations that may impose direct assessment on us for failure

to remit sales/parking taxes and filing of tax returns for ourselves and on behalf of our clients

We believe that our public and private client base is becoming more concentrated

Because national property owners managers and developers and other property management

companies tend to own or manage multiple properties our ability to provide parking services for

large number of properties becomes dependent on our relationships with these entities As this

ownership concentration continues such clients become more significant to our business The loss of

one of these large clients or the sale of properties they own to clients of our competitors could have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations Additionally large

clients with extensive portfolios have greater negotiating power with respect to our management

contracts and leases which could adversely affect our profit margins

In order to raise additional revenue number of state and municipal governments have either

sold or entered into long-term leases of public assets or may be contemplating such transactions The

assets that are the subject of such transactions have included government-owned parking garages

located in downtown commercial districts and parking operations at airports The sale or long-term

leasing of such government-owned parking assets to our competitors or clients of our competitors could

have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

The failure to successfully complete or integrate acquisitions or new contracts could have negative impact on

our business

We may pursue both small and large acquisitions in our business or in new lines of business on

selective basis and we may be in discussions or negotiations with one or more of these acquisitions or

new contract candidates simultaneously There can be no assurance that suitable acquisitions or new

contract candidates will be identified that such acquisitions or new contracts will be consummated or

that the acquired operations or new contracts will be integrated successfully
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Acquisitions involve numerous risks including but not limited to the following

Difficulties in integrating the operations systems technologies and personnel of the acquired

companies particularly companies with large and widespread operations

Diversion of managements attention from normal daily operations of the business and the

challenges of managing larger and more widespread operations resulting from acquisitions

Difficulties in entering markets or businesses in which we have no or limited direct prior

experience and in which competitors have
stronger

market positions

Insufficient revenue to offset increased expenses associated with acquisitions

The potential loss of key employees customers and other business partners of the companies we

acquire following and continuing after announcement of acquisition plans and their actual

consummation

Acquisitions may also cause us to

Use substantial portion of our cash resources or incur substantial amount of debt

Temporarily increase costs including general and administrative cost required to integrate

acquisitions or large contract portfolios

Significantly increase our non-cash amortization expense

Significantly increase our interest expense leverage and debt service requirements if we incur

additional debt to pay for an acquisition

Assume liabilities

Issue common stock that would dilute our current shareholders percentage ownership

Record goodwill and non-amortizable intangible assets that are subject to impairment testing on

regular basis and potential periodic impairment charges

Mergers and acquisitions of companies are inherently risky and subject to many factors outside of

our control and no assurance can be given that our previous or future acquisitions will be successful

and will not materially adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

Failure to manage and successfully integrate acquisitions could materially harm our business financial

condition and results of operations

The sureties for our performance bond program may elect not to provide us with new or renewal performance

bonds for any reason

As is customary in the industry surety provider can refuse to provide bond principal with new

or renewal surety bonds If any existing or future
surety provider refuses to provide us with surety

bonds there can be no assurance that we would be able to find alternate providers on acceptable

terms or at all Our inability to provide surety bonds could also result in the loss of existing contracts

Failure to find provider of surety bonds and our resulting inability to bid for new contracts or renew

existing contracts could have material adverse effect on our business and financial condition

We may be unable to renew our insurance
coverage and we do not maintain insurance coverage for all

possible risks

Our liability and workers compensation insurance coverage expires on an annual basis There can

be no assurance that our insurance carriers will in fact be willing to renew our coverage at any rate at

the expiration date We maintain comprehensive portfolio of insurance policies to help protect us

against loss or damage incurred from wide variety of insurable risks Each year we review with our
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professional insurance advisers whether the insurance policies and associated coverages that we

maintain are sufficient to adequately protect us from the various types of risk to which we are exposed

in the ordinary course of business That analysis takes into account various pertinent factors such as the

likelihood that we would incur material loss from any given risk as well as the cost of obtaining

insurance coverage against any such risk While we believe that we maintain comprehensive portfolio

of insurance that is consistent with customary business practices and adequately protects us from the

risks that we typically face in the ordinary course of our business there can be no assurance that we

may not sustain material loss for which we do not maintain any or adequate insurance coverage

Our business may be harmed as result of extraordinary natural disasters

In 2005 Hurricane Katrina caused significant disruption to our operations in New Orleans and the

U.S Gulf Coast region which adversely impacted our operating results for this region To the extent

that we experience similar weather related events in the U.S Gulf Coast Region or in other

geographical areas where we operate or experience other extraordinary natural events such as

earthquakes our operating results may be adversely impacted

Our business may be harmed as result of terrorist attacks and the related increase in government regulation

of airports and reduced air travel

Any terrorist attacks particularly in the United States or Canada may negatively impact our

business financial condition and results of operations Attacks have resulted in and may continue to

result in increased government regulation of airlines and airport facilities including imposition of

minimum distances between parking facilities and terminals resulting in the elimination of currently

managed parking facilities and increased security checks of employees and passengers at airport

facilities We derive significant percentage of our gross profit from parking facilities and parking

related services in and around airports For the year ended December 31 2008 approximately 20% of

gross profit was derived from those operations The Federal Aviation Administration generally prohibits

parking within 300 feet of airport terminals during periods of heightened security While the

prohibition is not currently in effect there can be no assurance that this governmental prohibition will

not again be reinstated The existing regulations governing parking within 300 feet of airport terminals

or future regulations may prevent us from using certain parking spaces Reductions in the number of

parking spaces
and air travelers may reduce our revenues and cash flow for both our leased facilities

and those facilities we operate under management contracts

The operation of our business is dependent upon key personneL

Our success is and will continue to be substantially dependent upon the continued services of our

executive management team The loss of the services of one or more of the members of our executive

management team could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of

operations Although we have entered into employment agreements with and historically have been

successful in retaining the services of our executive management there can be no assurance that we

will be able to retain them in the future In addition our continued growth depends upon our ability to

attract and retain skilled operating managers and employees

We operate in very competitive business environment

Competition in the field of parking facility management is intense The market is fragmented and

is served by variety of entities ranging from single lot operators to large regional and national multi

facility operators as well as municipal and other governmental entities that choose not to outsource

their parking operations Competitors may be able to adapt more quickly to changes in customer

requirements or devote greater resources to the promotion and sale of their products Many of our

competitors also have long-standing relationships with our clients Providers of parking facility
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management services have traditionally competed on the basis of cost and service As we have worked

to establish ourselves as one of the principal members of the industry we compete predominately on

the basis of high levels of service and
strong relationships We may not be able to or may choose not

to compete with certain competitors on the basis of price As result greater proportion of our

clients may switch to other service providers or self-manage during an economic downturn

Many of our employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements

Approximately 24% of our employees are represented by labor unions Approximately 29% of our

collective bargaining contracts representing 6% of our employees are up for renewal in 2009 There

can be no assurance that we will be able to renew existing labor union contracts on acceptable terms

Employees could exercise their rights under the labor union contract which could include strike or

walk-out In such cases there are no assurances that we would be able to staff sufficient employees for

our short-term needs Any such labor strike or our inability to negotiate satisfactory contract upon
expiration of the current agreements could have negative effect on our business financial condition

and results of operations

We make contributions to multiemployer benefit plans on behalf of certain employees covered by

collective bargaining agreements and could be responsible for paying unfunded liabilities incurred by

such benefit plans which amount could be material

Economic and demographic trends could materially adversely affect our business

Our business operations are located in North America and tend to be concentrated in large urban

areas Our business could be materially adversely affected to the extent that economic or demographic

factors result in the movement of white-collar jobs from urban centers to suburbs or out of North

America entirely increased office vacancies in urban areas movement toward home office alternatives

or lower consumer spending or employment levels

ITEM PROPERTIES

Parking Facilities

We operate parking facilities in 42 states and the District of Columbia in the United States and

three provinces of Canada We do not currently own any parking facilities The following table

summarizes certain information regarding our facilities as of December 31 2008

of Locations of Spaces

States/Provinces Airports and Urban Cities Airport Urban Total Airport Urban Total

Alabama Airports 1562 1562
Alberta Airports Calgary and Edmonton 18 20 15314 15314
Arizona Phoenix 20 20 12691 12691
British Columbia Vancouver 742 742

California Airports Beverly Hills Encino

Glendale Long Beach Los Angeles

Sacramento San Francisco San

Jose Santa Monica and Woodland

Hills 702 704 3220 209529 212749
Colorado Airports Aurora Colorado Springs

and Denver 50 58 40857 31194 72051
Connecticut Airports 7941 7941
Delaware Wilmington 473 473

District of Columbia Washington DC 16 16 5468 5468
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StatesfProvinces

Oregon

Pennsylvania

Rhode Island

South Dakota

Tennessee

Texas

Airports and Urban Cities

Airports Boca Raton Coral Gables

Ft Myers Miami Miami Beach

Orlando and Tampa

Airports and Atlanta

Airports Aiea Honolulu Lahaina

Waipahu

Airports

Airports Chicago and Hoffman

Estates

Airports

Bonner Springs Kansas City and

Topeka

Airport Metairie and New Orleans

Airports and Portland

Baltimore Bethesda and Towson

Boston Cambridge Chestnut Hill and

Hopkinton

Airports

Airport Minneapolis and St Paul

Airports and Kansas City

Airports

Airports

Las Vegas and Reno

Hoboken Jersey City Paterson and

Wayne

Airports

Airports Bronx Buffalo and New

York City

Airport and Charlotte

Airports

Airports Akron Cincinnati Cleveland

Columbus and Lakewood

Hamilton London North York and

Toronto

Airports and Medford

Airports

Airport and Providence

Airports

Airports Memphis and Nashville

Airports Austin Dallas Fort Worth

and Houston

Salt Lake City

Burlington

Airports Alexandria Arlington

Fairfax and Richmond

Airports Bellevue and Seattle

Airports and Milwaukee

Casper and Mills

Totals

62 67 14956

21 23 4570

44 47 2393

372

29 30

22 22

61 68 11565

14 15 1403

1415

148 155 10695 110879

67976

25733

18264

372

126857

2305

13817

16560

16640

5699

13560

30561

12699

11520

67438

3622

1307

150

50546

12085

1415

121574

43273

10013

2105

12980

1909

3837

93199

3090

560

of Locations of Spaces

Florida

Georgia

Hawaii

Idaho

Illinois

Indiana

Kansas

Airport Urban Total Airport Urban Total

53020

21163

15871

12 251 263 29986 96871

2305

Kentucky Airports

Louisiana

Maine

Maryland
Massachusetts

Michigan

Minnesota

Missouri

Montana

Nebraska

Nevada

New Jersey

New Mexico

New York

North Carolina

North Dakota

Ohio

Ontario

16560

1302

3809

12699

555

24624

3622

1307

13817

15338

1890

13560

30561

10965

42814

150

94

37

121

94

38

127

19 19 14737 14737

38981

10682

58 58

14 16

10013

2105

8480

1909

649

Utah

Vermont

Virginia

Washington

Wisconsin

Wyoming

97 101 6638

43273

4500

3188

86561

3090

560

34589

13981

4022

1840

962314133

54

87

16

2082

61

89

19

2215

9702

822

4344

242380

44291

14803

8366

1840

1204694

We have interests in twelve joint ventures each of which operates between one and twenty-two

parking facilities We are the general partner of three limited partnerships each of which operates

between one and nine parking facilities For additional information please see Managements
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Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsSummary of Operating

Facilities

Office Leases

We lease approximately 24000 square feet of office space for our corporate offices in Chicago

Illinois The lease expires in 2013 We have right of first opportunity on an additional 24000 square
feet We believe that the leased facility together with our expansion options is adequate to meet

current and foreseeable future needs

We also lease regional offices These lease agreements generally include renewal and expansion

options and we believe that these facilities are adequate to meet our current and foreseeable future

needs

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are subject to various claims and legal proceedings that consist principally of lease and contract

disputes We consider these claims and legal proceedings to be routine and incidental to our business

and in the opinion of management the ultimate liability with respect to these proceedings and claims

will not materially affect our financial position operations or liquidity

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITi RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Select Global Market under the symbol STAN
The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low sales prices for our common

stock as reported on the NASDAQ Select Global Market and its predecessor adjusted for the effect of

the 2-for-i stock split in January 2008

2008 2007

Sales Price
Dividends

Sales Price
Dividends

Quarter Ended High Low Declared High Low Declared

March 31 $23.50 $17.47 $20.06 $16.55

June 30 $21.72 $17.95 $19.10 $16.44

September 30 $23.74 $18.11 $19.92 $15.82

December 31 $21.31 $15.09 $24.98 $18.82

Holders

As of March 2009 there were approximately 3675 holders of our common stock based on the

number of record holders of our common stock and an estimate of the number of individual

participants represented by security position listings

Dividends

We did not pay cash dividend in respect of our common stock in 2008 or 2007 By the terms of

our senior credit facility we are restricted from paying cash dividends on our capital stock while such

facility is in effect

There are no restrictions on the ability of our wholly owned subsidiaries to pay cash dividends to

us

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Number of Number of securities

securities remaining available

to be based Weighted.average for future issuance under

upon exercise of exercise price of equity compensation plans

outstanding options outstanding options excluding securities

warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by

securities holders 1411903 $2.22 122471

Equity compensation plans not approved

by securities holders
_______

Total 1411903 $2.22 122471
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Stock Repurchases

The following table contains detail related to the repurchase of common stock by us based on the

date of trade during the quarter ended December 31 2008 In thousands except share and per share

data

Total Number of Maximum Dollar

Total Shares Purchased as Value of Shares that

Number of Average Part of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased

Shares Price Paid Announced Plans Under the Plan

Quarter Ended December 31 2008 Purchased per Share or Programs or Program

From October to October 31 444955 $18.86 444955 $36976
From November to November 30 443786 $17.92 443786 29025
From December to December 31 336894 $18.31 336894 22857

Total for the quarter ended

December 31 1225635 $18.37 1225635 $22857

In December 2007 the Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase shares of our common

stock on the open market or through private purchases up to $25.0 million in aggregate As of

December 31 2007 $22.9 million remained available for repurchase under this authorization

In July 2008 the Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase shares of our common stock on

the open market or through private purchases up to an additional $60.0 million in aggregate

During the fourth quarter of 2008 we repurchased from third party shareholders 640348 shares at

an average price of $18.34 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open

market Our majority shareholder sold to us 545683 shares in the fourth quarter at an average price of

$18.31 per share In addition we repurchased from third
party shareholders 24700 shares at an average

price of $18.21 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open market Our

majority shareholder also sold us its pro-rata ownership of third quarter open market repurchase of

14904 shares at an average price of $22.63 per share The total value of the fourth quarter transactions

was $22.5 million 598212 shares were retired during the fourth quarter of 2008 and the remaining

627423 shares were held as treasury
stock and retired during the first quarter of 2009

As of December 31 2008 $22.9 million remained available for repurchase under the July 2008

authorization by the Board of Directors

iTEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents selected historical consolidated financial data as of December 31

2008 2007 and 2006 derived from our audited consolidated financial statements which are included

elsewhere herein The table also presents selected historical consolidated financial data as of

December 31 2005 and 2004 derived from our audited consolidated financial statements which are not

included herein The selected financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result of Operations and the

historical consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for years 2008 2007 and 2006 which are
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included elsewhere herein The historical results do not necessarily indicate results expected for any

future period

Year Ended December 31

2006 results include reduction in the valuation allowance for net operating loss carryforwards and

other deferred tax assets of $23924

2008 2007 2006 2005

in thousands

2004

$154311 $145327 $153336 $154099 $148752

145828 119612 106554 93876 83712

331171

563635

400621

700760

140058

69285

400621

609964

14253

76543

90796

47619

6059

338679

586654

141037

37101

338679

516817

356782

621721

129550

49726
356782

536058

15777

69886

85663

44796

5335

346055

605945

139043

44990
346055

530088

14293

61564

75857

41228

5638

Statement of Operations Data

Parking services revenue

Lease contracts

Management contracts

Reimbursement of management contract

expense

Total revenue

Cost of parking services

Lease contracts 134548

Management contracts 34029

Reimbursed management contract expense 331171

Total cost of parking services 499748

Gross profit

Lease contracts 13062 14204

Management contracts 56775 49683

Total
gross profit 69837 63887

General and administrative expenses 38922 33470

Depreciation and amortization 6427 6957

Management fee-parent company 1500
Non-cash stock option compensation expense 2299
Valuation allowance related to long-term

receivables 900

Operating income 37118 35532 28991 23588 19661

Interest expense 6476 7056 8296 9398 13369

Interest income 173 610 552 841 534
Gain on extinguishment of debt 3832

6303 6446 7744 8557 9003

Minority interest 148 446 376 326 349

Income before income taxes 30667 28640 20871 14705 10309

Income tax expense benefit1 11622 11267 14880 14 112

Net income before preferred stock dividends

and increase in value of common stock

subject to put/call 19045 17373 35751 14719 10421

Preferred stock dividends 7243
Increase in value of common stock subject to

put/call

Net income

Balance Sheet Data at end of year
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Total debt

Convertible redeemable preferred stock

seriesD

Common stockholders equity 1017 39339 41253 24412 15339

19045 $17373 35751 14719

8301

229241

125064

538

2640

8466

215388

80363

8058

212528

85665

10777

201353

92108

$10360
195102

109750
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our results of operations should be read in conjunction with the Selected

Financial Data and our consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere herein

This discussion contains fonvard-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties Our actual results

may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as result of many factors

including but not limited to those set forth in Item 1A Risk Factors and elsewhere herein

Overview

Our Business

We manage parking facilities in urban markets and at airports across the United States and in

three Canadian provinces We do not own any facilities but instead enter into contractual relationships

with
property owners or managers

We operate our clients properties through two types of arrangements management contracts and

leases Under management contract we typically receive base monthly fee for managing the facility

and we may also receive an incentive fee based on the achievement of facility performance objectives

We also receive fees for ancillary services Typically all of the underlying revenues and expenses under

standard management contract flow through to our clients rather than to us However some

management contracts which are referred to as reverse management contracts usually provide for

larger management fees and require us to pay various costs Under lease arrangements we generally

pay to the property owner either fixed annual rent percentage of
gross customer collections or

combination thereof We collect all revenues under lease arrangements and we are responsible for most

operating expenses but we are typically not responsible for major maintenance capital expenditures or

real estate taxes Margins for lease contracts vary significantly not only due to operating performance

but also due to variability of parking rates in different cities and varying space utilization by parking

facility type and location As of December 31 2008 we operated 90% of our locations under

management contracts and 10% under leases

In evaluating our financial condition and operating performance managements primary focus is

on our gross profit total general and administrative expense and general and administrative expense as

percentage of our gross profit Although the underlying economics to us of management contracts

and leases are similar the manner in which we are required to account for them differs Revenue from

leases includes all
gross customer cpllections derived from our leased locations net of parking tax

whereas revenue from management contracts only includes our contractually agreed upon management
fees and amounts attributable to ancillary services Gross customer collections at facilities under

management contracts therefore are not included in our revenue Accordingly while change in the

proportion of our operating agreements that are structured as leases versus management contracts may
cause significant fluctuations in reported revenue and expense of parking services that change will not

artificially affect our gross profit For example as of December 31 2008 90% of our locations were

operated under management contracts and 84% of our gross profit for the year ended December 31
2008 was derived from management contracts only 49% of total revenue excluding reimbursement of

management contract expenses however was from management contracts because under those

contracts the revenue collected from parking customers belongs to our clients Therefore gross profit

and total general and administrative expense rather than revenue are managements primary focus

General Business Trends

We believe that sophisticated commercial real estate developers and property managers and

owners recognize the potential for parking and related services to be profit generator rather than

cost center Often the parking experience makes both the first and the last impressions on their
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properties tenants and visitors By outsourcing these services they are able to capture additional profit

by leveraging the unique operational skills and controls that an experienced parking management

company can offer Our ability to consistently deliver uniformly high level of parking and related

services and maximize the profit to our clients improves our ability to win contracts and retain existing

locations Our location retention rate for the twelve month periods ended December 31 2008 and

December 31 2007 was 89% and 91% respectively which also reflects our decision not to renew or

terminate unprofitable contracts

We are also experiencing an increase in our ability to leverage existing relationships to increase the

scope of services provided thereby increasing the profit per location For the year ended December 31

2008 compared to the year ended December 31 2007 we improved average gross profit per location by

2.0% from $40.2 thousand to $41.0 thousand

Summary of Operating Facilities

We focus our operations in core markets where concentration of locations improves customer

service levels and operating margins The following table reflects our facilities operated at the end of

the years indicated

December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006

Managed facilities 1986 1893 1733

Leased facilities 229 238 245

Total facilities 2215 2131 1978

Revenue

We recognize parking services revenue from lease and management contracts as the related

services are provided Substantially all of our revenues come from the following two sources

Parking services revenuelease contracts Parking services revenues related to lease contracts

consist of all revenue received at leased facility including parking receipts net of parking tax

consulting and real estate development fees gains on sales of contracts and payments for

exercising termination rights

Parking services revenuemanagement contracts Management contract revenue consists of

management fees including both fixed and performance-based fees and amounts attributable to

ancillary services such as accounting equipment leasing payments received for exercising

termination rights consulting development fees gains on sales of contracts insurance and other

value-added services with respect to managed locations We believe we generally purchase

required insurance at lower rates than our clients can obtain on their own because we effectively

self-insure for all liability and workers compensation claims by maintaining large per-claim

deductible As result we have generated operating income on the insurance provided under

our management contracts by focusing on our risk management efforts and controlling losses

Management contract revenues do not include gross customer collections at the managed

locations as this revenue belongs to the property owner rather than to us Management contracts

generally provide us with management fee regardless of the operating performance of the

underlying facility

Conversions Conversions between type of contracts lease or management are typically

determined by our clients and not us Although the underlying economics to us of management
contracts and leases are similar the manner in which we account for them differs substantially
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Reimbursement of Management Contract Expense

Reimbursement of management contract expense consists of the direct reimbursement from the

property owner for operating expenses incurred under management contract

Cost of Parking Services

Our cost of parking services consists of the following

Cost of parking serviceslease contracts The cost of parking services under lease arrangement
consists of contractual rental fees paid to the facility owner and all operating expenses incurred

in connection with operating the leased facility Contractual fees paid to the facility owner are

generally based on either fixed contractual amount or percentage of gross revenue or

combination thereof Generally under lease arrangement we are not responsible for major

capital expenditures or real estate taxes

Cost of parking servicesmanagement contracts The cost of parking services under

management contract is generally the responsibility of the facility owner As result these costs

are not included in our results of operations However our reverse management contracts which

typically provide for larger management fees do require us to pay for certain costs

Gross Profit

Gross profit equals our revenue less the cost of generating such revenue This is the key metric we
use to examine our performance because it captures the underlying economic benefit to us of both

lease contracts and management contracts

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses include salaries wages payroll taxes insurance travel and

office related expenses for our headquarters field offices supervisory employees chairman of the

board and board of directors

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation is determined using straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the

various asset classes or in the case of leasehold improvements over the initial term of the operating
lease or its useful life whichever is shorter Intangible assets determined to have finite lives are

amortized over their remaining useful life

Valuation Allowance Related to Long-Term Receivables

Valuation allowance related to long-term receivables is recorded when there is an extended length
of time estimated for collection of long-term receivables

Seasonality

During the first quarter of each year seasonality impacts our performance with regard to

moderating revenues with the reduced levels of travel most clearly reflected in the parking activity

associated with our airport and hotel businesses as well as increases in certain costs of parking services
such as snow removal both of which negatively affect gross profit Although our revenues and

profitability are affected by the seasonality of the business general and administrative costs are

relatively stable throughout the fiscal year See Item Selected Financial Data for further

information
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Results of Operations

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

The following table presents the material factors that impact our revenue

Year Ended

December 31 Variance

2008 2007 Amount

in millions

Lease contract revenue

New location 9.4 2.5 6.9 276.0

Contract expirations
4.1 8.9 4.8 53.9

Same location

Short-term parking 85.7 84.9 0.8 0.9

Monthly parking 41.8 39.8 2.0 5.0

Total same location 127.5 124.7 2.8 2.2

Conversions 5.1 8.2 3.1 37.8

Acquisitions
8.2 1.0 7.2 720.0

Total lease contract revenue $154.3 $145.3 $9.0 6.2

Management contract revenue

New location 25.7 8.2 $17.5 213.4

Contract expirations 8.2 17.6 9.4 53.4

Same location 102.3 91.7 10.6 11.6

Conversions 0.3 0.2 0.1 50.0

Acquisitions
9.3 1.9 7.4 389.5

Total management contract revenue $145.8 $119.6 $26.2 21.9

Reimbursement of management contract expense $400.6 $356.8 $43.8 12.3

Parking services revenuelease contracts Lease contract revenue increased $9.0 million or 6.2%

to $154.3 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to $145.3 million in the year-ago

period The increase resulted primarily from our acquisitions revenue from new locations exceeding

decreases in revenue from contract expirations and fewer leased contracts that converted from

management contracts during the current year Same location revenue for those facilities which as of

December 31 2008 have been operational minimum of 24 months increased 2.2% Revenue

associated with contract expirations
relates to contracts that expired during the current period In

addition we recorded $1.4 million in 2008 related to the Hurricane Katrina settlement which was

included in contract expirations

Parking services revenuemanagement contracts Management contract revenue increased

$26.2 million or 21.9% to $145.8 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to

$119.6 million in the year-ago period The increase resulted primarily from new locations and

acquisitions which more than offset the decrease in revenue from contract expirations Same locations

revenue for those facilities which as of December 31 2008 have been operational minimum of

24 months increased 11.6% In addition we recorded $0.2 million related to the Hurricane Katrina

settlement which was included in contract expirations

Reimbursement of management contract expense Reimbursement of management contract expenses

increased $43.8 million or 12.3% to $400.6 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared
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to $356.8 million in the year-ago period This increase resulted from additional reimbursements for

costs incurred on behalf of owners

The following table presents the material factors that impact our cost of parking services

Year Ended

December 31 Variance

2008 2007 Amount

in millions

Cost of parking services lease contracts

New location 9.0 2.5 6.5 260.0

Contract expirations 2.0 5.9 3.9 66.1
Same location

Rent 89.3 86.8 2.5 2.9

Payroll and payroll related 17.3 17.1 0.2 1.2

Other operating costs 10.8 9.0 1.8 20.0

Total same location 117.4 112.9 4.5 4.0

Conversions 4.4 7.4 3.0 40.5

Acquisitions 7.3 0.9 6.4 711.1

Total cost of parking services lease contracts $140.1 $129.6 $10.5 8.1

Cost of parking services management contracts

New locations $15.7 5.6 $10.1 180.4

Contract expirations 5.1 10.6 5.5 51.9
Same location

Payroll and payroll related 26.0 26.6 0.6 2.3
Other operating expenses 16.2 5.7 10.5 184.2

Total same location 42.2 32.3 9.9 30.7

Conversions

Acquisitions 6.3 1.2 5.1 425.0

Total cost of parking services management contracts 69.3 49.7 $19.6 39.4

Reimbursed management contract expense $400.6 $356.8 $43.8 12.3

Cost of parking serviceslease contracts Cost of parking services for lease contracts increased

$10.5 million or 8.1% to $140.1 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to

$129.6 million in the year-ago period The increase resulted primarily from new locations and

acquisitions which more than offset the decreases in costs from contract expirations and fewer locations

that converted from management contracts during the current year Same locations costs for those

facilities which as of December 31 2008 have been operational minimum of 24 months increased

4.0% Same location rent expense for lease contracts increased primarily as result of contingent rental

payments on the increase in revenue for same locations The increase in other operating costs for lease

contracts primarily result from increases in snow removal costs and garage supplies

Cost of parking servicesmanagement contracts Cost of parking services for management
contracts increased $19.6 million or 39.4% to $69.3 million for the year ended December 31 2008

compared to $49.7 million in the year-ago period The increase resulted primarily from new locations

and acquisitions which more than offset the decrease in costs from contract expirations There was no

impact on costs for those management contracts which converted to lease contract Same location

costs for those facilities which as of December 31 2008 have been operational minimum of
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24 months increased 30.7% Same location increase in operating expenses for management contracts

primarily result from increases in snow removal costs and garage supplies

Reimbursed management contract expense Reimbursed management contract expense increased

$43.8 million or 12.3% to $400.6 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to

$356.8 million in the year-ago period This increase resulted from additional reimbursed cost incurred

on the behalf of owners

profit and gross profit percentageThe following table presents the material changes to the gross

on our lease and management contracts

Gross profit lease contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total gross profit lease contracts

Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007

in millions

Variance

Amount

0.4

2.1

10.1

0.7

0.9

$14.2

4.3%

51.2%

7.9%

13.7%

11.0%

9.2%

$10.0

3.1

60.1

0.3

3.0

$76.5

0.4

0.9

1.7

0.1
0.8

$1.5

7.4

3.9
0.7

0.1

2.3

6.6

Gross profit percentage lease contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total gross profit percentage lease contracts

Gross profit management contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total gross profit management contracts

Gross profit percentage management contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

100.0

30.0

14.4

12.5
800.0

9.6

284.6

55.7
1.2

50.0

328.6

9.4

3.0

11.8

0.8

$15.7

33.7%

9.5%

9.8%

10.0%

10.8%

2.6

7.0

59.4

0.2

0.7

69.9

31.7%

39.8%

64.8%

100.0%

36.8%

58.4%

38.9%

37.8%

58.7%

100.0%

32.3%

52.5%Total gross profit percentage management contracts

Gross profitlease contracts Gross profit for lease contracts decreased $1.5 million or 9.6% to

$14.2 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to $15.7 million in the year-ago period

Gross profit percentage for lease contracts decreased to 9.2% for the year ended December 31 2008

compared to 10.8% in the year-ago period Gross profit lease contracts decreases on same locations
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were primarily the result of increases in other operating costs as described under the cost of parking

services lease contracts Gross profit percentage on acquisitions were higher than our average for lease

contracts however were not sufficient to offset the decline in same locations

Gross profitmanagement contracts Gross profit for management contracts increased

$6.6 million or 9.4% to $76.5 million for the
year

ended December 31 2008 compared to

$69.9 million in the
year-ago period Gross profit percentage for management contracts decreased to

52.5% for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to 58.4% in the year-ago period Gross profit

for management contracts increases were primarily the result of our new locations and our acquisitions

Gross profit percentage on same locations accounted for most of the decline on percentage basis

General and administrative expenses General and administrative expenses increased $2.8 million

or 6.3% to $47.6 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to $44.8 million in the

year-ago period This increase resulted from increases in payroll and payroll related expenses of

$1.7 million increases resulting from acquisitions of $1.2 million and $0.1 decrease in other operating

expenses which included $0.4 million from the Hurricane Katrina settlement

Interest expense Interest expense decreased $0.6 million or 8.4% to $6.5 million for the year

ended December 31 2008 as compared to $7.1 million in the year-ago period This decrease resulted

primarily from the decrease in the borrowing rate on our senior credit facility

Interest Income Interest Income decreased $0.4 million or 66.7% to $0.2 million for the year

ended December 31 2008 as compared to $0.6 million in the year-ago period This decrease resulted

from reduction of repayments received in 2007 for interest bearing guarantor payments related to

Bradley International Airport

Income tax expense Income tax expense increased $0.3 million or 2.7% to $11.6 million for the

year ended December 31 2008 as compared to $11.3 million in the year-ago period This increase

resulted from taxes on increased earnings partially offset by reduction in our effective tax rate The

effective tax rate for the year ended December 31 2008 was 37.9% compared to 39.3% for the

year-ago period

Segments

SFAS No 131 Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information SFAS 131
establishes annual and interim reporting standards for an enterprises operating segments and related

disclosures about its products services geographic areas and major customers An operating segment is

defined as component of an enterprise that engages in business activities from which it may earn

revenues and incur expenses and about which separate financial information is regularly evaluated by

the Chief Operating Decision Maker CODMin deciding how to allocate resources The CODM as

defined by SFAS 131 is our President and Chief Executive Officer CEO
The Company is managed based on regions administered by executive vice presidents Three

regions are generally organized geographically with the fourth region encompassing major airports and

transportation operations nationwide The following is summary of revenues excluding

reimbursement of management contract expenses by region for the years ended December 31 2008

and 2007 Information related to prior years has been recast to conform to the new region alignment

Region One encompasses Delaware District of Columbia Illinois Indiana Iowa Kansas Maine

Maryland Massachusetts Minnesota Missouri New Hampshire New Jersey New York North

Carolina Ohio Rhode Island Vermont Virginia and Wisconsin

Region Two encompasses Alabama British Columbia Florida Georgia Louisiana Ontario

Tennessee and Texas
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Region Three encompasses Arizona California Colorado Hawaii Nevada Utah Washington and

Wyoming

Region Four encompasses all major airport and transportation operations nationwide

Other consists of ancillary revenue that is not specifically identifiable to region and reserve

adjustments related to prior years

The following tables present the material factors that impact our financial statements on an

operating segment basis

Segment revenue information is summarized as follows

Regions one two and three recorded an increase in new location leases and increases in same

location revenue The client base for region four currently prefers the structure of management
contracts to lease contracts therefore no new lease contracts were operational in 2008 and conversions

to leases were less than the prior year In addition same location revenue in region four was consistent

with the prior year due to the economic impact of reduced travel

All regions recorded increases in management contract revenue from new locations and same

location revenue compared to the prior year Region four added new services to existing contracts

which accounted for the increase in same location revenue

2.1

3.1

54.5

2.2

0.8

$62.7

3.5

2.1

11.9

$17.5

2.1

7.8

$73.0

Year Ended December 31

Region One Region IWo Region Three Region Four Other Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

in millions

Lease contract revenue

Newlocation $5.1 $0.1 $0.8 $0.3 $$$ 9.4$ 2.5

Contract expirations 1.0 1.2 0.9 3.7 0.5 0.1 0.4 4.1 8.9

Same location 57.0 11.7 17.0 16.9 41.6 41.6 127.5 124.7

Conversions 0.7 0.8 2.6 2.2 2.7 5.1 8.2

Acquisitions 0.4 0.2 8.2 1.0

Total lease contract revenue $13.7 $19.9 $23.7 $43.8 $44.8 0.1 0.4 $154.3 $145.3

Management contract revenue

New location 7.9 3.1 3.8 1.1 5.9 1.6 8.1 2.4 25.7 8.2

Contract expirations 2.3 7.8 2.9 4.3 2.9 5.2 0.1 0.3 8.2 17.6

Same location 35.7 32.8 11.5 9.8 30.8 29.4 24.6 21.9 0.3 2.2 102.3 91.7

Conversions 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.2

Acquisitions 3.1 0.3 6.2 1.6 9.3 1.9

Total management contract revenue $49.1 $44.2 $18.2 $15.2 $46.0 $37.8 $32.8 $24.6 $0.3 $2.2 $145.8 $119.6
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Segment cost of parking services infonnation is summarized as follows

Cost of parking services management

contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total cost of parking services

management contracts

Region one has the highest proportion of lease contracts and this region covers states that are

impacted to greater extent by weather related costs such as snow removal costs which are our

responsibility

All regions experienced same location increases in cost that approximated the aggregate amount

with no significant variances between them The other region amounts in same location costs primarily

represent prior year insurance reserve adjustments

Cost of parking services lease

contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total cost of parking services lease

contracts

Year Ended December 31

Region One Region IWo Region Three Region Four

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

in millions

4.7 2.2 3.6 0.1 0.7 0.2

1.0 2.8 0.5 1.0 2.9 0.4

52.8 49.5 10.5 10.5 15.5 15.6 38.5 37.9

2.0 1.9 0.5 0.7 2.6 1.7 2.4

6.9 0.7 0.4 0.2

Other Total

2008 2007 2008 2007

9.0 2.5

0.3 2.0 5.9

0.1 0.6 117.4 112.9

4.4 7.4

7.3 0.9

$67.4 $57.1 $14.1 $10.6 518.3 521.5 $40.2 $40.7 0.1 $0.3 $140.1 $129.6

4.2

0.9

15.4

2.0 2.1

3.4 2.4

12.3 2.7

0.5

4.3

2.2

2.8

1.6

14.6

0.8

2.5

12.9

6.6

0.2

11.7

1.5 4.8 1.2

2.3

0.4

9.5

sss
2.2 4.6

15.7 5.6

5.1 10.6

42.2 32.3

6.3 1.2

$22.0 $17.7 7.2 7.0 $23.8 $17.4 $18.5 $12.2 $2.2 $4.6 69.3 49.7
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Segment gross profit/gross profit percentage information is summarized as follows

Gross profit lease contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total gross profit lease

contracts

Gross profit percentage lease

contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total gross profit percentage

0.4 0.1 0.1
0.3 2.1 1.7

4.2 5.0 1.4 1.2

0.1 0.3 0.2

0.9 0.1

7.8 4.8

9.7

7.4 9.2

4.8 13.6

12.5

8.9

4.3

51.2 33.7

7.9 9.5

13.7 9.8

11.0 10.0

9.2 10.8

Region One Region Two

2008 2007 2008 2007

Year Ended December 31

Region Three Region Four

2008 2007 2008 2007

in millions

Other Total

2008 2007 2008 2007

0.1

0.1

1.5

0.1

$0.1 ss
0.8 0.1

1.3 3.1 3.7

0.5 0.3

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.1 2.1 3.0

0.6 10.1 11.8

0.7 0.8

0.9 0.1

$5.6$5.6$3.4$3.1$1.6 $2.25 3.6$4.1$ 0.7$14.2$15.7

percentages

11.5

7.7

2.9 12.5 33.3

100.0 141.7 11.1 21.6 20.0 100.0 25.0

11.8 10.3 8.8 7.7 7.5 8.9

28.6 12.5 22.7 11.1

19.4 22.6 8.0 9.3 8.2 9.2 175.0

Gross
profit management

contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions 0.1 0.2

Acquisitions 1.6 0.3

in millions

3.7

1.4

20.3

1.1

4.4

20.5

1.7 0.6 3.1 0.8 1.5 0.1 10.0

0.5 1.3 2.7 0.1 0.1 3.1

8.8 7.6 16.2 16.5 12.9 12.4 1.9 2.4 60.1

0.2 0.3

Total gross profit management

contracts

Gross
profit percentage

management contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

2.6

7.0

59.4

0.2

1.4 0.4 3.0 0.7

27.1 26.5 $11.0 8.2 22.2 $20.4 14.3 $12.4 1.9 2.4 76.5 69.9

percentages

46.8 44.7 54.5 52.5 50.0 18.5 4.2 38.9 31.7

60.9 17.2 44.8 51.9 100.0 33.3 37.8 39.8

56.9 76.5 77.6 52.6 56.1 52.4 56.6 633.3 109.1 58.7 64.8

100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0

51.6 22.6 32.3 36.8

60.4 53.9 48.3

35.5

56.4

62.5

100.0

100.0 25.0

Total gross profit percentage 55.2 60.0 54.0 43.6 50.4 633.3 109.1 52.5 58.4

Gross profit for lease contracts for region three declined primarily due to contract expirations in

2008 that were profitable for us in 2007 Regions one and four experienced declines in same location

profit primarily due to the increase in
operating costs

Gross profit for management contracts increased in all operating regions primarily due to the

addition of new locations and
gross margin from same locations being comparable to the prior year In

addition acquisitions were positive contributor to our results The other region declined in
gross

profit percentage due to changes in prior years insurance reserve activity
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Segment general and administrative expense information is summarized as follows

December 31

Region One Region 1vo Region Three Region Four Other Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

in millions

General and administrative expenses

Growth $7.8 $7.3 $4.0 $4.9 8.8 $9.4 $3.1 $3.0 $22.1 $19.6 $45.8 $44.2

Acquisitions 0.6 0.1 1.2 0.5 1.8 0.6

Total general and administrative

expenses $8.4 $7.4 $4.0 $4.9 $10.0 $9.9 $3.1 $3.0 $22.1 $19.6 $47.6 $44.8

General and administrative expenses on segment basis represent
direct administrative costs for

each region The other region consists primarily of the corporate headquarters The increase in region

one is due primarily to our investment in additional business development infrastructure

Results of Operations

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

The following table presents the material factors that impact our revenue

Year Ended

December 31 Variance

2007 2006 Amount

in millions

Lease contract revenue

New location 5.5 0.7 4.8 685.7

Contract expirations
3.3 17.7 14.4 81.4

Same location

Short-term parking 88.5 83.1 5.4 6.5

Monthly parking 40.5 39.1 1.4 3.6

Total same location 129.0 122.2 6.8 5.6

Conversions 5.7 12.2 6.5 100.0

Acquisitions
1.8 0.5 1.3 260.0

Total lease contract revenue $145.3 $153.3 8.0 5.2

Management contract revenue

New location 20.3 4.7 $15.6 331.9

Contract expirations 2.9 11.7 8.8 75.2

Same location 91.8 87.9 3.9 4.4

Conversions 0.7 0.4 0.3 75.0

Acquisitions
3.9 1.8 2.1 116.7

Total management contract revenue $119.6 $106.5 $13.1 12.3

Reimbursement of management contract expense $356.8 $346.1 $10.7 3.1
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Parking services revenuelease contracts Lease contract revenue decreased $8.0 million or 5.2%
to $145.3 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to $153.3 million in the year-ago

period This decrease resulted from reductions in revenue related to contract expirations and

conversions to management contracts offset by an increase in revenues from new locations and

$0.6 million non-cash gain related to the sale of contract right in conjunction with one of the

acquisitions completed during the third quarter Same locations revenue for those facilities which as of

December 31 2007 have been operational minimum of 24 months increased 5.6%

Parking services revenuemanagement contracts Management contract revenue increased

$13.1 million or 12.3% to $119.6 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to

$106.5 million in the year-ago period This increase resulted from revenues from new locations which

was partially offset by reductions in revenue attributable to contract expirations Same location revenue

for those facilities which as of December 31 2007 have been operational minimum 24 months

increased 4.4%

Reimbursement of management contract expense Reimbursement of management contract expenses
increased $10.7 million or 3.1% to $356.8 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to

$346.1 million in the year-ago period This increase resulted from additional reimbursements for costs

incurred on the behalf of owners

The following table presents the material factors that impact our cost of parking services

Year Ended

December 31 Variance

2007 2006 Amount

in millions

Cost of parking services lease contracts

New location 5.2 0.9 4.3 477.8

Contract expirations 1.0 15.2 14.2 93.4
Same location

Rent expense 90.2 84.6 5.6 6.6

Payroll and payroll related expenses 17.6 16.7 0.9 5.4

Other operating costs 8.8 9.5 0.7 7.4

Total same location 116.6 110.8 5.8 5.2

Conversions 5.2 11.7 6.5 55.6
Acquisitions 1.6 0.4 1.2 300.0

Total cost of parking services lease contracts $129.6 $139.0 9.4 6.8

Cost of parking services management contracts

New locations $13.1 3.1 $10.0 322.6

Contract expirations 1.9 6.2 4.3 69.4
Same location

Payroll and payroll related expenses 26.9 19.4 7.5 38.7

Other operating expenses 5.4 15.2 9.8 64.5

Total same location 32.3 34.6 2.3 6.6
Conversions 0.1 0.1

Acquisitions 2.3 1.1 1.2 109.1

Total cost of parking services management contracts 49.7 45.0 4.7 10.4

Reimbursed management contract expense $356.8 $346.1 $10.7 3.1
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Cost of parking serviceslease contracts Cost of parking services for lease contracts decreased

$9.4 million or 6.8% to $129.6 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to

$139.0 million in the
year-ago period This decrease resulted from reductions in costs attributable to

contract expirations and conversions to management contracts that were partially offset by an increase

in costs from new locations and our acquisitions Same location cost increased $5.8 million or 5.2%

Rent expense increased due to contingent rental payments payroll increased less than 1.0% and other

operating cost decreased primarily in supplies In addition we recorded favorable change in insurance

loss experience reserve estimates relating to prior years
of $0.3 million

Cost of parking servicesmanagement contracts Cost of parking services for management

contracts increased $4.7 million or 10.4% to $49.7 million for the
year

ended December 31 2007

compared to $45.0 million in the
year-ago period This increase resulted from an increase in costs from

new reverse management locations and acquisitions which was partially offset by contract expirations

Same location cost decreased $2.3 million or 6.6% Increases in payroll and payroll related expenses

were offset by decreases in operating expenses primarily favorable change in insurance loss

experience reserve estimates relating to prior years of $2.5 million

Reimbursed management contract expense Reimbursed management contract expenses increased

$10.7 million or 3.1% to $356.8 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to

$346.1 million in the year-ago period This increase resulted from additional reimbursed costs incurred

on the behalf of owners
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The following table presents the material changes to the
gross profit and gross profit percentage

on our lease and management contracts

Gross profit lease contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total gross profit lease contracts

Gross profit percentage lease contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total gross profit percentage lease contracts

Gross margin percentage management contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total
gross profit management contracts

Gross profit percentage management contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total
gross profit percentage management contracts

Year Ended

December 31

2007 2006

in millions

Variance

Amount

0.3

2.3

12.4

0.5

0.2

$15.7

5.5%

69.7%

9.6%

8.8%

11.1%

10.8%

$7.2

1.0

59.5

0.6

1.6

$69.9

0.5

0.2
1.0

0.1

$1.4

5.6

4.5
6.2

0.2

0.9

8.4

100.0

8.0
8.8

100.0

9.8

350.0

81.8
11.6

50.0

128.6

13.7

0.2
2.5

11.4

0.5

0.1

$14.3

28.6%
14.1%

9.3%

4.1%

20.0%

9.3%

1.6

5.5

53.3

0.4

0.7

61.5

34.0%

47.0%

60.6%

100.0%

38.9%

57.7%

35.5%

34.5%

64.8%

85.7%

41.0%
_____

58.4%

Gross profitlease contracts Gross profit for lease contracts increased $1.4 million or 9.8% to

$15.7 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to $14.3 million in the year-ago period

Gross profit percentage for lease contracts increased to 10.8% for the year ended December 31 2007

compared to 9.3% in the year-ago period This percentage increase was primarily due to decreases in

costs related to contract expirations and $0.6 million non-cash gain related to the sale of contract

right in conjunction with one of the acquisitions completed during the third quarter

Gross profitmanagement contracts Gross profit for management contracts increased

$8.4 million or 13.7% to $69.9 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to

$61.5 million in the
year-ago period Gross profit percentage for management contracts increased to

58.4% for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to 57.7% in the year-ago period This
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percentage increase was primarily due to favorable change in insurance loss experience reserve

estimates relating to prior years

General and administrative expenses General and administrative expenses increased $3.6 million

or 8.7% to $44.8 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to $41.2 million for the

year-ago period This increase resulted from increases in payroll and payroll related expenses of

$2.7 million an increase in legal fees of $0.5 million an increase in consulting fees of $0.2 million an

increase in training and recruiting of $0.3 partially offset by decrease in other operating expenses of

$0.1 million

Interest expense Interest expense decreased $1.2 million or 14.9% to $7.1 million for the year

ended December 31 2007 compared to $8.3 million in the year-ago period This decrease resulted

primarily from the redemption of the 9% Senior Subordinated Notes the refinancing of our senior

credit facility reduced borrowings under our senior credit facility and decrease in interest rates

Interest income Interest income remained flat at $0.6 million for the year ended December 31

2007 and December 31 2006

Income tax expense benefit Income tax expense increased $26.2 million to $11.3 million for the

year
ended December 31 2007 compared to $14.9 million benefit in the year-ago period In the

fourth quarter of 2006 the Company concluded that certain net operating loss carryforwards and other

deferred tax assets were more likely than not to be realized and accordingly reversed the valuation

allowance by the amount considered recoverable The increase in income tax expense is based on an

effective tax rate of approximately 39% in 2007 compared to benefit of approximately 71% in 2006

The change in our effective tax rate resulted from our reversal of the valuation allowance at

December 31 2006

Segnents

The following tables present the material factors that impact our financial statements on an

operating segment basis

Segment revenue information is summarized as follows

Lease contract revenue

New location revenue

Contract expirations

Same location revenue

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total lease contract revenue

Management contract revenue

New location revenue

Contract expirations

Same location revenue

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total management contract

revenue

Region One Region IWo

2007 2006 2007 2006

4.4

1.1

52.5

3.9

0.8

$62.7

Year Ended December 31

Region Three Region Four

2007 2006 2007 2006

in millions

5.7

1.5

26.7

0.3

3.6

Other Total

2007 2006 2007 2006

4.7

11.7

87.9

0.4

1.8

0.6 0.8 0.3 0.1 5.5 0.7

5.3 0.7 1.3 0.7 8.5 0.3 2.3 0.5 0.3 3.3 17.7

49.5 11.5 10.7 20.5 19.4 44.5 42.6 129.0 122.2

4.1 0.7 1.3 1.2 6.9 0.1 0.1 5.7 12.2

1.0 0.5 1.8 0.5

$59.5 $13.7 $13.3 $23.7 $35.4 $44.8 $44.9 0.4 0.2 $145.3 $153.3

7.9 2.1 2.7 0.4 1.5 4.0 0.7 20.3

1.8 5.7 0.3 4.7 0.1 1.3 0.2 2.9

33.9 32.4 12.7 11.0 26.4 20.5 18.1 2.0 91.8

0.3 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.7

0.3 1.8 3.9

$44.2 $40.5 $15.2 $11.4 $37.8 $34.4 $24.6 $20.1 $2.2 0.1 $119.6 $106.5
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Regions one two and three recorded an increase in new location leases and all regions

experienced increases in same location revenue at rate that approximated our average The client

base for region four currently prefers the structure of management contracts to lease contracts

therefore no new lease contracts were operational in 2007

All regions recorded new business revenue that exceeded any decreases in revenue from contract

expirations Same location revenue increased in all regions with region two recording 15.5% increase

due to several contracts adding ancillary services

Segment cost of parking services information is summarized as follows

Year Ended December 31

__________ __________ ____________
Region Four

_____
2007 2006

in millions

4.1 0.7 0.8 0.1 0.3

1.1 4.8 0.6 0.5
47.7 45.0 9.9 9.5 19.1

3.5 3.8 0.5 1.2 1.2

0.9

Total cost of parking lease

contracts

Cost of parking services

management contracts

New location 4.8 $1.4 $1.6 0.3

Contract expirations 0.4 1.9 0.7 0.5

Same location 12.5 11.0 4.7 4.4

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total cost of parking services

management contracts

Region One

2007 2006

Region IWo Region Three

2007 2006 2007 2006

Cost of parking services lease

contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions 0.7

Other

2007 2006

Total

2007 2006

0.1

8.2

17.8

6.6

0.4

0.4

40.3

2.2

38.6

5.2

0.1 0.5 1.0

0.4 0.1 116.6

0.1 5.2

1.6

0.9

15.2

110.8

11.7

0.4

$57.1 $54.3 $10.6 $10.3 $21.5 $33.1 $40.7 $40.8 $0.3 0.5 $129.6 $139.0

3.2

0.7

11.3

0.8

2.9

11.8

3.6 0.6

0.2 0.9

8.4 7.5

$0.1

0.1

4.6 0.1
0.1

13.1

1.9

32.3

0.1

3.1

6.2

34.6

2.2 1.1 0.1 2.3 1.1

$17.7 $14.3 7.0 5.2 $17.4 $16.6 $12.2 9.0 $4.6 $0.1 49.7 45.0

Regions one two and three recorded an increase in new location leases and all regions

experienced increases in same location costs at rate that approximated our average The client base

for region four currently prefers the structure of management contracts to lease contracts therefore no

new lease contracts were operational in 2007

All regions recorded new business costs that exceeded any decreases in costs from contract

expirations Same location costs increased in all regions with region two recording decrease due to

decrease in supply costs
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Segment lease contract gross profit/gross profit percentage information is summarized as follows

in millions

All regions were at or slightly above the prior year
in gross profit for lease contracts The largest

increase was in the other region for the reason noted previously Lease contracts due to their typically

high rent component will have lower gross profit percentage however they will approximate

management contracts in average gross profit per contract dollars

All regions recorded increases in gross profit for management contracts for the reasons noted

previously Gross profit percentage declines in regions one and four which had our highest

percentages resulted from expirations of fixed fee contracts that have no cost and adding new locations

with cost component which we refer to as reverse management contracts

Year Ended December 31

Region One Region iWo Region Three Region Four

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

in millions

Other Total

2007 2006 2007 2006

0.3 0.1 0.1 0.3

0.5 1.3 1.8 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.4 0.2 2.3

4.8 4.5 1.6 1.2 1.4 1.6 4.2 4.0 0.4 0.1 12.4

0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.5

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2

Gross profit lease contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total gross profit lease

contracts

Gross profit percentage lease

contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total gross profit percentage

0.2
2.5

11.4

0.5

0.1

5.6$ 5.2$ 3.1$ 3.0$ 2.2 $2.3 4.1 $4.1 0.7$ 0.3$15.7 $14.3

percentages

9.1

10.3

12.5

8.9

Gross profit management

contracts

New location 3.1

Contract expirations 1.4

Same location revenue 21.4

Conversions 0.3

Acquisitions 0.3

28.6
14.1

9.3

4.1

20.0

9.3

6.8 16.7 5.5

9.4 185.7 138.5 100.0 3.5 33.3 4.3 80.0 66.7 69.7

9.1 13.9 11.2 6.8 8.2 9.4 9.4 9.6

7.3 28.6 7.7 4.3 100.0 200.0 8.8

10.0 20.0 11.1

8.7 22.6 22.6 9.3 6.5 9.2 9.1 175.0 150.0 10.8

0.1 7.2 1.6

0.1 1.0 5.5

2.6 0.1 59.5 53.3

0.1 0.1 0.6 0.4

0.1 1.6 0.7

0.7

3.8

21.4

0.3

1.1

1.0

8.0

0.1

0.1

0.5
6.6

2.5

0.8

15.4

0.3

1.4

0.7

1.8

14.6

0.7

0.4

0.1

12.1

0.1

0.4

10.6

Total gross profit management

contracts

Gross profit percentage

management contracts

New location

Contract expirations

Same location revenue

Conversions

Acquisitions

Total gross profit percentage

26.5 26.2 8.2 6.2 20.4 $17.8 12.4 $11.1 2.4 0.2 $69.9 61.5

percentages

39.2 33.3 40.7 25.0 43.9 46.7 10.0 14.3 35.5 34.0

77.8 66.7 333.3 53.3 38.3 100.0 30.8 50.0 34.5 47.0

63.1 66.0 63.0 60.0 57.7 55.3 59.0 58.6 130.0 100.0 64.8 60.6

100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 85.7 100.0

100.0 38.9 38.9 41.0 38.9

60.0 64.7 53.9 54.4 54.0 51.7 50.4 55.2 109.1 200.0 58.4 57.7
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Segment general and administrative expense information is summarized as follows

Year Ended December 31

Region One Region 1\vo Region Three Region Four Other Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

in millions

General and administrative expenses

Growth $7.3 $7.3 $4.9 $4.2 $9.4 $8.0 $3.0 $2.9 $19.6 $18.2 $44.2 $40.6

Acquisitions 0.1 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6

Total general and administrative

expenses $7.4 $7.3 $4.9 $4.2 $9.9 $8.6 $3.0 $2.9 $19.6 $18.2 $44.8 $41.2

General and administrative expenses on segment basis represent direct administrative costs for

each region The other region consists primarily of the corporate headquarters The increase in region

three is due primarily to our investment in additional business development infrastructure

Unaudited Quarterly Results

The following table sets forth our unaudited quarterly consolidated statement of income data for

the years ended December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 The unaudited quarterly information has

been prepared on the same basis as the annual financial information and in managements opinion

includes all adjustments consisting only of normal recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly

the information for the quarters presented Historically our revenues and operating results have varied

from quarter to quarter and are expected to continue to fluctuate in the future These fluctuations have

been due to number of factors including general economic conditions in our markets additions of

contracts expiration and termination of contracts conversion of lease contracts to management

contracts conversion of management contracts to lease contracts and changes in terms of contracts that
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are retained The operating results for any historical quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for

Parking services revenue

Lease contracts

Management contracts

Reimbursement of

management contract

expense

Total revenue

Cost of parking services

Lease contracts

Management contracts

Reimbursed management

contract expense

Total cost of parking

services

Gross profit

Lease contracts

Management contracts

Tbtal gross profit

General and administrative

Depreciation and

amortization

Operating income

Other expense income
Interest expense

Interest income

Minority interest

Income before income taxes

Income tax expense

Net income

Common Stock Data1
Net income per share

Basic

Diluted

Weighted average shares

outstanding

Basic

Diluted

.24 .29 .30 .27 .18 .23 .24 .27

.23 .29 .29 .27 .18 .22 .24 .27

any future period

2008 Quarters Ended 2007 Quarters Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

unaudited unaudited

in thousands

37694 40003 38634 37980 35198 35988 36182 37959

35880 36415 36858 36675 28196 28539 31150 31727

99451 99317

173025 175735

34893 34711

17046 18162

99451 99317

151390 152190

2801 5292

18834 18253

21635 23545

11411 12029

1371 1579

8853 9937

101919 99934 90497 87588 85167

177411 174589 153891 152115 152499

35506 34948 32018 31768 31666

16510 17567 11724 11703 13378

101919 99934 90497 87588 85167

153935 152449 134239 131059 130211

3128 3032 3180 4220 4516

20348 19108 16472 16836 17772

23476 22140 19652 21056 22288

12017 12162 10814 10844 11356

1539 1570 1252 1276 1389

9920 8408 7586 8936 9543

93530

163216

34098

12921

93530

140549

3861

18806

22667

11782

1418

9467

1744

117

1627

88

7752

2741

5011

1518 1086 1777 2095 1803 1770 1739

42 41 106 16 219 227 47

1476 1045 1671 2111 1584 1543 1692

122 27 160 89 109

7255 8889 8253 6270 5842 7304 7742

2978 3612 3144 1888 2360 2953 3213

4277 5277 5109 4382 3482 4351 4529

18122846 17891155 17244932 16041375 19206663 18930559 18720641 18468803

18534770 18265653 17694208 16430630 19714829 19394585 19145570 18901321

Share and per share amounts have been retroactively adjusted for the effect of the 2-for-i stock split in January 2008 See

Note for additional information

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Outstanding Indebtedness

On December 31 2008 we had total indebtedness of approximately $125.1 million an increase of

$44.7 million from December 31 2007 The $125.1 million includes

$120.6 million under our senior credit facility and

$4.5 million of other debt including capital lease obligations and obligations on seller notes and

other indebtedness
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We believe that our cash flow from operations combined with additional borrowing capacity under

our senior credit facility which amounted to $68.6 million at December 31 2008 will be sufficient to

enable us to pay our indebtedness or to fund other liquidity needs We may need to refinance all or

portion of our indebtedness on or before their respective maturities We believe that we will be able to

refinance our indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms

Senior Credit Facility

On July 15 2008 we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement with group of six

banks Bank of America N.A as administrative agent issuing lender and as lender Wells Fargo

Bank N.A as syndication agent issuing lender and as lender Fifth Third Bank as lender First

Hawaiian Bank as lender JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as lender and U.S Bank National

Association as lender This credit agreement amended and restated our credit facility dated June 29
2006

The senior credit facility was increased from $135.0 million to $210.0 million The $210.0 million

revolving credit facility will expire in July 2013 The revolving credit facility includes letter of credit

sub-facility with sublimit of $50.0 million and swing line sub-facility with sublimit of $10.0 million

The revolving credit facility bears interest at our option at either LIBOR plus the applicable

LIBOR Margin ranging between 2.00% and 3.50% depending on the ratio of our total funded

indebtedness to our EBITDA from time to time Total Debt Ratio or the Base Rate as defined

below plus the applicable Base Rate Margin ranging between 0.50% and 2.00% depending on our

Total Debt Ratio We may elect interest periods of one two three or six months for LIBOR based

borrowings The Base Rate is the greater of the rate publicly announced from time to time by Bank

of America N.A as its prime rate or ii the overnight federal funds rate plus 0.50%

The senior credit facility includes fixed charge ratio covenant total debt to EBITDA ratio

covenant limit on our ability to incur additional indebtedness issue preferred stock or pay dividends

and certain other restrictions on our activities We are required to repay borrowings under the senior

credit facility out of the proceeds of future issuances of debt or equity securities and asset sales subject

to certain customary exceptions The senior credit facility is secured by substantially all of our assets

and all assets acquired in the future including pledge of 100% of the stock of our existing and future

domestic guarantor subsidiaries and 65% of the stock of our existing and future foreign subsidiaries

Our senior credit facility provides for an event of default if Change of Control occurs

Change of Control would be triggered if among other reasons someone other than affiliates of our

Chairman John Holten directly or indirectly becomes the beneficial owner of more than 50% of

our common stock Our parent company Steamboat Industries LLC which is controlled by Mr Holten

has announced its intent to sell majority and potentially all or substantially all of its stake in the

Company and all of Steamboats Company shares have been pledged to various lenders To the best of

our knowledge and belief Steamboat intends to sell shares in manner that will not and the potential

foreclosure by the Steamboat lenders will not trigger default under the Change of Control

provision Accordingly we do not believe that any likely transaction involving Steamboat will have any

impact on our liquidity capital resources and business operations

We are in compliance with all of our financial covenants

At December 31 2008 we had $20.8 million letters of credit outstanding under the senior credit

facility borrowings against the senior credit facility aggregated $120.6 million and we had $68.6 million

available under the senior credit facility
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Interest Rate Cap Transactions

We use variable rate senior credit facility to finance our operations This facility exposes us to

variability in interest payments due to changes in interest rates If interest rates increase interest

expense increases and conversely if interest rates decrease interest expense also decreases We believe

that it is prudent to limit the exposure of an increase in interest rates

To meet this objective we entered into an interest rate cap transaction with Bank of

America N.A in 2005 allowing us to continue to take advantage of LIBOR based pricing under our

Credit Agreement while hedging our interest rate exposure on portion of our borrowings under the

Credit Agreement Rate Cap Transaction Under the Rate Cap Transaction we received payments

from Bank of America at the end of each quarterly period to the extent that the prevailing three

month LIBOR during that period exceeded our cap rate The Rate Cap Transaction capped our

LIBOR rate on $30.0 million principal balance at 2.5% for total of 18 months which matured on

July 12 2006 and for which we recognized gain of $0.3 million over the life of the cap For the year

ended December 31 2006 we recognized gain of $0.2 million which was reported as reduction of

interest expense in the Consolidated Statement of Income The Rate Cap Transaction began as of

January 12 2005 and settled each quarter on date that coincided with our quarterly interest payment

dates under the Credit Agreement

In 2006 we entered into an additional Rate Cap Transaction with Bank of America which allows

us to limit our exposure on portion of our borrowings under the Credit Agreement Under this Rate

Cap Transaction we receive payments from Bank of America each quarterly period to the extent that

the prevailing three month LIBOR during that period exceeds our cap rate of 5.75% This Rate Cap

Transaction caps our LIBOR interest rate on notional amount of $50.0 million at 5.75% for total of

36 months The Rate Cap Transaction began as of August 2006 and settles each quarter on date

that coincides with our quarterly interest payment dates under the Credit Agreement This Rate Cap

Transaction is classified as cash flow hedge and we calculate the effectiveness of the hedge on

quarterly basis The ineffective portion of the cash flow hedge is recognized in current period earnings

as an increase of interest expense

At December 31 2008 the fair value of the Rate Cap Transaction was immaterial Total changes in

the fair value of the Rate Cap Transaction at December 31 2008 was $0.3 million of which

$0.2 million was recorded as an increase of interest expense in the consolidated statement of income

for the year ended December 31 2008 $0.1 million of this change was due to hedge ineffectiveness

At December 31 2007 the fair value of the Rate Cap Transaction was immaterial Total changes in

the fair value of the Rate Cap Transaction as of December 31 2007 was $0.3 million of which

$0.1 million was reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income net of tax on the consolidated

balance sheet $0.1 million and $42 thousand of this change was recorded as an increase of interest

expense in the consolidated statement of income for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006

respectively

We do not enter into derivative instruments for any purpose other than cash flow hedging

purposes

Stock Repurchases

2008 Stock Repurchases

In December 2007 the Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase shares of our common

stock on the open market or through private purchases up to $25.0 million in aggregate As of

December 31 2007 $22.9 million remained available for repurchase under this authorization
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During the first quarter of 2008 we repurchased from third party shareholders 257125 shares at

an average price of $20.79 per share including average commissions $0.03 per share on the open

market Our majority shareholder sold to us 120111 shares in the first quarter at an average price of

$20.76 per share The total value of the first quarter transactions was $7.8 million 214500 shares were

retired in March 2008 and the remaining 162736 shares were retired in June 2008

During the second quarter of 2008 we repurchased from third
party shareholders 120000 shares at

an average price of $20.70 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open

market Our majority shareholder sold to us 125964 shares in the second quarter at an average price of

$20.67 per share The total value of the second quarter transactions was $5.1 million 173701 shares

were retired in June 2008 and the remaining 72263 were retired during the third quarter

In July 2008 the Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase shares of our common stock on

the open market or through private purchases up to an additional $60.0 million in aggregate

During the third quarter of 2008 we repurchased from third
party shareholders 565447 shares at

an average price of $21.19 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open

market Our majority shareholder sold to us 580060 shares in the third
quarter at an average price of

$21.16 per share In addition we repurchased from third party shareholders 14600 shares at an average

price of $22.66 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open market The

total value of the third quarter transactions was $24.6 million 994841 shares were retired during the

third quarter of 2008 and the remaining 165266 shares were retired in the fourth quarter of 2008

The December 2007 repurchase authorization by the Board of Directors was completed in August

2008

During the fourth quarter of 2008 we repurchased from third party shareholders 640348 shares at

an average price of $18.34 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open
market Our majority shareholder sold to us 545683 shares in the fourth quarter at an average price of

$18.31 per share In addition we repurchased from third party shareholders 24700 shares at an average

price of $18.21 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open market Our

majority shareholder also sold us its pro-rata ownership of third quarter open market repurchase of

14904 shares at an average price of $22.63 per share The total value of the fourth
quarter transactions

was $22.5 million 598212 shares were retired during the fourth quarter of 2008 and the remaining

627423 shares were held as treasury stock and retired during the first quarter of 2009

As of December 31 2008 $22.9 million remained available for repurchase under the July 2008

authorization by the Board of Directors

2007 Stock Repurchases

In March 2007 the Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase shares of our common stock

on the open market or through private purchases up to $20.0 million in aggregate This repurchase

program was completed during the fourth quarter of 2007

During the first quarter of 2007 we repurchased from third party shareholders 95278 shares at an

average price of $17.57 per share including average commissions of $0.01 per share on the open
market Our majority shareholder sold to us 100000 shares in the first quarter at an average price of

$17.56 per share The total value of the first
quarter transactions was $3.4 million All treasury shares

were retired in March 2007

During the second quarter of 2007 we repurchased from third party shareholders 175600 shares at

an average price of $18.33 per share including average commissions of $0.01 per share on the open
market Our majority shareholder sold to us 182808 shares in the second quarter at an average price of
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$18.32 per share The total value of the second quarter transactions was $6.6 million All treasury

shares were retired during the second quarter

During the third quarter of 2007 we repurchased from third party shareholders 135756 shares at

an average price of $18.14 per share including average commissions of $0.01 per share on the open

market Our majority shareholder sold to us 139772 shares in the third quarter at an average price of

$18.13 per share The total value of the third
quarter

transactions was $5.0 million 215012 shares were

retired in September 2007 and the remaining 60516 shares were retired in October 2007

In December 2007 the Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase shares of our common

stock on the open market or through private purchase up to an additional $25.0 million in aggregate

During the fourth quarter of 2007 we repurchased from third party shareholders 74052 shares at

an average price of $20.43 per share including average commissions of $0.01 per share on the open

market and our majority shareholder agreed in each case to sell shares equal to its pro-rata ownership

of 76106 shares at an average price of $20.42 per share In addition we repurchased 167544 shares at

an average price of $24.22 per share including average commission of $0.01 per share on the open

market The total value of the fourth quarter transactions was $7.1 million 269228 shares were retired

during the fourth quarter of 2007 and the remaining 48474 shares were held as treasury stock and

retired during the first quarter of 2008

Letters of Credit

At December 31 2008 we have provided letters of credit totaling $18.4 million to our casualty

insurance carriers to collateralize our casualty insurance program

As of December 31 2008 we provided $2.4 million in letters of credit to collateralize other

obligations

Deficiency Payments

Pursuant to our obligations with respect to the parking garage operations at Bradley International

Airport we are required to make certain payments for the benefit of the State of Connecticut and for

holders of special facility revenue bonds The deficiency payments represent contingent interest bearing

advances to the trustee to cover operating cash flow requirements The payments if any are recorded

as receivable by us for which we are reimbursed from time to time as provided in the trust

agreement As of December 31 2008 we have receivable of $6.0 million comprised of cumulative

deficiency payments to the trustee net of reimbursements We believe these advances to be fully

recoverable and therefore have not recorded valuation allowance for them We do not guarantee the

payment of any principal or interest on any debt obligations of the State of Connecticut or the trustee

We made deficiency payments net of repayments received of $1.8 million in the year ended

December 31 2008 compared to receiving repayments net of deficiency payments of $0.2 million in

the
year

ended December 31 2007 In addition we received $18 thousand on deficiency repayments

from the trustee for premium income in the
year

ended December 31 2008 compared to $0.4 million

for interest and premium income in the year
ended December 31 2007 See Note to our

consolidated financial statements

Capital Leases

We incurred no new capital lease obligations for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to

$30 thousand for the year ended December 31 2007
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Lease Commilments

We have minimum lease commitments of $32.0 million for fiscal 2009 The leased properties

generate sufficient cash flow to meet the base rent payment

Daily Cash Collections

As result of day-to-day activity at our parking locations we collect significant amounts of cash

Lease contract revenue is generally deposited into our local bank accounts with portion remitted to

our clients in the form of rental payments according to the terms of the leases Under management
contracts some clients require us to deposit the daily receipts into one of our local bank accounts with

the cash in excess of our operating expenses and management fees remitted to the clients at negotiated

intervals Other clients require us to deposit the daily receipts into client accounts and the clients then

reimburse us for operating expenses and pay our management fee subsequent to month-end Some

clients require segregated account for the receipts and disbursements at locations Our working

capital and liquidity may be adversely affected if significant number of our clients require us to

deposit all parking revenues into their respective accounts

Our liquidity also fluctuates on an intra-month and intra-year basis depending on the contract mix

and timing of significant cash payments Additionally our ability to utilize cash deposited into our local

accounts is dependent upon the availability and movement of that cash into our corporate account For

all these reasons from time to time we carry significant cash balance while also utilizing our senior

credit facility

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Our primary sources of funds are cash flows from operating activities and changes in working

capital Net cash provided by operating activities totaled $29.3 million for 2008 compared to

$36.3 million for 2007 Cash provided during 2008 included $34.0 million from operations which was

offset by net decrease in working capital of $4.7 million Notes and accounts receivable increased by
$4.6 million which primarily related to an increase in business from new locations and our acquisitions

Other assets increased by $3.0 million which primarily related to deposits made in conjunction with new
business proposals that are refundable and advances to clients for their facility improvements that are

reimbursed to us over contractual term Accounts payable increased by $3.5 million which primarily

resulted from the timing on payments to our clients and new business that are under management
contracts as described under Daily Cash Collections Other liabilities decreased by $1.0 million which

primarily related to accrued rent that decreased due to conversions to management contracts new
contract terms that lowered the contingency rent amount for higher fixed amount and timing of

payment obligations

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled $36.3 million for 2007 compared to $28.8 million

for 2006 Cash provided during 2007 included $30.9 million from operations and net increase in

working capital of $5.3 million Notes and accounts receivable increased by $2.7 million which

primarily related to an increase in business from new locations and our acquisitions Other assets

increased by $2.2 million which primarily related to the implementation of non-qualified deferred

compensation plan Accounts payable increased by $9.4 million of which $6.2 million is the result of

timing on payments to our clients that are under management contracts as described under Daily
Cash Collections and $3.2 million is timing on trade accounts payable and additional volume due to

new business Other liabilities increased by $1.3 million which primarily relates to an increase in

accrued insurance due to insurance reserves for our casualty program
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Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $13.0 million in 2008 compared to $10.7 million in

2007 Cash used in investing activities for 2008 included business acquisitions of $6.3 million capital

expenditures of $6.3 million for capital investments needed to secure and/or extend lease facilities

investment in infonnation system enhancements and infrastructure cost of contract purchases of

$0.6 million and $0.1 million for contingent payments on previously acquired contracts which was

partially offset by $0.3 million of proceeds from the sale of assets

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $10.7 million in 2007 compared to $2.3 million in 2006

Cash used in investing activities for 2007 included business acquisitions of $6.2 million capital

expenditures of $4.5 million for capital investments needed to secure and/or extend leased facilities

investment in information system enhancements and infrastructure and $0.1 million for contingent

payments on previously acquired contracts which was partially offset by $0.1 million of proceeds from

the sale of assets

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities totaled $16.0 million in 2008 compared to $25.5 million in

2007 Cash used in financing activities for 2008 included $60.0 million used to repurchase our common

stock $2.3 million used for payments of debt issuance costs $1.6 million used for payments on capital

leases $0.1 million used for payments on other long-term borrowings offset by $46.4 million in

proceeds from our senior credit facility $0.7 million in proceeds from the exercise of stock options and

$0.9 million in excess tax benefits related to stock option exercises

Net cash used in financing activities totaled $25.5 million in 2007 compared to $29.3 million in

2006 Cash used in financing activities for 2007 included $22.1 million to repurchase our common stock

$2.9 million in payments on the senior credit facility $2.3 million for payments on capital leases

$0.1 million on debt issuance costs and $0.1 million for cash used on other long-term borrowings which

was partially offset by $1.0 million in proceeds from the exercise of stock options and $1.0 million in

excess tax benefits related to stock option exercises

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We had cash and cash equivalents of $8.3 million at December 31 2008 compared to $8.5 million

at December 31 2007 and $8.1 million at December 31 2006 The cash balances reflect our ability to

utilize funds deposited into our local accounts and which based upon availability timing of deposits and

the subsequent movement of that cash into our corporate accounts may result in significant changes to

our cash balances

Summary Disclosures About Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following summarizes certain of our contractual obligations at December 31 2008 and the

effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods The
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nature of our business is to manage parking facilities As result we do not have significant short-term

purchase obligations

Payments due by period

Less than

Total year years years After years

in thousands

Long-term debt1 $147153 5691 $17073 $123754 635

Operating leases2 117152 31556 57309 13855 14432

Capital leases3 3292 1026 1856 410

Other long-term liabilities4 27642 7706 11788 2408 5740
Letters of credit5 20767 5806 6665 5884 2412

Total6 $316006 $51785 $94691 $146311 $23219

Represents principal amounts and interest See Note to our consolidated financial statements

Represents minimum rental commitments excluding contingent rent provisions under all

non-cancelable leases

Represents principal amounts and interest on capital lease obligations See Note to our

consolidated financial statements

Represents deferred compensation customer deposits insurance claims obligation related to 2008

acquisition sales tax on capital leases and deferred partnership fees

Represents amount of currently issued letters of credit at their maturities

$120.6 million in long-term debt and $20.8 million of letters of credit are subject to variable

interest rate The interest rate used to estimate future interest payment subject to variable debt

included in our table is 2.61% which
represents the weighted average interest rate on our variable

debt in effect as of December 31 2008

In addition we made contingent earnout payments of $0.3 million $0.1 million and $0.3 million for

the years ended 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively and we made deficiency payments related to Bradley
of $2.2 million $0.7 million and $0.4 million for the years ended 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively No
amounts have been included on the above schedule related to those payments for future periods as the

amounts if any are not presently determinable

Critical Accounting Policies

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
discusses our consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Accounting estimates are an

integral part of the preparation of the financial statements and the financial reporting process and are

based upon current judgments The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets

and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reported period Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of

their complexity and the possibility that future events affecting them may differ materially from our

current judgments and estimates

This listing of critical accounting policies is not intended to be comprehensive list of all of our

accounting policies In many cases the accounting treatment of particular transaction is specifically

dictated by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America with no need for
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managements judgment regarding accounting policy We believe that of our significant accounting

policies the following may involve higher degree of judgment and complexity

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill

As of December 31 2008 our net long-lived assets were comprised primarily of $17.5 million of

property equipment and leasehold improvements and $10.9 million of contract and lease rights In

accounting for our long-lived assets other than goodwill we apply the provisions of Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 144 Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived

Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of We account for goodwill and other intangible

assets under the provisions of SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets As of

December 31 2008 we had $123.6 million of goodwill

The determination and measurement of an impairment loss under these accounting standards

require the significant use of judgment and estimates The determination of fair value of these assets

utilizes cash flow projections that assume certain future revenue and cost levels assumed discount rates

based upon current market conditions and other valuation factors all of which involve the use of

significant judgment and estimation For the years ended December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

we were not required to record any impairment charges related to long-lived assets or to goodwill

Future events may indicate differences from our judgments and estimates which could in turn result in

impairment charges in the future Future events that may result in impairment charges include

increases in interest rates which would impact discount rates unfavorable economic conditions or other

factors which could decrease revenues and profitability of existing locations and changes in the cost

structure of existing facilities Factors that could potentially have an unfavorable economic effect on our

judgments and estimates include among others changes imposed by governmental and regulatory

agencies such as property condemnations and assessment of parking-related taxes construction or

other events that could change traffic patterns and terrorism or other catastrophic events

Insurance Reserves

We purchase comprehensive casualty insurance including without limitation general liability

garage-keepers legal liability workers compensation and umbrella/excess liability insurance covering

certain claims that occur at parking facilities we lease or manage Under our various liability and

workers compensation insurance policies we are obligated to reimburse the insurance carrier for the

first $250000 of any loss As result we are in effect self-insured for all claims up to the deductible

levels We apply the provisions of SFAS No Accounting for Contingencies in determining the timing

and amount of expense recognition associated with claims against us The expense recognition is based

upon our determination of an unfavorable outcome of claim being deemed as probable and

reasonably estimated as defined in SFAS No This determination requires the use of judgment in

both the estimation of probability and the amount to be recognized as an expense We utilize historical

claims experience along with regular input from third party insurance advisors and actuaries in

determining the required level of insurance reserves Future information regarding historical loss

experience may require changes to the level of insurance reserves and could result in increased expense

recognition in the future

Allowance for Doubiful Accounts

We report accounts receivable net of an allowance for doubtful accounts to represent our

estimate of the amount that ultimately will be realized in cash Management reviews the adequacy of its

allowance for doubtful accounts on an ongoing basis using historical collection trends aging of

receivables and review of specific accounts and makes adjustments in the allowance as necessary

Changes in economic conditions or other circumstances could have an impact on the collection of

existing receivable balances or future allowance considerations
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Income Taxes

We use the asset and liability method of SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes to account

for income taxes Under this method deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the

future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of

existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

measured using enacted tax rates to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary

differences are expected to be recovered or settled We have certain net operating loss carry forwards

which expire between 2021 and 2024 Our ability to fully utilize these net operating losses to offset

taxable income is limited due to the change in ownership resulting from the initial public offering

Internal Revenue Code Section 382 We consider number of factors in our assessment of the

recoverability of our net operating loss carryforwards including their expiration dates the limitations

imposed due to the change in ownership as well as future projections of income Future changes in our

operating performance along with these considerations may significantly impact the amount of net

operating losses ultimately recovered and our assessment of their recoverability

Litigation

We are subject to litigation in the normal course of our business We apply the provisions of SFAS
No Accounting for Contingencies in determining the timing and amount of expense recognition

associated with legal claims against us Management uses guidance from internal and external legal

counsel on the potential outcome of litigation in determining the need to record liabilities for potential

losses and the disclosure of pending legal claims

In addition to any litigation that may arise in connection with insured matters we are subject to

various claims and legal proceedings that consist principally of lease and contract disputes We consider

these claims and legal proceedings to be routine and incidental to our business and in the opinion of

management the ultimate liability with
respect to these proceedings and claims will not materially

affect our financial position operations or liquidity

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rates

Our primary market risk exposure consists of risk related to changes in interest rates We use

variable rate senior credit facility to finance our operations This facility exposes us to variability in

interest payments due to changes in interest rates If interest rates increase interest expense increases

and conversely if interest rates decrease interest expense also decreases We believe that it is prudent
to limit the exposure of an increase in interest rates

To meet this objective we entered into an interest rate cap transaction with Bank of

America N.A in 2005 allowing us to continue to take advantage of LIBOR based pricing under our

Credit Agreement while hedging our interest rate exposure on portion of our borrowings under the

Credit Agreement Rate Cap Transaction Under the Rate Cap Transaction we received payments
from Bank of America at the end of each quarterly period to the extent that the prevailing three

month LIBOR during that period exceeded our cap rate The Rate Cap Transaction capped our

LIBOR rate on $30.0 million principal balance at 2.5% for total of 18 months which matured on

July 12 2006 and for which we recognized gain of $0.3 million over the life of the cap For the year

ended December 31 2006 we recognized gain of $0.2 million which was reported as reduction of

interest expense in the Consolidated Statement of Income The Rate Cap Transaction began as of

January 12 2005 and settled each quarter on date that coincided with our quarterly interest payment
dates under the Credit Agreement

54



In 2006 we entered into an additional Rate Cap transaction with Bank of America which allows us

to limit our exposure on portion of our borrowings under the Credit Agreement Under this Rate

Cap Transaction we receive payments from Bank of America each quarterly period to the extent that

the prevailing three month LIBOR during that period exceeds our cap rate of 5.75% This Rate Cap

Transaction
caps our LIBOR interest rate on notional amount of $50.0 million at 5.75% for total of

36 months The Rate Cap Transaction began as of August 2006 and settles each quarter on date

that coincides with our quarterly interest payment dates under the Credit Agreement This Rate Cap

Transaction is classified as cash flow hedge and we calculate the effectiveness of the hedge on

quarterly basis The ineffective portion of the cash flow hedge is recognized in current period earnings

as an increase of interest expense

At December 31 2008 the fair value of the Rate Cap Transaction was immaterial Total changes in

the fair value of the Rate Cap Transaction at December 31 2008 was $0.3 million of which

$0.2 million was recorded as an increase of interest expense in the consolidated statement of income

for the year ended December 31 2008 $0.1 million of this change was due to hedge ineffectiveness

At December 31 2007 the fair value of the Rate Cap Transaction was immaterial Total changes in

the fair value of the Rate Cap Transaction as of December 31 2007 was $0.3 million of which

$0.1 million was reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income net of tax on the consolidated

balance sheet $0.1 million and $42 thousand of this change was recorded as an increase of interest

expense in the consolidated statement of income for the years
ended December 31 2007 and 2006

respectively

We do not enter into derivative instruments for any purpose other than cash flow hedging

purposes

Our $210.0 million senior credit facility provides for $210.0 million variable rate revolving facility

In addition the credit facility includes letter of credit sub-facility with sublimit of $50.0 million and

swing line sub-facility with sublimit of $10.0 million Interest expense on such borrowing is sensitive to

changes in the market rate of interest If we were to borrow the entire $220.0 million available under

the facility 1% increase in the average market rate would result in an increase in our annual interest

expense of $2.20 million

This amount is determined by considering the impact of the hypothetical interest rates on our

borrowing cost but does not consider the effects of the reduced level of overall economic activity that

could exist in such an environment Due to the uncertainty of the specific changes and their possible

effects the foregoing sensitivity analysis assumes no changes in our financial structure

Foreign Currency Risk

Our exposure to foreign exchange risk is minimal All foreign investments are denominated in U.S

dollars with the exception of Canada We had approximately $1.3 million of Canadian dollar

denominated cash instruments at December 31 2008 We had no Canadian dollar denominated debt

instruments at December 31 2008 We do not hold any hedging instruments related to foreign currency

transactions We monitor foreign currency positions and may enter into certain hedging instruments in

the future should we determine that exposure to foreign exchange risk has increased

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements required by this Item are attached to and are hereby incorporated into

this Report
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ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this annual report our chief executive officer chief

financial officer and corporate controller carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design

and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15e of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act Based upon their evaluation our chief

executive officer chief financial officer and corporate controller concluded that our disclosure controls

and procedures were adequate and effective and designed to ensure that material information relating

to us including our consolidated subsidiaries required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file

under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the required time

periods

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There were no significant changes in our internal controls over financial reporting or any other

factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of the evaluation referred to

above

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15f Our internal control system

is designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and board of directors regarding the

preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements Under the supervision and with the

participation of our management including our chief executive officer chief financial officer and

corporate controller we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over

financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee on Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission COSO Framework Based on

our evaluation under the COSO Framework our management concluded that our internal control over

financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2008

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 has

been audited by Ernst Young LLP an independent registered certified public accounting firm as

stated in their attestation report which is included herein

Limitations of the Effectiveness of Internal Control

control system no matter how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable not

absolute assurance that the objectives of the internal control system are met Because of the inherent

limitations of any internal control system no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that

all control issues if any within company have been detected
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our current board of directors and

executive officers

Age _________________________
62 Director

53 Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer

Treasurer

68 Director

59 Director

48 Executive Vice President Chief Operating Officer

52 Director Chairman of the Board

60 Director

74 Director

47 Director

52 Executive Vice President of Operations

66 Director

56 Executive Vice PresidentGeneral Counsel and

Secretary

59 Executive Vice President of Operations

54 Executive Vice President of Operations

55 President Chief Executive Officer Director

59 Executive Vice PresidentChief Administrative Officer

Karl Andren has served as director since January 2008 Mr Andren was chairman of

Circle-Line Sightseeing Yachts Inc subsidiary of New York Cruise Lines Inc which operates the

leading sightseeing cruise line in New York City from 1981 until July 2007 He has served as director

of President Casinos Inc since 1993 and was member of its audit and compensation committees

Mr Andren earned his B.S degree from Upsala College in 1967 and his M.S in economics from

Penn State University in 1969

Marc Baumann has served as our executive vice president chief financial officer and treasurer

since October 2000 Prior to his appointment as our chief financial officer Mr Baumann was chief

financial officer for Warburtons Ltd in Bolton England from January 1993 to October 2000

Mr Baumann is certified public accountant and member of both the American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants and the Illinois CPA Society He received his B.S degree in 1977 from

Northwestern University and his M.B.A degree from the Kellogg School of Management at

Northwestern University in 1979

Charles Biggs has served as director since June 2004 Mr Biggs was consultant for Deloitte

Consulting professional services firm that provides assurance and advisory tax and management

consulting services from 1968 until his retirement in November 2002 At Deloitte he held various

management positions including National Director of Strategy Services for Deloittes strategy arm and

chairman of Deloitte/Holt Value Associates He has served as director of Qwest Communications

International Inc since April
2004 and is member of their audit committee governance committee

and is chair of the finance committee Mr Biggs earned his B.S degree in Industrial Management from

Kent State University

Name

Karl Andren

Marc Baumann

Position

Charles Biggs

Karen Garrison

Thomas Hagerman
John Holten

Gunnar Klintberg

Leif Onarheim

Petter stberg
John Ricchiuto

Robert Roath

Robert Sacks

Edward Simmons

Steven Warshauer

James Wilhelm

Michael Wolf
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Karen Garrison has served as director since June 2004 She was president of
Pitney Bowes

Business Services from 1999 to 2004 In her 27
years with Pitney Bowes Ms Garrison held series of

positions with increasing responsibilities including vice president of operations and vice president of

finance and chief financial officer She is also director and member of the corporate governance
committee and chairperson of the finance committee of The Kaman Corporation She is director of

Tenet Healthcare and is member of Tenets quality compliance ethics committee and nominating
and governance committee She received her B.S degree in Accounting from Rollins College in 1983

and her M.B.A degree from the Florida Institute of Technology in 1986

Thomas Hagerman has served as our executive vice president and chief operating officer since

October 2007 He also served as our executive vice presidentoperations from July 2004 through

September 2007 and as senior vice president from March 1998 through June 2004 He received his

B.A degree in marketing from The Ohio State University in 1984 and B.A degree in business

administration and finance from Almeda University in 2004

John Holten has served as director and our chairman of the board of directors since 1989

Mr Holten is the sole trustee of The JVH Descendants 2007 Trust and the sole manager of each of

Brats LLC Vinland Industries LLC and Steamboat Industries LLC Mr Holten The JVH
Descendants 2007 Trust and Brats LLC are the owners of all of the membership units in Vinland

Industries LLC which owns all of the membership interest in Steamboat Industries LLC Vinland

Industries LLC was formed in and Mr Holten and The JVH Descendants 2007 Trust acquired their

membership units therein in December 2007 Brats LLC was formed in and it acquired its

membership units in Vinland Industries LLC in April 2008 Steamboat Industries LLC has been our

majority stockholder since May 2004 Mr Holten has also served as chairman and chief executive

officer of AP Holdings Inc our parent company until May 2004 since April 1989 and of Steamboat

Holdings Inc the parent company of AP Holdings Inc Mr Holten has also served as the chairman

and chief executive officer of Holberg Incorporated our indirect parent until March 2001 since 1986

Mr Holten received his M.B.A degree from Harvard University in 1982 and graduated from the

Norwegian School of Economics and Business Administration in 1980

Gunnar Klintherg has served as director since 1989 as vice president from 1998 to 2005 and as

consultant since 2004 Mr Klintberg has also served as vice president and director of

AP Holdings Inc our former parent company until May 2004 from 1989 to 2006 Mr Klintberg has

also served as director vice chairman and secretary of Holberg Incorporated our indirect parent
until March 2001 from 1986 to 2006 and Mr Klintberg is

party to an employment agreement with

and receives compensation from Holberg Incorporated Mr Klintberg received his B.A degree from

Dartmouth College in 1972 and degree in Business Administration from the University of Uppsala
Sweden in 1974

Leif Onarheim has served as director since June 2004 He was elected as member of the

Parliament of the Kingdom of Norway in 2001 and served until 2005 Mr Onarheim is also the

chairman of AW A/S since 200O He is vice chairman of University Hospital of Akershus since

2006 and Marine Harvest ASA since 2006 He served for 10 years as managing director and chief

executive officer of Nora Industries before its merger with Orkla ASA in 1991 and served as chairman

of the merged Orkla Group after the merger until 1992 He is also Partner Norscan AS since 2005
Mr Onarheim served as chairman of NHO Norways largest association of business and industry from

1996 until 2000 Mr Onarheim graduated from the Norwegian School of Economics and Business

Administration in 1960

Petter stberg has served as director since June 2004 He has held various positions at Holberg

Incorporated since 1994 including senior vice president and chief financial officer Mr stberg was

vice president of the Company from October 1999 until January 2001 Mr stberg received his
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B.A degree in International Relations and Economics from Tufts University in 1985 and his M.B.A

degree from Stanford University Graduate School of Business in 1989

John Ricchiuto has served as our executive vice president-operations since December 2002

Mr Ricchiuto joined APCOA Inc in 1980 as management trainee He served as vice president

Airport Properties Central from 1993 until 1994 and as senior vice presidentAirport Properties

Central and Eastern United States from 1994 until 2002 Mr Ricchiuto received his B.S degree from

Bowling Greei University in 1979

Robert Roath has served as director since June 2004 He has been chairman of the advisory

board to L.E.K Consulting stockholder-value consulting firm since May 1997 Mr Roath retired as

chief financial officer and senior vice president of RJR Nabisco Inc in April 1997 where he worked

from September 1990 He has been director of the InterDigital Communications Corporation since

May 1997 and is chairman of the audit committee chairman of the finance committee and member

of the compensation committee Mr Roath is also member of the advisory board of the Robert

Smith School of Business at the University of Maryland Previously Mr Roath was employed by

Colgate Palmolive General Foods GAF Corporation and Price Waterhouse Co He received his

B.S degree in Accounting and Economics from the University of Maryland in 1966 is CPA in

New York and completed Amos Tuck Executive Development program in 1980

Robert Sacks has served as our executive vice presidentgeneral counsel and secretary since

March 1998 Mr Sacks joined APCOA Inc in 1988 and served as general couusel and secretary since

1988 as vice president secretary and general counsel from 1989 and as senior vice president secretary

and general counsel from 1997 to March 1998 Mr Sacks received his B.A degree cum laude from

Northwestern University in 1976 and in 1979 received his J.D degree from Suffolk University where

he was member of the Suffolk University Law Review

Edward Simmons has served as executive vice presidentoperations since August 1999 and as

senior vice president operations from May 1998 to July 1999 Prior to joining our company

Mr Simmons was prØsident chief executive officer and co-founder of Executive Parking Inc

Mr Simmons is currently member of the National Parking Association and the International Parking

Institute Mr Simmons is
past

executive board member of the Parking Association of California

Steven Warshauer has served as our executive vice presidentoperations since March 1998

Mr Warshauer joined the Standard Companies in 1982 initially serving as vice president then

becoming senior vice president
Mr Warshauer received his Degree from the University of

Northern Colorado in 1976 with major in Accounting

James Wilhelm has served as our president since September 2000 as our chief executive officer

and director since October 2001 Mr Wilhelm served as executive vice presidentoperations from

March 1998 to September 1999 and he served as senior executive vice president and chief operations

officer from September 1999 to August 2000 Mr Wilhelm joined the predecessors of Standard Parking

Corporation in 1985 serving as executive vice president beginning in January 1998 Prior to March

1998 Mr Wilhelm was responsible for managing the Midwest and Western Regions which included

parking facilities in Chicago and sixteen other cities throughout the United States and Canada

Mr Wilhelm received his B.A degree from Northeastern Illinois University in 1976

Michael Wolf has served as our executive vice presidentchief administrative officer and

associate general counsel since March 1998 Mr Wolf served as senior vice president and general

counsel of the Standard Parking from 1990 to January 1998 and executive vice president of Standard

Parking since 1q98 Mr Wolf received his B.A degree in 1971 from the University of Pennsylvania and

in 1974 received his J.D degree from Washington University where he served as an editor of the

Washington University Law Quarterly and was elected to the Order of the Coif
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Committees of the Board

The Board has three standing committees to facilitate and assist the Board in the execution of its

responsibilities The committees currently are the Audit Committee the Nominating Corporate
Governance Committee and the Compensation Committee

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has four members Karl Andren Charles Biggs Karen Garrison

and Robert Roath who serves as Chair The Board has determined that each of its members meets

the financial literacy and independence requirements of The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC and that

Ms Garrison and Messrs Andren Biggs and Roath each qua1iI as an Audit Committee financial

expert for purposes of the rules and regulations of the SEC

Nominating Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating Corporate Governance Committee consists of three directors Karen

Garrison who serves as Chair John Holten and Petter stberg Ms Garrison is the only

independent director on this committee

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee consists of four directors Charles Biggs who serves as Chair
John Holten Leif Onarheim and Petter stberg Messrs Biggs and Onarheim are the

independent directors on this committee

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended requires our directors executive

officers and persons who beneficially own more than 10% of our equity securities to file with the

Securities and Exchange Commission initial reports of beneficial ownership of the common stock and

reports of changes in their beneficial ownership and to furnish us with copies of those reports

To our knowledge based solely upon review of copies of reports furnished to us or written

representations from certain reporting persons we believe that during 2006 all Section 16a filing

requirements applicable to our officers directors and 10% stockholders were met in timely manner

except in the following instances Karl Andren filed Form late upon becoming director and he

also filed one Form late reporting one transaction

Codes of Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted code of ethics as part of our compliance program The code of ethics applies

to our chief executive officer chief financial officer and corporate controller In addition we have

adopted code of business conduct that applies to all of our officers and employees Any amendments

to or waivers from our code of ethics will be posted on our website www.standardparking.com copy
of these codes of conduct and ethics will be provided to you without charge upon request to

investor_relations@standardparking.com

Material Changes to the Board Nomination Procedures

There have been no material changes to the prOcedures by which our security holders nominate

directors
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ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

Our Compensation Discussion and Analysis discusses the principles underlying our executive

compensation decisions and the most important factors relevant to an analysis of these decisions It

provides qualitative information regarding the manner and context in which compensation is awarded

to and earned by our named executive officers listed in the Summary Compensation Table and places

in perspective the data presented in the tables and other quantitative information that follows this

section

Our Compensation Committee has administered our executive compensation program since this

Committee was established in conjunction with our initial public offering in June 2004 Broadly stated

the Compensation Committees overall role is to oversee all of our compensation plans and policies

administer our equity plans and policies approve equity grants to our executive officers and review and

approve all compensation decisions relating to the named executive officers

Historically we have employment agreements with all of our named executive officers It is

customary in the parking industry for senior executives to have employment agreements because it

encourages employment continuity and is practical means to insure that client relationships are

protected through the legal enforcement of protective covenants including the covenant not to compete

and the covenant not to solicit customers and employees Moreover these agreements were created in

part to ensure executive continuity since until 2007 we had no programs with substantial executive

retention value through the creation of forfeiture risk e.g pension plan restricted stock etc. Hence

executive retention and protection of our interests have been created in part through the use of

employment agreements

We account for the equity compensation expense for our employees under the rules of SFAS 123R

which we adopted as of January 2006 and which requires us to estimate and record an expense for

each award of equity compensation over the service period of the award Accounting rules also require

us to record cash compensation as an expense at the time the obligation is accrued It is not anticipated

that any executive officers annual cash compensation will exceed $1 million and we accordingly have

not made any plans to qualify for any compensation deductions under Section 162m of the Internal

Revenue Code

Compensation Study

With the Compensation Committees concurrence management engaged Watson Wyatt Worldwide

in the later part of 2008 to determine the relationship of our pay practices to those of other companies

with emphasis on both peer group companies and comparably sized businesses The Watson Wyatt

study which was presented to the Compensation Committee in December 2008 concluded among

other things as follows

Our base salaries were generally above the 50th percentile when compared to general industry

benchmark data

Total cash compensation base salary and annual bonus was positioned at market median

50th percentile

Long-term compensation of the type typically found at most public companies was between the

25th percentile and market median

Total direct compensation base salary annual bonus and long-term compensation was generally

positioned at the 50th percentile
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Compensation Objectives

Our current executive compensation programs are intended to achieve three fundamental

objectives attract and retain qualified key executives many of whom are responsible for developing

nurturing and maintaining the client relationships that are critical to our business motivate

performance to achieve specific strategic and operating objectives of our Company and align

executives interests with the long-term interests of our stockholders As described in more detail below
the material elements of our current executive compensation program for named executive officers

include base salary an annual bonus opportunity in the form of the Management Incentive

Compensation Program perquisites and personal benefits long-term equity incentive opportunity
retirement benefits severance protection for certain terminations of the named executive officers

employment and other post-termination benefits payable upon retirement death or disability

We believe that each element of our executive compensation program helps us to achieve one or

more of our compensation objectives The table below lists each material element of our executive

compensation program and the compensation objective or objectives that it is designed to achieve

Compensation Objective Compensation Element

Attract and retain qualified executives Short Term Annual

Base Salary

Annual Bonus Management Incentive

Compensation Program

Perquisites and Personal Benefits

Long Term

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Retirement Benefits and Deferred

Compensation

Motivate performance to achieve specific Short Term Annual

strategies and operating objectives Annual Bonus Management Incentive

Compensation Program

Long Term

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Align named executive officers and Long Term

stockholders long-term interests Long-Term Incentive Plan

As illustrated by the table above base salaries perquisites and personal benefits retirement

benefits and severance and other termination benefits are all primarily intended to attract and retain

qualified executives These are the elements of our current executive compensation program where the

value of the benefit in any given year is not dependent on performance We believe that in order to

attract and retain top-caliber executives we need to provide them with predictable benefit amounts that

reward the executives continued service Some of the elements such as base salaries and perquisites

and personal benefits are generally paid out on short-term or current basis The other elements are

generally paid out on longer-term basis such as upon retirement or other termination of employment
We believe that this mix of longer-term and short-term components allows us to achieve our dual goals

of attracting and retaining executives

Our annual bonus opportunity is primarily intended to motivate named executive officers

performance to achieve specific strategies and operating objectives although we also believe it helps us

attract and retain executives Our LTIP restricted stock and cash award program and our successor

career restricted stock unit program as described below are primarily intended to align named
executive officers long-term interests with stockholders long-term interests although we also believe it
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will help motivate performance and help us attract and retain executives These are the elements of our

current executive compensation program that are designed to reward performance and the creation of

stockholder value and therefore the value of these benefits is dependent on performance Each named

executive officers annual bonus opportunity is paid out on an annual short-term basis and is designed

to reward performance for that period LTIP compensation which may include the award of restricted

stock units or restricted stock is generally paid out or earned on longer-term basis and is designed to

reward performance over several
years or longer

Compensation Philosophy and Benchmarking

As discussed above our Compensation Committee believes that the compensation of our named

executive officers must be closely aligned with our performance on both short and long-term basis at

responsible levels that are consistent with our cost-conscious culture The changes made in the

structure of our plans in 2007 and 2008 have further aligned the interests of management with those of

stockholders At the same time the Committee recognizes that our compensation programs must be

designed to attract and retain key executives many of whom are responsible for developing nurturing

and maintaining the client relationships that are important to producing superior results for our

stockholders

For benchmarking purposes the Compensation Committee believes that the most reasonable

approach is to evaluate our pay practices for senior executives against that of general industry

regressed for the size of the organization General industry data has been culled from multiple survey

databases including the 2008/2009 Watson Wyatt Top Management Survey the 2008 Mercer Executive

Compensation Survey and two proprietary surveys covering top management in service industries We
do not believe that it is appropriate to establish compensation levels based primarily on other parking

companies for several reasons

The parking industry is quite fragmented and typically its compensation policies and practices

stem directly from privately held non-public owners culture

The single peer group company in the parking industry is engaged in multiple business segments

and parking represents only minor part
of its business The other large parking companies

have gone private Accordingly we cannot readily acquire sufficient parking industry data with

which to form foundation for policy

Given the information obtained from the current and previous compensation studies the

Committee has informally adopted guideline that targets
total cash compensation in the

50th percentile range for executive officers when benchmarked to general industry data This range

however is merely guideline because the Committee does not believe in fixing compensation levels

based only on benchmarking The Committee believes that other factors should be considered and

weighted appropriately including but not limited to the history underlying our current compensation

levels relative compensation levels among our senior executives pay levels in the parking industry as

well as our overall performance in relation to the performance of other parking companies The

Companys actual cash compensatiOn practice is at the market median

We manage our pay structure and make compensation decisions using combination of policies

practices and inherent logic We have pay for performance culture as exemplified by our

management of salaries bonus compensation and equity compensation Base salaries typically are

adjusted to provide cost of living increases and our executives true upside potential has been provided

through bonus and stock option or other stock award opportunities available under our annual cash

and long-term incentive plans This philosophy and approach are strengthened by our increased use of

benchmark data during the base salary annual bonus and long-term compensation review process
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Compensation Program Components

Our compensation to the named executive officers consists primarily of the following elements

base salary management incentive compensation perquisites and personal benefits long-term incentive

plan compensation retirement benefits and deferred compensation opportunities and severance and

other benefits upon termination of employment or change in control

Base Salay

Base salary is critical element of named executive officer compensation because it is the source

of their consistent income stream and is the most visible barometer of evaluation vis-à-vis the

employment market In establishing and reviewing base salaries the Compensation Committee

considers various factors that include the executives qualifications and experience scope of

responsibilities internal pay equity past performance and achievements future expectations that

include the executives ability to impact short- and long-term results as well as the salary practices at

other comparable companies We strive to provide our named executive officers with competitive base

salary that is in line with their roles and responsibilities when compared to companies of comparable

size In April 2008 three of the named executive officers received cost of living increases to their base

salaries one named executive officer received merit base salary increase and the base salary of one

named executive officer was increased in lieu of car allowance Given the continuing deterioration in

both the U.S and Canadian economies in the later part of 2008 and the first quarter of 2009 we have

frozen base salaries for all named executive officers and other salaried employees for 2009

Management Incentive Compensation

Our named executive officers other than Mr Holten participate in our Management Incentive

Compensation Program which provides for an annual incentive bonus Our Compensation Committee

oversees this program and it creates annual performance criteria that are flexible and that change with

the needs of our business By creating target awards and setting performance objectives at the

beginning of each fiscal year our named executive officers have the proper incentives to attain the key

performance metrics in the business

In 2008 our Chief Executive Officers target incentive bonus opportunity was $150000 for

achieving the pre-established planned pre-tax net income goal of $30850659 Threshold payments

5% of the target award were eligible to be made commencing at 80% of the pre-tax net income goal

and the maximum award opportunity was 185% $277500 of the target based on exceeding the pre-tax

net income goal by 25% or more In 2007 our Chief Executive Officers target incentive bonus

opportunity was $150000 for achieving the pre-established planned pre-tax net income goal of

$25013631 Threshold payments 5% of the target award were eligible to be made commencing at

80% of the pre-tax net income goal and the maximum award opportunity was 185% $277500 of the

target based on exceeding the pre-tax net income goal by 25% or more

Messrs Warshauer Wolf and Baumann also participate in the Management Incentive

Compensation Program and had target bonus opportunity of $91800 $95000 and $137475

respectively in 2008 For Mr Warshauer the goals included attainment of the budgeted corporate

EBITDA 50% budgeted divisional pre-tax net income 30% location retention 10% and audit

results 10% For Messrs Wolf and Baumann the goals are budgeted corporate EBITDA 75% and

cost center budget management 25% The target bonus opportunities for Messrs Baumann Wolf and

Warshauer were $91800 $76979 and $124692 respectively in 2007 The maximum award opportunity

as percentage of the total target opportunity for Mr Warshauer was less than that for

Messrs Baumann and Wolf because two of the four metrics applicable to Mr Warshauers bonus

opportunity location retention and audit results by their nature did not provide for greater than 100%

attainment whereas both of the metrics comprising Messrs Baumanns and Wolfs total bonus
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opportunities by their nature allowed for greater than 100% attainment The percentage of target

bonus opportunity earned by Messrs Warshauer Wolf and Baumann based on the level of goal

attainment achieved varied from 108% to 114% in 2007 and from 83% to 102% in 2008

We believe that the pre-tax income measure for our Chief Executive Officer and an EBITDA

measure for the other named executive officers that participate in the program are appropriate

measures of performance at this time These measures may evolve and ultimately be modified as

circumstances warrant including possible adjustments due to acquisitions and other atypical events The

fixed goals for the named executive officers are all metric driven and do not involve subjective

assessment With the exception of Mr Baumann whose target opportunity is based on percentage of

his base salary the other participating executives target bonus opportunities are fixed and subject to

change only via approval of the Compensation Committee

Perquisites and Personal Benefits

In addition to base salaries and annual bonus opportunities we provide our named executive

officers with certain perquisites and personal benefits including 2008 automobile-related expenses for

Mr Warshauer We believe that perquisites are often way to provide the named executive officers

with additional annual compensation that supplements their base salaries and bonus opportunities

When determining each named executive officers base salary we take the value of each named

executive officers perquisites and personal benefits into consideration

The perquisites and personal benefits paid to each named executive officer in 2008 are reported in

column of the Summary Compensation Table below and further described in the footnotes thereto

Long-Term Incentive Plan LTIP Compensation

In 2007 the Compensation Committee adopted LTIP performance restricted stock and cash

award program for our named executive officers other than Mr Holten When the LTIP restricted

stock and cash award program was originally adopted it was contemplated that new three-year

performance cycle would commence every calendar year beginning in 2007 However our shareholders

approved an amendment to our Long-Term Incentive Plan at our 2008 Annual Meeting that increased

the number of shares of common stock available for award thereunder and the Compensation

Committee and Board of Directors approved one-time grant of career restricted stock units that were

awarded to the members of our senior management team on July 2008 in lieu of any further

incentive compensation pursuant to the LTIP performance restricted stock and cash award program for

cycles that otherwise would have started in 2008 and thereafter Accordingly the only performance

cycle implemented under the LTIP performance restricted stock and cash award program will be the

single performance cycle spanning the period from 2007 through 2009

An overview of the underlying objectives and details of the July 2008 one-time grant of career

restricted stock units is as follows

Objectives

Achieve Significant Equity Investment By Senior Management To Align Their Long-Term Interests

With Shareholders One of our basic compensation objectives is to align our executives interests

with the long-term interests of our shareholders We believe we can further that objective if the

members of our senior management team possess significant equity interest in the Company

Retain Senior Management Our ongoing future success depends in large part on our success in

retaining the members of our senior management team We believe that meaningful grant of

time-restricted stock units which represents substantial value to the recipient on day one will

achieve our retention objective

65



Overview of Award Details

Time Restrictions The restricted stock units RSUs are subject to time restriction that will

be removed from one-third of them after ten years of continuous service from another one-third

after eleven years of continuous service and from the final one-third after twelve years of

continuous service Anyone reaching retirement age typically age 65 before the expiration of

the twelve-year period would be entitled to have all restrictions removed at that time

Limitation on Sale after Restriction Removal In the year that restrictions are removed the

executive will be entitled to sell enough unrestricted shares to enable him to pay the state and

federal income taxes incurred by reason of the restriction removal Of the remaining unrestricted

shares individuals would be expected to comply with the Long-Term Incentive Plan Stock

Ownership Policy Statement as approved and modified by the Board from time to time

Individuals whose employment terminates will have no limitations on their right to sell

unrestricted shares after the time of termination

Rights On Termination The award agreements each address the recipients rights in the event his

employment terminates prior to the removal of the time restrictions from all of the RSUs An
executive who voluntarily resigns other than for good reason or who is terminated for cause will

forfeit all RSUs as to which the time restriction has not lapsed as of the time of termination An
executive who is terminated by us without cause would retain prorated portion of his award

and the time restrictions would be removed from the retained shares immediately upon
termination Similar treatment would be given to an executive who resigns for good reason or

whose employment is terminated due to the executives permanent disability or death

Non-Compete The award agreements prohibit the executive from competing with us for

designated period of time after his employment terminates regardless of the termination

reason Any executive who violates these provisions will forfeit 100% of the award and we will

be entitled to sue the executive to recover the proceeds of any award shares previously sold by

the executive

As noted above the LTIP performance restricted stock and cash award program will continue only

though the first cycle 2007-09 This program provides our named executive officers other than

Mr Holten with the opportunity to earn combination of stock 50% and cash 50% if certain

three-year performance targets for pre-tax net income and pre-tax free cash flow are achieved The

executive was issued performance-restricted stock at the commencement of the performance cycle that

becomes free of restrictions upon the achievement of the performance goals In this way the executive

has the opportunity to benefit from any share appreciation during the performance period For the

three-year performance cycle the maximum potential award is $150000 for our Chief Executive Officer

and $60000 for any of our other participating named executive officers while the target award is

$100000 for the Chief Executive Officer and $40000 for the participating named executive officers

The percentage of target award upon which the restrictions have lapsed through the second year of the

performance cycle is 60%

This performance restricted stock and cash award program became operational starting in 2007

and the targets have been set for the 2007 2009 performance cycle Concurrently with the adoption of

this program we have established stock ownership guidelines for the named executive officers providing

that 50% of any stock earned under the program will be retained by the executive while he is in our

employ The plan also provides that if the executive violates any of the protective covenants in his

employment contract including the covenant not to compete or the covenant not to solicit customers

the executive will forfeit any restricted stock awards granted together with any restricted stock awards

as to which the restrictions lapsed during the three-year period prior to such violation
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In determining the number of any options or shares of restricted stock or restricted stock units

that may be granted to named executive officers the Compensation Committee takes into account the

individuals position scope of responsibility ability to affect the profitability of the business as well as

long-term stockholder value All option or stock grants are issued so the grant price reflects the market

value on the date of grant

Retirement Benefits and Deferred Compensation Opportunities

Deferred compensation is tax-advantaged means of providing certain named executive officers

with additional compensation that supplements their base salaries and bonus opportunities including

our 401k plan In addition we have entered into various agreements over the years with certain

named executive officers that provide for various retirement benefits and deferred compensation

opportunities These plans grew out of perceived need to provide some form of retirement income to

executives and are intended to provide modest payment towards retirement

Mr Wilhelm is party to Deferred Compensation Agreement with us dated August 1999

which we refer to as supplemental early retirement plan SERP This SERP provides him with an

annual retirement benefit equal to $112500 to begin upon his retirement at age 65 and to continue for

period of 15 years thereafter or if earlier until his death If Mr Wilhelms employment with us is

terminated other than as result of his disability prior to his attaining age 65 he shall not be entitled

to any payments under the SERP

Pursuant to the terms of Mr Baumanns employment agreement we have agreed to pay the

premiums on certain insurance policies owned by Mr Baumann that will provide an annual cash

benefit to him for period of 15 years beginning in the year in which Mr Baumann attains age 65

The current amount of the annual premium is $78228 If Mr Baumanns employment is terminated

other than for cause or other than by Mr Baumann without good reason we will continue to pay the

premiums on the insurance policies
until the earlier of Mr Baumanns death or his attainment of

age 65

Pursuant to the terms of Mr Wolfs employment agreement starting January 2004 we have

agreed to pay $62000 in premiums annually on certain insurance policies or other investment vehicles

owned by Mr Wolf Our obligation to pay that amount each year shall continue until the earlier of

2014 or Mr Wolfs death

Severance and Other Benefits Upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control

In general the employment agreements of the named executive officers have provisions that are

triggered if they are terminated for various reasons Please see the Potential Payments Upon

Termination or Change-in-Control section below for description of the potential payments that may

be made to the named executive officers in connection with their termination of employment or

change-in-control In addition our Board has the discretion to accelerate the vesting of unvested

options or restricted stock awards in the event of change in control

Determination of 2008 Compensation

Compensation of Our Chief Executive Officer

Mr Wilhelms 2008 compensation was governed largely by his employment agreement with us

Under that agreement Mr Wilhelm earned salary of $618635 in fiscal 2008 Under our Management

Incentive Compensation Program Mr Wilhelm earned $172800 for 2008 We also granted 104000

RSUs to Mr Wilhelm in 2008 under our Long-Term Incentive Plan Additionally as result of the

attainment of the cumulative second year performance targets for pre-tax free cash flow and net

income under the LTIP performance restricted stock and cash award program restrictions were
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removed from 1040 shares of performance restricted stock previously awarded to Mr Wilhelm and

Mr Wilhelm received $20000 th cash Our liability for Mr Wilhelms SERP benefit increased by
$45626 during fiscal 2008 and our total liability under this SERP is $560780 as of December 31 2008
Other compensation including perquisites totaled $40208

Compensation of Our Other Named Executive Officers

Our Chief Executive Officer Chief Administrative Officer and Senior Vice President of Human
Resources regularly and routinely work with our Compensation Committee throughout the year with

input as appropriate from our outside legal counsel as well as from our outside compensation

consultants Watson Wyatt Worldwide to assist the Committee in addressing and discharging its duties

and obligations under its Charter Our Chief Executive Officer plays an integral and instrumental role

in making specific recommendations to the Compensation Committee regarding the compensation for

all of the named executive officers other than the Chairman or the Chief Executive Officer himself

The compensation of our Chairman and our Chief Executive Officer is decided by our Board of

Directors

We entered into an employment agreement with John Holten in May 2004 to serve as Chairman

of the Board of Directors This employment agreement was automatically extended for an additional

four-year term commencing in May 2009 Under this contract Mr Holten received base salary of

$456221 in fiscal 2008 Although he is eligible for an annual bonus and equity awards none was

awarded in 2008 Pursuant to his employment agreement Mr Holten and an entity controlled by him
received other payments totaling $213925 the vast majority of which related to personal secretarial

assistance and use of an executive office Mr Holtens total compensation in 2008 was $670146

All of our other named executive officers have entered into employment agreements with us and

their compensation is governed largely by their respective agreements The annual
salary for each as of

March 2009 was as follows Mr Warshauer$429666 Mr Wolf$382606 and Mr Baumann
$401921 Mr Warshauer received 1.66% base salary increase in 2009 that reflected solely the

addition of separate annual car allowance that has been discontinued Awards made to these three

executives for 2008 under the Management Incentive Compensation Program based on their individual

achievement of their respective performance goals ranged from $76079 to $140369
Messrs Warshauer Wolf and Baumann were each awarded 42000 RSUs under our Long-Term
Incentive Plan on July 2008 Mr Baumann received $80988 for certain retirement benefits as

described in the Retirement Benefits and Deferred Compensation Opportunities section above and

for separate life insurance premium payment Mr Wolf received $62690 for certain retirement

benefits as described in the Retirement Benefits and Deferred Compensation Opportunities section

above and for certain long-term disability insurance benefits

Determination of 2009 Compensation

Due to the continuing deterioration in both the U.S and Canadian economiesin the later
part of

2008 and early 2009 we have frozen salary levels for all named executive officers and other salaried

employees for 2009 The annual target bonus opportunities for the named executive officers are either

fixed by agreement or function of the salary level and in either case will be maintained at 2008 levels

Additionally we do not expect to make any additional awards under the Long-Term Incentive Plan in

2009
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Reasonableness of Compensation

After considering all components of the compensation paid to the named executive offcers the

Compensation Committee has determined that the compensation is reasonable and not excessive In

making this determination the Compensation Committee considered many factors including

Management has led us to record performance levels in recent years

Our stockholder return performance has outpaced the performance of companies in the peer

group and in particular our direct competitors and

Based on the Watson Wyatt study the total cash compensation levels for our named executive

officers is positioned at market median when compared to general industry and total direct

compensation including the long- term incentive plan is at the 50th percentile

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors has reviewed and discussed with

management the foregoing Compensation Discussion and Analysis and based on such review and

discussion the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the

Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Form 10-K for filing with the Securities

and Exchange Commission

By the Compensation Committee

Charles Biggs

John Holten

Leif Onarheim

Petter stberg
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the compensation earned awarded or paid for services rendered to

us in all capacities for the fiscal years ending December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 by our Principal

Executive Officer PEO Principal Financial Officer PFO and the three other highest paid executive

officers other than the PEO and PFO These persons are referred to collectively as the named
executive officers

change

in

Non-Equity Pension

incentive and

Stock Plan NQDC All

Awards Option compensation Earnings Other
Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonns $1 Awards $2 $3 Compensation Total

James Wilhelm 2008 618635 305991 192800 45626 290354 1192087
Chief Executive 2007 600000 25392 30000 244300 38811 34149 972652
Officer PEO 2006 600000 72000 203400 46577 30750 952727

Mare Baumann 2008 391009 66304 148369 940955 699777
Chief Financial 2007 355782 10157 7125 145901 97729 616694
Officer FF0 2006 343752 17100 127502 101762 590116

John Holten 2008 456221 2139256 670146
Chairman 2007 443024 227556 670580

2006 415053 253754 668807

Michael Wolf 2008 382337 148854 105000 768687 713059
EJ/R Chief Administrative 2007 375606 10157 7125 87223 75317 555428
Officer 2006 375606 17100 81469 75641 549816

Steven Warshaucr 2008 418714 45561 84079 161598 564513
EJ/POperations 2007 405115 10157 7125 105000 12711 540108

2006 395377 17100 76887 12107 501471

The amounts for 2008 included in column reflect the current year expense attributable to shares of common stock underlying
the restricted stock units issued on July 2008 and ii the current year expense attributable to the LTIP performance restricted

stock and cash award program for the 2007-2009
cycle calculated pursuant to SFAS 123R

The amounts for 2008 included in column reflect the vested portion of the cash award component of the LTIP performance
restricted stock and cash award program for the 2007-2009 cycle and ii cash bonuses paid pursuant to our Management Incentive

Compensation Program

The amounts for 2008 included under column for Mr Wilhelm reflect the difference between our liability for Mr Wilhelms
SERP benefit at the beginning and end of each respective year

The amount for 2008 shown in column for Mr Wilhelm reflects contributions made by us under our 401k plan in the amount
of $4600 $483 for group term life insurance and $331 in premiums for an executive long-term disability policy It also includes

$3468 in company-paid parking $15947 in club dues and $450 in airline clubs It also includes $3756 attributable to

comprehensive physical exam paid for by the company

The amount for 2008 shown under column for Mr Baumann reflects contributions made by us under our 401k plan in the

amount of $4600 and $483 for group term life insurance It also includes $3468 in company-paid parking $400 in airline upgrades
and $400 in airline clubs Also included arc payments in the amount of $3756 attributable to company-paid comprehensive

physical exam and premium payments of $80988 made in 2008 for insurance policies on behalf of Mr Baumann

The amount for 2008 shown under column for Mr Holtcn reflects payments made by us pursuant to Mr Holtens employment
agreement and includes $196030 paid to Holberg Incorporated an affiliate of Mr Holtcn in reimbursement of various office-

related expenses $17412 in reimbursement of automobile lease payments and $483 in group term life insurance

The amount for 2008 shown under column for Mr Wolf reflects contributions made by us under our 401k plan in the amounts

of $4600 and $903 for group term life insurance It also includes $3468 in company-paid parking $200 in airline upgrades and $400

in airline clubs Finally the amount also includes payments in the amount of $4607 attributable to comprehensive physical exam
paid for by us and premium payments of $62690 made in 2008 for insurance policies on behalf of Mr Wolf

The amount for 2008 shown under column for Mr Warshauer reflects contributions made by us under our 401k plan in the

amount of $4600 It also includes $7020 in car allowance $300 in airline club dues $483 in contributions to group term life

insurance
policy

and $3756 attributable to comprehensive physical exam paid for by us
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Employment Agreements

Mr Wilhelm We entered into an Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement with

Mr Wilhelm on January 28 2009 to replace his August 1999 employment agreement which having

been amended seven times had become cumbersome document The material changes in the

amended and restated agreement as compared to the original agreement include certain commitments

by us to Mr Wilhelm provided that his employment continues until he attains the age of 58 Those

commitments include our obligation from and after the time of termination of Mr Wilhelms

employment until he attains age 65 to continue providing at our expense health insurance

coverage for Mr Wilhelm and his wife and ii to pay certain insurance premiums related to

Mr Wilhelms supplemental executive retirement benefits In addition the amended and restated

agreement adjusts the period of Mr Wilhelms non-competition obligations from 60 months to

18 months if his employment is terminated for cause or performance reasons or by reason of his

voluntary resignation or disability in order to correspond with the period over which salary

continuation payments are made in those cases The period of Mr Wilhelms non-competition

obligations remains at five years in the event his employment is terminated for any other reason

Mr Wilhelms annual salary is governed by his employment agreement His annual salary as of

March 2009 is $624576

Messrs Warshaue Wolf and Baumann We also have employment agreements with each of our

other named executive officers The agreements for Mr Wolf and Mr Baumann were amended

January 28 2009 to be consistent with treatment afforded to other peer executives regarding salary

continuation payments upon termination of employment Specifically the agreements for Messrs Wolf

and Baumann provide that for period of 24 months following termination of their employment for

any reason other than for cause or the executives voluntary termination they will receive payments at

the rate of their most recent annual base salaries and target bonuses

Each executives compensation is governed largely by his respective employment agreement The

annual salary for each as of April 2009 is as follows Mr Warshauer$429666 Mr Wolf$382606

and Mr Baumann $401921 The annual car allowance that Mr Warshauer previously received has

been discontinued and added to his 2009 annual base salary For 2009 all executives salaries have been

frozen Each of the named executive officers other than Mr Holten is entitled to an annual bonus

based on corporate financial performance goals set annually The formula and method of bonus

calculation are identified in the Compensation Discussion and AnalysisManagement Incentive

Compensation section In addition Mr Wilhelm is entitled to reimbursement for country club

initiation fees and monthly dues The agreements also provide for reimbursement of travel and other

expenses in connection with their employment As of April 2009 the employment agreements

terminate on the following dates subject to the expiration of the annual renewal notice period

Mr WilhelmMay 2011 Mr WarshauerDecember 31 2009 Mr WolfMarch 26 2010 and

Mr BaumannOctober 2010

Mr Holten We have an employment agreement with John Holten to serve as Chairman of the

Board of Directors and to be elected to and serve as member of the Compensation and the

Nominating Corporate Governance Committees if such membership is permitted under applicable

NASDAQ rules Mr Holten is entitled to receive base salary of not less than $400000 with annual

cost of living adjustments and an annual bonus and equity awards determined if he directly or

indirectly owns majority of our outstanding equity interests by the Audit Committee or otherwise by

the Compensation Committee Mr Holtens base salary for 2008 was $456704 The total expense of his

salary bonus automobile allowance personal secretarial assistance executive offices and all other

compensation benefits and perquisites for 2008 was $670146

Mr Holtens employment agreement began in May 2004 automatically renewed for an additional

four-year term starting in May 2009 and will run through May 2013 The term of employment shall be
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renewed automatically for successive four-year periods unless we provide Mr Holten or Mr Holten

provides us with written notice to the contrary at least one year prior to the end of any four-year

renewal period Any notice of non-renewal by us shall not be valid unless accompanied by resolution

duly adopted by not less than of all of the disinterested members of the Board or as otherwise

required by applicable law regulations or rules

Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2008

The following table sets forth information regarding grants of restricted stock units to our named
executive officers that received RSUs pursuant to our Long-Term Incentive Plan and bonus amounts

achievable pursuant to our Management Incentive Compensation Program during 2008 These RSUs

represent the right subject to the terms conditions and vesting schedule of the Plan and applicable

restricted stock unit agreement to receive distribution of share of our common stock The RSUs
vest in one-third installments on each of the tenth eleventh and twelfth anniversaries of the grant date

and the agreements provide for accelerated vesting upon the recipients retirement

Estimated Future Payouts

Under Non-Equity
Incentive Plan Awards1

Threshold Target Maximum
Name Grant Date

__________ ____________

James Wilhelm 7500 150000 277500
Marc Baumann 9451 137475 171844

Michael Wolf 6532 95000 118750

Steven Warshauer 7497 91800 110160

The amounts included in columns and reflect the bonus amounts achievable pursuant

to our Management Incentive Compensation Program

Column sets forth the number of RSUs granted on July 2008

7/1/2008

7/1/2008

7/1/2008

7/1/2008

All Other

Stock

Awards

Number of

Shares of

Stock or

Units2

104000

42000

42000

42000

Grant Date
Fair Value of

Stock and

Option Awards

22.00

22.00

22.00

22.00
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End 2008

The following table shows grants of stock options and stock awards subject to performance

restrictions outstanding on December 31 2008 the last day of our fiscal year to those of our named

executive officers who received options

Option Awards Stock Awards

Equity Incentive Equity Incentive

Plan Awards Plan Awards

Number of Number of Market or Payout

Securities Unearned Value of Unearned

Underlying Shares Shares Units

Unexercised Option Option Units or Other or Other Rights

Options Exercise Expiration Rights That Have that Have Not

Name Exercisable2 Price Date1 Not Vested Vested

James Wilhelm 98914 3.1715 1/30/2012 23463 45372

22175 5.75 1040004 2011360

Marc Baumann 11889 3.1715 1/30/2012 9383 18141

16520 5.75 420005 812280

Michael Wolf 11889 3.1715 1/30/2012 9383 18141

16520 5.75 420006 812280

Steven Warshauer 15890 3.1715 1/30/2012 9383 18141

12391 5.75 420007 812280

These options have no express termination date By the terms of the Long-Term Incentive Plan pursuant

to which they were issued the options must be exercised if at all within designated period following

the termination of the executives employment ranging from 90 days in the case of termination for

any reason other than death disability or for cause to 12 months in the case of termination due to

death or disability All rights to exercise these options cease in the event of termination for cause

All listed options are fully vested

These restricted stock awards to the extent earned will vest on 1/1/2010

These RSUs will vest on 2/9/2012

These RSUs will vest on 7/16/2015

These RSUs will vest on 6/20/2011

These RSUs will vest on 11/16/2019

Option Exercises and Stock Vested During 2008

The following table shows the number of shares acquired upon exercise of options as well as the

shares of stock that became free of restrictions and the value of by each participating named executive

officer during the year ended December 31 2008

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number of Number of

Shares Shares

Acquired on Value Realized on Acquired on Value Realized on

Name Exercise Exercise Vesting Vesting

James Wilhelm 27000 479064 1040 20114

Marc Baumann 15892 302649 416 8045

Michael Wolf 15892 270865 416 8045

Steven Warshauer 15891 351930 416 8045
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Option Re-Pricing

We have not engaged in any option re-pricings or other modifications to any of our outstanding

equity awards during fiscal year 2008

Pension Benefits

The following table describes pension benefits to our participating named executive officers

Years of Credited Present Value of Payments During Last

Executive Plan Name Service Accumulated Benefit Fiscal Year

James Wilhelm Deferred Compensation $560780

Agreement

The benefit provided under Mr Wilhelms SERP is not based on credited service calculation or

vesting but rather is fixed benefit payable at age 65 subject to certain restrictions contained in

the Compensation Discussion and Analysis under the section titled Retirement Benefits and

Deferred Compensation Opportunities

Nonqualified Defined Contribution and Other Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plans

Our named executive officers other than Mr Holten participated in Deferred Compensation

Plan that provided each with the opportunity to defer an amount which when combined with his

401k plan deferral will equal the maximum allowable deferral pursuant to the IRS section 415 limits

The following table sets forth the nonqualified deferred compensation of our named executive officers

that received such compensation for the fiscal year ending December 31 2008

Executive Aggregate Aggregate

Contributions in Earnings in Balance at

Name Last FY $1 Last FY $2 Last FYE

James Wilhelm 42179 12874 37126
Marc Baumann 12679 5249 15251

Michael Wolf 22179 4362 25639
Steven Warshauer 12679 5361 15139

The amounts included in this column are included as Salary in column of the

Summary Compensation Table

The amounts included in this column
represent the loss incurred with respect to the

non-qualified deferred compensation contributions by the named executive officer

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control

Potential Payments to Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to Mr Wilhelms employment agreement if he is terminated for any reason we are

obligated to pay him or his estate as applicable an amount equal to his base salary earned through the

date of termination plus accrued but unused vacation pay and other benefits earned through the date

of termination In addition we are required to make the following payments to Mr Wilhelm

if his termination occurs for any reason other than cause ii performance reasons iii his

voluntarily resignation without good reason as defined in his employment agreement or iv his

disability an amount equal to five times the sum of his most recent annual base salary plus the
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amount of any annual bonus paid to him for the immediately preceding calendar year payable

in equal monthly installments over period of 60 months

if we terminate him for cause an amount equal to $100000 payable in equal monthly

installments over period of 18 months and

if we terminate him because of performance reasons or he voluntarily terminates his

employment without good reason as defined in his employment agreement an amount equal

to his annual base salary in effect at the date of termination payable in equal monthly

installments over period of 18 months

Pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement if Mr Wilhelms employment is terminated

other than for cause or performance reasons prior to his attaining age 55 he has the right to

purchase certain annuity policies from us for the greater of the cash value of the policies or ii the

aggregate amount of premiums paid by us on such policies If Mr Wilhelms employment is terminated

after he attains age
55 other than for cause or performance reasons he may elect to have the policies

assigned to him or he may elect to have us maintain the policies provided that the cost of maintaining

such policies shall be Mr Wilhelms obligation subject to our payment of all policy premiums for each

year beyond age
55 that Mr Wilhelm continues to be employed by us If Mr Wilhelms employment is

terminated at any time as result of his disability he may elect to have one hundred percent 100%
of our ownership interest in the annuity policies assigned to him or require us to maintain the policies

with the cost of such maintenance to be borne by us Notwithstanding the foregoing if

Mr Wilhelms employment is terminated as the result of his death prior to attaining age 58 or he dies

prior to his acquiring ownership in the annuity policies we shall pay his beneficiary the full death

benefits payable under the policies as reduced by the greater of the total premiums paid by us in

connection with such policies or ii the present value of future benefits provided by such policies and

if Mr Wilhelms employment is terminated as the result of his death after attaining age 58 or at

any time after he has acquired ownership of any of the annuity policies we shall pay his beneficiary

without reduction the full death benefits payable under all annuity policies that have not previously

been acquired by Mr Wilhelm

Potential Payments to John Holten

Pursuant to Mr Holtens employment agreement if his employment is terminated without cause

he voluntarily terminates his employment for good reason he is terminated following change in

control or we choose not to renew his employment term he will be entitled to in the event of

termination without cause for good reason or after change in control continue to receive through

what would have been the last day of the employment term plus for two years thereafter the base

salary and any annual incentive bonus as if no termination had occurred or in the event of

non-renewal the base salary and any annual bonus for two years thereafter iimedical insurance

continuation coverage for the period during which base salary is being paid under clause above

iii receive reimbursement for reasonable expenses for maintaining an executive office and secretarial

assistance for five
years

from termination of employment iv payment of unpaid base salary through

the termination date and accrued but unused vacation days and any unpaid bonuses and

reimbursement for any unreimbursed expenses incurred through the date of termination and all other

payments benefits and rights under any benefit compensation incentive equity or fringe benefit plan

program or arrangement or grant Mr Holten also agrees that if his employment terminates at any

time that he will be subject to two-year non-competition agreement for which he will receive up to

$200000 in continuation payments for the two-year period provided however any severance payments

described above will be reduced by such continuation payments In the event Mr Holten breaches the

non-competition restrictions of the employment agreement at any time during the two-year period

following the date of termination our obligation to make any continuation payments immediately

ceases
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If Mr Holtens employment terminates due to death or disability he or his estate as the case may
be will receive payment of unpaid base salary through the termination date and the base salary for

the then-remaining employment term ii pro-rata portion of the annual bonus amount for the year

in which such termination occurs and iii any benefits mandated under COBRA the costs of which

will be paid for by us and iv the benefits under clause of the preceding paragraph If

Mr Holtens employment is terminated for cause if Mr Holten terminates his employment without

good reason or if he fails to renew his employment term he is entitled to the payment of his base

salary through his final day of active employment continuation payments which shall be $50000 if he

is terminated for cause during the two-year non-competition period plus any accrued but unused

vacation pay to be paid within 30 days following the termination If any payments to Mr Holten upon
change of control are subject to excise tax under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code we will

make an additional tax equalization payment on his behalf to gross up those excise and other resulting

taxes

Potential Payments to Other Named Executive Officers

Each of our employment agreements with Messrs Wolf Warshauer and Baumann is terminable by

us for cause If their employment is terminated by reason of their death we are obligated to pay their

respective estates an amount equal to the base salary earned through the end of the calendar month in

which death occurs plus any earned and unpaid annual bonus vacation pay and other benefits earned

through the date of termination If the employment of Messrs Wilhelm Wolf Warshauer or Baumann

is terminated by reason of their disability we are obligated to pay him or his legal representative an

amount equal to his annual base salary for the duration of the employment period in effect on the date

of termination reduced by amounts received under any disability benefit program plus any earned and

unpaid annual bonus vacation pay and other benefits earned through the date of termination Upon
termination of the employment of Messrs Wolf Warshauer or Baumann for any reason other than

cause or the executives voluntary resignation without good reason we must pay the executive for

period of 24 months following termination payments at the rate of the executives most recent annual

base salary and annual target bonus and ii provide the executive and/or his family with certain other

benefits Upon termination of the employment of Messrs Wolf Warshauer or Baumann for cause or by

reason of the executives voluntary resignation without good reason we must pay the executive the sum

of $50000 over 12 month period

Messrs Wolf Warshauer and Baumann are subject to non-competition and non-solicitation

agreements for 24 months following termination of their employment
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Post-Employment PaymentsThe following table describes certain potential payments and benefits

upon termination for Mr Wilhelm our President and Principal Executive Officer as if his employment

terminated as of December 31 2008 the last business day of the fiscal year

Voluntary

Resignation

Not for Good

Reason or Termination by
Termination by Company Not

Company for Voluntary for Cause or Termination

Performance Resignation for Performance by Company
Compensation Component Reasons Good Reason Reasons for Cause

Compensation

Base salary 6245761 42943802 42943802 1000001

Target cash incentive

Stock OptionsUnvested and Accelerated

Benefit and Perquisites

Health Benefits 659304 659304
ibtal 624576 4360310 4360310 100000

Payable as salary continuation over 18 months

Payable as salary continuation over 60 months

Target incentive is included within calculation of base salary per employment agreement severance

provision

Estimated cost of health insurance coverage continuation for 60 months computed at current

premium

Post-Employment PaymentsThe following table describes certain potential payments and benefits

upon termination for Mr Holten our Chairman as if his employment terminated as of December 31

2008 the last business day of the fiscal year

Termination by

Voluntary Company in

Resignation Not Voluntary Termination by Termination Connection with

for Good Resignation for Company Not by Company Change in

Compensation Copo.ent Reason Good Reason for Cause for Cause Control

Compensation

Base salary 2000001 29241392 29241392 500001 29241392
Target cash incentive

Stock OptionsUnvested

and Accelerated

Benefits and Perquisites

Health Benefits 844263 844263 844263
Car Allowance 1114842 1114842 1114842
Other expense

reimbursements 11291354 11291354 11291354
Tax Equalization Payment 6611775
Total 200000 4249184 4249184 50000 4910361

Payable as salary continuation over 24 months subject to compliance with covenant not to compete

Payable as salary continuation through the remainder of employment agreement term plus two additional

years

Estimated cost of health insurance
coverage continuation computed at current premium for remainder of

employment agreement term plus additional two years
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Estimated reimbursement cost for expenses to maintain an office for five years after termination of

employment payable over five years

Tax gross up to cover excise tax on excess parachute payment that would become due if Mr Holten resigns

within three months after Change in Control Under Mr Holtens employment agreement Change in

Control occurs if as result of any person as defined in Section of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

the Act and used in Rule 13d-5 of the SEC under the Act or group as defined in Section 13d of the

Act becoming the beneficial owners of twenty-five percent 25% or more of the common stock of the

Company Mr Holten ceases to own directly or indirectly majority of the outstanding equity interests of

the Company Change in Control does not occur however if Mr Holten by written agreement executed

before such Change in Control is participant in the transaction that results in Mr Holtens ownership

interest ceasing to be majority interest

Post-Employment PaymentsThe following table describes certain potential payments and benefits

upon termination for Mr Baumann our Principal Financial Officer as if his employment terminated as

of December 31 2008 the last business day of the fiscal year

Voluntary

Resignation Not Voluntary Termination by Termination

for Good Resignation for Company Not by Company
Compensation Component Reason Good Reason for Cause for Cause

Compensation

Base salary 500001 8038402 8038402 500001

Target cash incentive 2749502 2749502
Stock OptionsUnvested and Accelerated

Benefits and Perquisites

Health Benefits 230763 230763
Insurance funding 9313624 9313624
Total 50000 2029931 2029931 50000

Payable as salary continuation for 12 months

Payable as salary continuation for 24 months

Estimated cost of health insurance coverage continuation until October 2010 computed at

current premium

Estimated cost of certain life insurance policy payments until age 65 computed based on 2008

premiums
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Post-Employment PaymentsThe following table describes certain potential payments and benefits

upon termination for Mr Wolf an Executive Vice President as if his employment terminated as of

December 31 2008 the last business day of the fiscal year

Voluntary

Resignation Not Voluntary Termination by Termination

for Good Resignation for Company Not by Company
Compensation Component Reason Good Reason for Cause for Cause

Compensation

Base salary 500001 7652122 7652122 5000010
Target cash incentive 1900002 1900002
Stock OptionsUnvested and Accelerated

Benefits and Perquisites

Health Benefits 164833 164833
Insurance investment funding 3100004 3100004 3100004 3100004
Total 360000 1281695 1281695 360000

Payable as salary continuation for 12 months

Payable as salary continuation for 24 months

Estimated cost of health insurance coverage continuation until March 26 2010 computed at

current premium

Cost of certain life insurance or other investment vehicle payments until age 65

Post-Employment PaymentsThe following table describes certain potential payments and benefits

upon termination for Mr Warshauer an Executive Vice President as if his employment terminated as

of December 31 2008 the last business day of the fiscal year

Voluntary

Resignation Not Voluntary Termination by Termination

for Good Resignation for Company Not by Company
Compensation Component Reason Good Reason for Cause for Cause

Compensation

Base salary 500001 8593322 8593322 500001
Target cash incentive 1836002 1836002
Stock OptionsUnvested and Accelerated

Benefits and Perquisites

Health Benefits 131863 131863
Total 50000 1056118 1056118 50000

Payable as salary continuation over 12 months subject to compliance with covenant not to

compete

Payable as salary continuation over 24 months subject to compliance with covenant not to

compete

Estimated cost of health insurance coverage continuation through December 31 2009 computed at

current premium
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Director Compensation Disclosure Table

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The following table sets forth the compensation earned awarded or paid for services rendered to

us for the fiscal year ending December 31 2008 by our non-executive directors

Name

Karl Andren

Charles Biggs

Karen Garrison

Gunnar Klintberg

Leif Onarheim

Petter stberg
Robert Roath

Fees Earned or

Paid in Cash$

67500

87500

85000

67500

92500

Stock Awards

79996

54999

54999

54999

54999

54999

Option Awards$ Total$

147496

142499

139999

122499

54999

147499

Does not include 2700 shares that Mr Klintberg elected to defer acquiring until January 2010

pursuant to deferred compensation plan offered by us

Does not include amounts paid under the Consulting Agreement between Mr Klintberg and us
which totaled $128697 in 2008

Karl Andren Charles Biggs Karen Garrison Leif Onarheim and Robert Roath

collectively referred to as outside directors each received $30000 in cash as an annual retainer All

of the directors except Messrs Holten and Wilhelm received fully vested stock grant of 2700 shares

of common stock on April 22 2008 All of the directors except Messrs Holten Wilhelm stberg and

Klintberg receive $2500 for each Board or Committee meeting that they attend and all directors

receive reimbursement for expenses incurred in connection with such meetings The Chair of the Audit

Committee received an additional annual retainer of $20000 and the chair of the Nominating

Corporate Governance Committee and Chair of the Compensation Committee each received an

additional retainer of $10000 per year

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by

securities holders

Equity compensation plans not approved by

securities holders

Total

Number of

securities

to be based

upon exercise of

outstanding options

warrants and rights

1411903

1411903

Weighted-average

exercise price of

outstanding options
warrants and rights

$2.22

$2.22

Number of securities

remaining available

for future issuance

under

equity compensation

plans

excluding securities

reflected in column

122.471

122471
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP

Beneficial Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock

as of March 2009 by

each of the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table above

each of our directors and

all current directors and executive officers as group

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange

Commission In computing the number of shares beneficially owned by person and the percentage

ownership of that person shares of common stock subject to options held by that person that are

currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 2009 are deemed issued and

outstanding These shares however are not deemed outstanding for purposes of computing percentage

ownership of each other stockholder

Except as indicated in the footnotes to this table and subject to applicable community property

laws each stockholder named in the table has sole voting and investment power with respect to the

shares shown as beneficially owned by them This table also includes shares owned by spouse as

community property

Percentage beneficially owned is based on 15282708 shares of common stock outstanding on

March 2009 and is calculated in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange

Commission Unless otherwise indicated the address of each of the individuals named below is

do Standard Parking Corporation 900 North Michigan Avenue Suite 1600 Chicago Illinois 60611

Beneficial Ownership

Shares Issuable

Pursuant to

Options
Number Exercisable Percent

of Shares Within Beneficially

Beneficially 60 days of Owned

Name of Beneficial Owner Owned March 2009

John Holten1 7681842 50.3

James Wilhelm 1125062 124089 1.5

Michael Wolf 433543 28410

Steven Warshauer 478643 28281

Marc Baumann 435623 28410

Gunnar KJintberg 16820 7648

Charles Biggs 12222 15952

Karen Garrison 20222 15952

Leif Onarheim 10222 15952

Petter stberg 68004 2604755 1.7

Robert Roath 12222 7648

Karl Andren 3784

All directors and executive officers as group 16 persons 81860786 619298.4 55.4

Less than 1% of the outstanding shares of common stock

Mr Holten The JVH Descendants 2007 Trust Connecticut trust for the benefit of Mr Holtens

descendants the 2007 Trust of which Mr Holten is the sole trustee and Brats LLC
Delaware limited liability company Bratsof which Mr Holten is the sole manager are the
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owners of all of the membership units in Vinland Industries LLC Delaware limited liability

company VIL which is the owner of 100% of the membership interest in Steamboat

Industries LLC New York limited liability company SIL Mr Holten is the sole trustee of

the 2007 Trust and is the sole manager of Brats VIL and SIL Mr Holten the 2007 Trust Brats

and VIL disclaim beneficial ownership of the shares held by SIL Includes 100000 shares of

common stock subject to pre-paid variable share forward contract with an unaffiliated securities

brokerage firm with respect to which SIL retains the voting power until June 23 2009 the

settlement date of such contract Mr Holten individually and in hi capacity as sole trustee of the

2007 Trust and sole manager of each of SIL VIL and Brats has sole voting power over all the

shares of common stock owned by SIL All of the common stock being 7681842 shares including

voting power with respect to the 100000 shares subject to the pre-paid variable share forward

contract owned by SIL have been pledged as security for loan to third-party lenders The
address of the 2007 Trust Brats VIL and SIL and the business address of Mr Holten is

545 Steamboat Road Greenwich Connecticut 06830

Includes 2346 shares of restricted stock and 104000 restricted stock units

Includes 938 shares of restricted stock and 42000 restricted stock units

Includes 700 shares held by Mr stbergs wife Mr stberg disclaims beneficial ownership of the

shares held by his wife

Comprised of options to purchase 150533 shares of common stock held by Mr stberg Also

includes options to purchase 109942 shares held by trust for the benefit of Mr stbergs

descendents of which Mrs stberg is the sole trustee and limited liability company of which

Mr and Mrs stberg are the sole managing members Mr stberg disclaims beneficial ownership

of the shares held by this trust and the limited liability company

Includes 8912 shares of restricted stock and 398000 restricted stock units issued to the executive

officers as group

Change in Control

All of the common stock owned by SIL including voting power with respect to the 100000 shares

subject to pre-paid variable share forward contract collectively the Pledged Securities have been

pledged as security for loan to third-party lenders In the event that some or all of such Pledged

Securities are foreclosed upon following default of the obligations secured thereby Mr Holten may no

longer control majority of the voting power of the Company
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Beneficial Ownership of More than Five Percent of Common Stock

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock

as of March 2009 by each person or group of affiliated persons who is known by us to own

beneficially 5% or more of our common stock

Number of

Shares Percent

Name of Beneficial Beneficially Beneficially

Owner Owned Owned

John Holten Brats LLC and The JVH Descendants 2007 Trust 76818421 50.3%

545 Steamboat Road

Greenwich CT 06830

Loomis Sayles Co L.P 11278772 6.7%

One Financial Center

Boston M4 02111

Mr Holten The JVH Descendants 2007 Trust Connecticut trust for the benefit of Mr Holtens

descendants the 2007 Trust of which Mr Holten is the sole trustee and Brats LLC
Delaware limited liability company Brats of which Mr Holten is the sole manager are the

owners of all of the membership units in Vinland Industries LLC Delaware limited liability

company VIL which is the owner of 100% of the membership interest in of Steamboat

Industries LLC New York limited liability company SIL Mr Holten is the sole trustee of

the 2007 Trust and is the sole manager of Brats VIL and SIL Mr Holten the 2007 Trust Brats

and VIL disclaim beneficial ownership of the shares held by SIL Includes 100000 shares of

common stock subject to pre-paid variable share forward contract with an unaffiliated securities

brokerage firm with respect to which SIL retains the voting power until June 23 2009 the

settlement date of such contract Mr Holten individually and in his capacity as sole trustee of the

2007 Trust and sole manager of each of SIL VIL and Brats has sole voting power over all the

shares of common stock owned by SIL All of the common stock being 7681842 shares including

voting power with respect to the 100000 shares subject to the pre-paid variable share forward

contract owned by SIL have been pledged as security for loan to third-party lenders The

address of the 2007 Trust Brats VIL and SIL and the business address of Mr Holten is

545 Steamboat Road Greenwich Connecticut 06830

Based solely on information obtained from Schedule 13G filed by Loomis Sayles Co L.P with

the SEC on or about February 13 2009 The foregoing has been included solely in reliance upon

and without independent investigation of the disclosures contained in Loomis Sayles Co L.P.s

Schedule 13G

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS AND CONTROL PERSONS

The following is summary of transactions during 2008 between the Company and our executive

officers directors nominees principal stockholders and other related
persons involving amounts in

excess of $120000 Each of the transactions with related person described below has been approved

by the Audit Committee

Stock Redemption from Majority Stockholder

In December 2007 our Board authorized us to repurchase our common stock on the open market

or through private purchases up to $25.0 million provided that we met certain financial tests In July
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2008 our Board authorized an additional $60.0 million in common stock repurchases In connection

with these stock repurchase programs we were authorized to repurchase shares from Steamboat our

majority stockholder at the same price that we pay in each open-market purchase We acquired

1622220 shares at an average price of $19.93 including average commissions of $0.03 per share

totaling $32.3 million through open market purchases during the
year ended December 31 2008

Steamboat sold to us 1386722 shares at an average price of $19.96 totaling $27.7 million during the

year ended December 31 2008

Management Contracts and Related Arrangements with Affiliates

We entered into consulting agreement with DE Parking Inc and Dale Stark former Senior

Vice President of the Company that became effective on May 2007 This consulting agreement is for

period of three years terminating on April 30 2010 Per the terms of the agreement consideration

for services provided are $250000 per year In addition the consultant is eligible for consultant fee of

up to $50000 per year In consideration of the services provided by DE under this arrangement we

paid DE $401000 in 2008

On December 31 2000 we sold at fair market value certain contract rights to DE In July 2007
we bought back certain contract rights for approximately $1472000 $850000 paid in cash and

$622000 gain through the sale of certain contract rights representing five locations The Company
continued to operate an additional location through January 2008 at which time the location was sold

to an unrelated third party We received net management fees and reimbursement for support services

in connection with the operation of the parking facilities from DE We recorded net management
fees of $4000 in 2008

In 2008 we provided property management services for twenty separate retail shopping centers and

commercial office buildings in which DE has an ownership interest Dale Stark is the managing

member of each property ownership entity In consideration of the property management services we

provided for these twenty properties we recorded net management fees totaling $632000in 2008

In 2008 our wholly owned subsidiary Preferred Response Security Services Inc provided security

services for retail shopping center owned by DE We recorded net management fees amounting to

$34000 for these security services in 2008 In 2008 we provided sweeping and power washing for two

retail shopping facilities in which DE has an ownership interest For these services we recorded net

management fees totaling $9000

Gunnar Klintberg Consulting Agreement and Holberg Agreement

We entered into consulting agreement with Gunnar Klintberg member of our Board of

Directors on March 2004 pursuant to which Mr Klintberg has been engaged in the promotion and

development of new parking operations and the consummation of contracts to operate parking facilities

on our behalf
primarily in the New York City metropolitan area The initial term of Mr Klintbergs

agreement was for one year renewable
year to year unless terminated by either party on 60 days

notice Upon the expiration of the initial term of the consulting agreement on March 31 2005 the

agreement was automatically extended for an additional year On March 15 2006 we amended

Mr Klintbergs consulting agreement effective as of July 2005 The amendment changed the

commencement date of the term of the consulting agreement from fiscal
year commencing March

to calendar year so that each new one year term as applicable commences on January Under the

terms of the amendment to his consulting agreement Mr Klintberg is paid retainer of $125000

annually in addition to the following percentages of the net profit for up to three years for any new

parking location he is responsible for
bringing to us and which results in the consummation of final

executed contract 15% in
year one 10% in year two and 5% in year three To the extent that

Mr Klintberg is not responsible for one or more aspects of consummating contract to operate new
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parking location in the judgment of our executive vice president having operational responsibility for

the New York City metropolitan area his percentage of the net profit may be reduced Mr Kiintberg

additionally may receive up to 5% of the net profit for the renewal of an existing location

Mr Klintberg is entitled to reimbursement of reasonable business expenses incurred in connection with

the performance of his consulting services upon our advance approval In consideration of the services

provided by Mr Klintberg we paid him an annual retainer fee and percentages of net profit totaling

$128697 in 2008

Mr Klintberg is also party to an agreement with Holberg Incorporated the Holberg

Agreement which is effective from January 2006 for term of seven years Mr Holten is the

chairman and chief executive officer of Holberg Incorporated our indirect parent until 2001 Under

the Holberg Agreement Mr Klintberg has agreed to provide services to Holberg Incorporated in

exchange for compensation some of which may be affected by Mr Klintbergs employment with us and

the value of his options stock appreciation rights and other similar interests based on our common

stock Specifically the Holberg Agreement provides that Mr Klintbergs termination payment with

Holberg Incorporated will be decreased dollar-for-dollar by the then current value of his options stock

appreciation rights and other similar interests based on our common stock that have been granted to

him by us and our affiliates pursuant to then existing arrangements In addition Mr Klintberg is

entitled to payment of $125000 per annum under the Holberg Agreement in the event that his

existing consulting agreement with us is terminated due to our sale of us or is terminated without cause

or for other specified reasons We are not party to the Holberg Agreement

Related Party Transaction Policy

As part of its oversight responsibilities the charter of our Audit Committee requires that the Audit

Committee review all related party transactions for potential conflicts of interest On November

2006 the Board adopted formal statement of policy for related party transactions The policy requires

that the Audit Committee review all transactions between the Company and our executive officers

directors nominees principal stockholders and other related persons for potential conflicts involving

amounts in excess of $5000

Director Independence and Controlled Company Status

Although the NASDAQ rules generally require NASDAQ-traded companies to have board of

directors comprised of majority of independent directors controlled company is exempt from this

requirement Our parent company Steamboat Industries LLC and its affiliates including Mr Holten

collectively control more than 50% of the voting power of the Company and accordingly we are an

exempt controlled company The Board has determined that majority of our outside

directorsMessrs Andren Biggs Onarheim and Roath and Ms Garrisonhave no material

relationship with our Company that would conflict with the independence requirements of applicable

federal law and the NASDAQ rules We rely on the controlled company exception however for

committee composition requirements under the NASDAQ rules Pursuant to this exception we are

exempt from the rule that requires our Compensation Committee and Nominating Corporate

Governance Committee to be composed solely of independent directors as defined in the NASDAQ
rules The controlled company exception does not modi1 the independence requirements for our

Audit Committee composition which complies with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the NASDAQ

independence rules for audit committees The independent directors meet from time to time in

connection with Audit Committee meetings at which only independent directors are present Three

such meetings occurred in 2008

The Board determined that given Mr stbergs relationship with Mr Holten and his affiliates

our controlling stockholder he may not be considered independent Mr Klintberg is not considered

independent because of his relationship with Mr Holten and his affiliates our controlling stockholder
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and because he is presently paid consultant to the Company Mr Wilhelm is not considered

independent because he is our Chief Executive Officer

The Nominating Corporate Governance Committee consists of three directors Karen

Garrison who serves as Chair John Holten and Petter stberg Ms Garrison is the only

independent director on this committee

The Compensation Committee consists of four directors Charles Biggs who serves as Chair
John Holten Leif Onarheim and Petter stberg Messrs Biggs and Onarheim are the

independent director on this committee

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Auditors Fees Audit-Related Fees Tax Fees and All Other Fees

The Audit Committee with the approval of the stockholders engaged Ernst Young LLP to

perform an annual audit of our financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 The

following table describes fees for professional audit services rendered by Ernst Young LLP our

principal accountant for the audit of our annual financial statements for the years ended December 31
2008 and December 31 2007 and fees billed for other services rendered by Ernst Young LLP during

these periods

lype of Fee 2008 2007

Audit Fees1 $851270 $807400

Audit Related Fees2 31700 30350

All Other Fees3 3500 3265

Total $886470 $841015

Audit Fees include the aggregate fees paid by us during the year indicated for

professional services rendered by Ernst Young LLP for the audit of our annual

financial statements and review of financial statements included in our Forms 10-Q and

Form 10-K including review of registration statements and issuance of consents In 2008

Audit Fees also included review of Form S-8 registration statement and the issuance of

consent The fees for 2007 are $19000 higher than reported in our Proxy Statement for

our 2008 annual meeting due to audit fees incurred but not communicated until after the

mailing of our 2008 Proxy Statement

Audit Related Fees include the aggregate fees paid by us during the year indicated for

assurance and related services by Ernst Young LLP that are reasonably related to the

performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and not included in Audit

Fees including general accounting advice and opinions related to various employee

benefit plans and due diligence related to mergers and acquisitions For 2008 and 2007
Audit Related Fees consist of 401k audit fees in the amount of $31700 and $30350

respectively

All Other Fees include the aggregate fees paid by us during the year indicated for

products and services provided by Ernst Young LLP other than the services reported

above In 2008 and 2007 All Other Fees consists of fees related to online research tools
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Procedures for Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of

Independent Auditor

Pursuant to our pre-approval policy and procedures the Audit Committee was responsible for

reviewing and approving in advance any audit and any permissible non-audit engagement or

relationship between the Company and our independent auditors The Audit Committee has

responsibility for appointing setting compensation for and overseeing the work of our independent

auditors and has established policy concerning the pre-approval of services performed by our

independent auditors Each proposed engagement not specifically identified by the Securities and

Exchange Commission as impairing independence is evaluated for independence implications prior to

entering into contract with the independent auditor for such services The Audit Committee has

approved in advance certain permitted services whose scope is consistent with auditor independence

These services are the audit of our annual financial statements and review of financial statements

included in our Forms 10-Q and Form 10-K and 401k Plan audit for 2008 was approved by the Audit

Committee on May 2008 Additionally each permissible audit and non-audit engagement or

relationship between us and Ernst Young LLP entered into since December 2002 has been

reviewed and approved by the Board or the Audit Committee as provided in our pre-approval policies

and procedures

We have been advised by Ernst Young LLP that substantially all of the work done in

conjunction with its 2008 audit of our financial statements for the most recently completed year was

performed by permanent full-time employees and partners of Ernst Young LLP We have received

confirmation and letter from Ernst Young LLP required by applicable requirements of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding Ernst Young LLPs communications with the Audit

Committee concerning independence and discussed with Ernst Young LLP its independence
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PART lv

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements and Schedules

Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 95

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 2008 and 2007 97

For the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Income 98

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity 99

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 100

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 101

Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule IlValuation and Qualifying Accounts 133

All other schedules are omitted since the required information is not present or is not present in

amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule or because the information required is

included in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto

Exhibit Listing

Exhibit

Number
Description

3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company filed on

June 2004

3.1.1 Certificate of Amendment of Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation

of the Company effective as of January 2008

3.2 Second Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company effective as of September 2007

incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on September 2007

4.1 Specimen common stock certificate incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 of

Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File

No 333-112652 filed on May 18 2004

10.1 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated July 15 2008 among the Company
various financial institutions Bank of America N.A and Wells Fargo N.A incorporated

by reference to exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K field on

July 18 2008

10.2 Rate Cap Transaction Agreement dated August 2006 between the Company and LaSalle

Bank National Association incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 of the Companys
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 2006

10.3 Consulting Agreement dated May 15 2006 by and among the Company DE
Parking Inc and Dale Stark incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 of the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 17 2006

10.4 Employment Agreement dated as of March 30 1998 between the Company and Myron
Warshauer incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.6 of the Companys Registration

Statement on Form S-4 File No 333-50437 filed on April 17 1998
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.4.1 First Amendment to Employment Agreement dated July 2003 between the Company

and Myron Warshauer incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.4.1 of the Companys

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2004

10.4.2 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of May 10 2004 between the Company

and Myron Warshauer incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.4.2 of the Companys

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2004

10.5 Employment Agreement dated as of March 26 1998 between the Company and

Michael Wolf incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.12 of the Companys Registration

Statement on Form S-4 File No 333-50437 filed on April 17 1998

10.5.1 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of June 19 2000 between the Company

and Michael Wolf incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.5.1 of the Companys

Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on February 10 2004

10.5.2 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of December 2000 between

the Company and Michael Wolf incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.22 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2000

10.5.3 Third Amendment to Employment Agreement dated April 2002 between the Company

and Michael Wolf incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.19.3 to the Companys

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2002

10.5.4 Fourth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 31 2003 between the

Company and Michael Wolf incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.5.4 of the

Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on February 10

2004

10.5.5 Fifth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 18 2008 between the

Company and Michael Wolf

10.5.6 Sixth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated January 28 2009 between the

Company and Michael Wolf incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.3 of the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 2009

10.6 Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated as of January 28 2009

between Company and James Wilhelm incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.3 of the

Companys Current Report of Form 8-K filed on February 2009

10.7 Employment Agreement dated May 18 1998 between the Company and Robert Sacks

incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.24 of the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K filed for December 31 2001

10.7.1 First Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of November 2001 between the

Company and Robert Sacks incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.25 of the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2001

10.7.2 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of August 2003 between the

Company and Robert Sacks incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.7.2 of the

Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on February 10

2004

10.7.3 Third Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of April 2005 between the

Company and Robert Sacks
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Exhibit

Number
Description

10 7.4 Fourth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of December 29 2008 between

the Company and Robert Sacks

10.7.5 Fifth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of January 28 2009 between the

Company and Robert Sacks

10.8 Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated as of December 2002

between the Company and John Ricchiuto incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.22.2 of

the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2002

10.8.1 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated as

of April 11 2005 between the Company and John Ricchiuto incorporated by reference to

exhibit 10.3 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2005

10.9 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated March 2005 between the

Company and Steven Warshauer incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2005

10.10 Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated as of May 18 2006

between the Company and Edward Simmons incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1

of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 24 2006

10.11 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Marc
Baumann dated as of October 2001 incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.27 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2001

10.11.1 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the

Company and Marc Baumann dated as of December 29 2008

10.11.2 Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the

Company and Marc Baumann dated as of January 28 2009 incorporated by reference

to exhibit 10.2 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 2009

10.12 Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated as of March 2005
between the Company and Thomas Hagerman incorporated by reference to

exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2005

10.12.1 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated

October 2007 between the Company and Thomas Hagerman incorporated by reference

to exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 1OQ filed for September 30
2007

10.13 Long-Term Incentive Plan dated as of May 2004 incorporated by reference to

exhibit 10.12 of Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 5-1
File No 333-112652 filed on May 10 2004

10.13.1 Long-Term Incentive Plan Amendment effective as of April 22 2008 incorporated by
reference to Appendix of the Companys 2008 Proxy on Form DEF 14A filed on

April 2008

10.14 Form of Amended and Restated Stock Option Award Agreement between the Company
and an optionee incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on November 21 2005
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.14.1 Form of First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Stock Option Award Agreement

between the Company and an optionee incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 of the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 21 2005

10.15 Consulting Agreement dated as of October 16 2001 between the Company and Shoreline

Enterprises LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.36 of the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2001

10.15.1 Amendment to Consulting Agreement dated as of May 10 2004 between the Company

and Shoreline Enterprises LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.14.1 of the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2004

10.16 Executive Parking Management Agreement dated as of May 1998 by and among the

Company DE Parking Edward Simmons and Dale Stark incorporated by

reference to exhibit 10.32 of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for

December 31 2002

10.16.1 First Amendment to Executive Parking Management Agreement dated as of August

1999 by and among the Company DE Parking Edward Simmons and Dale Stark

incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.32.1 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K filed for December 31 2002

10.17 Consulting Agreement effective as of May 2007 by and among the Company DE
Parking Inc and Dale Stark incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.17 of the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for December 31 2007

10.18 Property Management Agreement dated as of September 2003 between the Company

and Paxton Plaza LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.19 of the Companys

Registration Statement on Form 5-1 File No 333-112652 filed on February 10 2004

10.19 Property Management Agreement dated as of September 2003 between the Company

and Infinity Equities LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.20 of the Companys

Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on February 10 2004

10.20 Agreement of Lease dated as of June 1998 between the Company and LaSalle National

Bank as successor trustee to LaSalle National Trust N.A as successor trustee to LaSalle

National Bank incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.21 of the Companys Registration

Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on February 10 2004

10.20.1 First Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated as of May 1999 between the Company

and LaSalle National Bank as successor trustee to LaSalle National Trust N.A as

successor trustee to LaSalle National Bank incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.21.1 of

the Companys Registration Statement on Form 5-1 File No 333-112652 filed on

February 10 2004

10.20.2 Second Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated as of July 27 2000 between the

Company and LaSalle National Bank as successor trustee to LaSalle National Trust N.A

as successor trustee to LaSalle National Bank incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.21.2

of the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on

February 10 2004
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Exhibit

Number
Description

10.20.3 Third Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated as of September 11 2003 between the

Company and LaSalle National Bank as successor trustee to LaSalle National Trust N.A
as successor trustee to LaSalle National Bank incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.21.3

of the Companys Registration Statement on Form 5-1 File No 333-112652 filed on

February 10 2004

10.21 Employment Agreement dated May 2004 between the Company and John Holten

incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.23 of Amendment No to the Companys
Registration Statement on Form 5-1 File No 333-112652 filed on May 18 2004

10.21.1 Side Letters dated May 2004 related to the Employment Agreement dated May 2004

between the Company and John Holten incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.23.1 of

Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File

No 333-112652 filed on May 18 2004

10.22 Consulting Agreement dated as of March 2004 between the Company and Gunnar

Klintberg incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.24 of Amendment No to the

Companys Registration Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on May 10 2004

10.22.1 First Amendment to Consulting Agreement dated March 15 2006 between the Company
and Gunnar Klintberg incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.24.1 of the Companys
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 16 2006

10.23 Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 27 2004 between the Company
and Steamboat Industries LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10 26 of Amendment
No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on

May 24 2004

10.24 Stock Repurchase Agreement dated as of December 31 2007 by and between the

Company and Steamboat Industries LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 of the

Companys Current Report on form 8-K filed on January 2008

10.25 Form of Property Management Agreement incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.30 of

the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 10 2006

10.26 Standard Parking Corporation Restricted Stock Unit Agreement dated as of July 2008

incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on July 2008

10.27 Guaranty Agreement of APCOA/Standard Parking Inc dated as of March 2000 to and for

the benefit of the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation

10.28 Construction Financing and Operating Special Facility Lease Agreement dated as of

March 2000 between the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation and APCOA
Bradley Parking Company LLC

10.29 Trust Indenture dated March 2000 between State of Connecticut and First Union
National Bank as Trustee

14.1 Code of Ethics incorporated by reference to exhibit 14.1 of the Companys Annual Report

on Form 10-K for December 31 2002

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm dated as of March 12 2009
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Exhibit

Number Description

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by James

Wilhelm

31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Marc

Baumann

31.3 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Daniel

Meyer

32 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by James

Wilhelm Marc Baumann and Daniel Meyer

Filed herewith

Management contract or compensation plan contract or arrangement
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Standard Parking Corporation

We have audited Standard Parking Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria

Standard Parking Corporations management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control

over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting included in the accompanying Form 10-K Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the

companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained

in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over

financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only

in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject

to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Standard Parking Corporation maintained in all material respects effective

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of Standard Parking Corporation as

of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of income stockholders

equity and cash flows for each of the three
years

in the period ended December 31 2008 and our

report dated March 12 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is ERNST YOUNG LLP

Chicago Illinois

March 12 2009

95



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Standard Parking Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Standard Parking Corporation

Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of income
stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three

years
in the period ended December 31

2008 Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 These

financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An
audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We
believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above
present fairly in all material respects

the consolidated financial position of Standard Parking Corporation at December 31 2008 and 2007
and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the

period ended December 31 2008 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic

financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth

therein

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements effective January 2007 the

Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No 48 Accounting for

Uncertainty in Income Taxes

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Standard Parking Corporations internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our

report dated March 12 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/s ERNST YOUNG LLP

Chicago Illinois

March 12 2009
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STANDARD PARKING CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

in thousands except for share and per share data

December 31

2008 2007

ASSETS

8301 8466

45198 42706

2496 2765

3253 6247

59248 60184

17542 15695

4433 1382

6680 4854

6916 4350

10872 7688

123550 119890

1345

152451 139509

$229241 215388

46446 42941

4279 5438

9331 10017

2891 2137

6840 6949

8016 8654
120 139

948 1799

78871 78074

3305

120600 74150

2091 2850

1305 1425

123996 78425

22052 19550

16

103541

85

11161
91464

________

1017
________

$229241

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Notes and accounts receivable net

Prepaid expenses and supplies

Deferred taxes

Total current assets

Leasehold improvements equipment and construction in progress net

Other assets

Advances and deposits

Long-term receivables net

Intangible and other assets net

Cost of contracts net

Goodwill

Deferred taxes

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued rent

Compensation and payroll withholdings

Property payroll and other taxes

Accrued insurance

Accrued expenses

Current portion of obligations under senior credit
facility

and other

Current portion of capital lease obligations

Total current liabilities

Deferred taxes

Long-term borrowings excluding current portion

Obligations under senior credit facility

Capital lease obligations

Other

Other long-term liabilities

Stockholders equity1

Common stock par value $.001 per share 21300000 shares authorized 16110781 and

18371308 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Treasury stock at cost 627423 and 48474 shares as of December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

18

150520

482

1172
110509

39339

215388

Adjusted to reflect the effect of the 2-for-i stock split
in January 2008 See Note A-Stock Split for additional

information

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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STANDARD PARKING CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

in thousands except for share and per share data

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Parking services revenue

Lease contracts 154311 145327 153336
Management contracts 145828 119612 106554
Reimbursed management contract expense 400621 356782 346055

Total revenue 700760 621721 605945
Costs and expenses

Cost of parking services

Lease contracts 140058 129550 139043

Management contracts 69285 49726 44990
Reimbursed management contract expense 400621 356782 346055

Total cost of parking services 609964 536058 530088
Gross profit

Lease contracts 14253 15777 14293

Management contracts 76543 69886 61564

Total gross profit 90796 85663 75857
General and administrative expensesi 47619 44796 41228

Depreciation and amortization 6059 5335 5638

Total costs and expenses 663642 586189 576954

Operating income 37118 35532 28991
Other

expenses income
Interest expense 6476 7056 8296
Interest income 173 610 552

6303 6446 7744
Minority interest 148 446 376

Income before income taxes 30667 28640 20871
Income tax expense benefit 11622 11267 14880
Net income 19045 17373 35751

Common stock data2
Net income

per share

Basic
1.10 0.92 1.79

Diluted 1.07 0.90 1.75

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 17325235 18831667 19967286
Diluted 17731473 19289076 20492520

Non-cash stock based compensation expense of $1509 $463 and $480 for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively is included in general and administrative expenses

Share and per share amounts have been retroactively adjusted for the effect of the 2-for-i stock split in

January 2008 See Note-A Stock Split for additional information

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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STANDARD PARKING CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

in thousands except for share and perU share data

Balance deficit at December 31 2005

Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Revaluation of interest rate cap

Comprehensive income

Repurchase and retirement of common stock 1157632
Repurchase of common stock

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 148266

Non-cash stock-based compensation expense

Thx benefit from exercise of stock options

Balance deficit at December 31 2006 19243598

Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Revaluation of interest rate cap

Comprehensive income

Repurchase and retirement of common stock 1130642
Repurchase of common stock

Proceeds from exercise of stock
options

Issuance of restricted stock

Common stock issued under the long-term

incentive plan 3849

Stock-based compensation related to restricted

stock

Non-cash stock-based compensation expense

Thx benefit from exercise of stock options

Balance deficit at December 31 2007 18371308

Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Revaluation of interest rate cap

Comprehensive income

Repurchase and retirement of common stock 2429993
Repurchase of common stock

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 152182

Issuance of stock grants 17284

Stock-based compel3sation related to

long-term incentive plan

Non-cash stock-based compensation related to

restricted stock units

Non-cash stock-based compensation expense

Thx benefit from exercise of stock options

Balance deficit at December 31 2008 16110781

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income Loss

419

74 74

107

282

_______ ________
1030

$1i0509 39339

19045 19045

490
93

18648

48863
11161

722

355

107 107

991

878

$85 627423 $1i161 91484 1017

Adjusted to reflect the effect of the 2-for-i stock
split

in January 2008 See Note AStock Split for additional information

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Common Stock1

Number of Per Share

Shares Par Value

20252964 $20

Additional

Paid-In

Capital

$187606

freasury Stock1

Number of

Shares Amount

ii

_________ _______
291

Accumulated

Deficit

$i63633
35751

19362

506

480

394

$169624

32200 647

Total

24412

35751

11

_________ _______
291

35471

19363
647
506

480

394

$139 32200 647 $127882 41253

17373 17373

272 272

71 71

17716

21593 32200 647 20947
48474 1172 1172

228654 996 996

25849

107

282

1030

ii $150520 482 48474 1172

490
93

48474 1172

627423 11161
50033

722

355

991

878

$103541
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STANDARD PARKING CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

in thousands except for share and per share data

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Operating activities

Net income $19045 $17373 35751

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations

Depreciation and amortization 5475 5187 5270
Loss gain on sale of assets 525 474 368

Amortization of debt issuance costs 449 275 525

Amortization of carrying value in excess of principal 109
Non-cash stock-based compensation 1509 463 480

Write off of debt issuance costs 13 416

Write off of carrying value in excess of principal related to the 9% senior

subordinated notes 352
Provision reversal for losses on accounts receivable 250 202 181
Excess tax benefit related to stock option exercises 878 1030
Deferred income taxes 7644 8945 15743

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Notes and accounts receivable 4568 2682 707

Prepaid assets 386 473 296
Other assets 3020 2171 145
Accounts payable 3505 9389 1993

Accrued liabilities 1006 1269 122

Net cash provided by operating activities 29329 36273 28806

Investing activities

Purchase of leasehold improvements and equipment 6303 4517 2162
Proceeds from the sale of assets 264 165 213

Acquisitions 6318 6202
Cost of contracts purchased 566
Contingent purchase payments 64 102 301

Net cash used in investing activities 12987 10656 2250
Financing activities

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 722 996 506

Repurchase of common stock 60024 22119 20010
Repurchase Series convertible redeemable preferred stock

Proceeds from payments on senior credit facility 46450 2900 43450

Payments on long-term borrowings 139 130 383
Payments on joint venture borrowings 758
Payments of debt issuance costs 2352 73 737
Payments on capital leases 1550 2285 2477
Tax benefit related to stock option exercise 878 1030

Repurchase 9% senior subordinated notes 48877

Net cash used in financing activities 16015 25481 29287
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 492 272 12

Decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents 165 408 2719
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 8466 8058 10777

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 8301 8466 8058

Cash paid for

Interest 8686 7240 9303

Income taxes 2564 1145 572

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash activity

Debt issued for capital lease obligations 30 3631

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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STANDARD PARKING CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

In thousands except share and per share data

Note Significant Accounting Policies

Standard Parking Corporation Standard or the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates

manage operate and develop parking properties throughout the United States and Canada The

Company is majority-owned subsidiary of Steamboat Industries LLC The Company provides on-site

management services at multi-level and surface facilities for all major markets of the parking industry

The Company manages approximately 2200 locations across the United States and Canada

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company its wholly owned

subsidiaries and joint ventures in which the Company has more than 50% ownership interest Minority

interest recorded in the consolidated statements of income is the joint venture partners non-controlling

interest in consolidated joint ventures We have interests in twelve joint ventures each of which

operates between one and twenty-two parking facilities Of the twelve joint ventures nine are majority

owned by us and are consolidated into our financial statements and three are single purpose entities

where we have 50% interest or minority interest Investments in joint ventures where the Company

has 50% or less non-controlling ownership interest are accounted for under the equity method All

significant intercompany profits transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation

Variable Interest Entities

Commencement of

Equity Operations Nature of Activities Ownership Locations

Other Investments in VIEs Sep 93 June 08 Management of parking 50.0% Various states

lots shuttle operations

and parking meters

The existing three VIEs in which we have variable interest are not consolidated into our

financial statements because we are not the primary beneficiary

Parking Revenue

The Companys revenues are primarily derived from leased locations managed properties and the

providing of ancillary services such as accounting equipment leasing payments received for exercising

termination rights consulting development fees gains on sales of contracts insurance and other value-

added services In accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin 104 Revenue Recognition

revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists the fees are fixed or

determinable collectibility is reasonably assured and as services are provided The Company recognizes

gross receipts net of taxes collected from customers as revenue from leased locations and

management fees for parking services as the related services are provided Ancillary services are

earned from management contract properties and are recorded as revenue as those services are

provided From time to time the Company also recognizes gains on sales of parking contracts and

development fees which are recorded as management contract revenue as those services are provided

and/or earned $0 in 2008 and $622 in 2007 and $0 in 2006 Development fees are revenue received

from customer for which we have provided certain consulting services as part of our offerings of
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STANDARD PARKING CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

In thousands except share and per share data

Note Significant Accounting Policies Continued

ancillary management services The gains from sales of contracts are for these contracts for which we

have no asset basis or ownership interest and would be received as part of formula buy-out in the

contract in order for the owner to terminate the contract prior to its expiration

Cost of Parking Services

The Company recognizes costs for leases and non-reimbursed costs from managed facilities as cost

of parking services Cost of parking services consists primarily of rent and payroll related costs

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included in general and administrative

expenses Advertising expenses aggregated $195 $191 and $261 for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Stock Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based payment awards in accordance with SFAS No 123R
Share-Based Payment as interpreted by SAB No 107 Under the provisions of SFAS No 123R
share-based compensation expense is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award
and is recognized as an expense over the requisite employee service period generally the vesting

period for awards expected to vest considering estimated forfeitures See Note

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents represent funds temporarily invested in money market instruments with

maturities of one to five days Cash equivalents are stated at cost which approximates market value

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable net of the allowance for doubtful accounts represents our estimate of the

amount that ultimately will be realized in cash Management reviews the adequacy of its allowance for

doubtful accounts on an ongoing basis using historical collection trends aging of receivables and

review of specific accounts and makes adjustments in the allowance as necessary Changes in economic

conditions or other circumstances could have an impact on the collection of existing receivable balances

or future allowance considerations As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the Companys allowance for

doubtful accounts was $3866 and $3617 respectively

Leasehold Improvements Equipment and Construction in Progress net

Leasehold improvements and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

amortization Equipment is depreciated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

approximately years on average Leasehold improvements are amortized on the straight-line basis

over the terms of the respective leases or the service lives of the improvements whichever is shorter

average of approximately years Assets under capital leases are amortized on the straight-line basis
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STANDARD PARKING CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

In thousands except share and per share data

Note Significant Accounting Policies Continued

over the shorter of the terms of the respective leases or the service lives of the asset and is included in

depreciation expense

Costs associated with internal-use software are accounted for in accordance with Statement of

Position No 98-1 SOP 98-1 Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or

Obtained for Internal Use

Cost of Contracts

Cost of parking contracts are amortized on straight-line basis over the weighted average contract

life which is 10
years

for the year ending December 31 2008 and years
for the

year ending

December 31 2007 Amortization expense was $1344 $1087 and $1138 in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

Goodwill

Goodwill comprises of the excess of costs over the fair value of net assets of the acquired

businesses The Company performs goodwill impairment tests on at least an annual basis or more

frequently if facts and circumstances indicate that the assets may be impaired using the two-step

process prescribed in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 142 Goodwill and

Other intangibles For the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 the Company measured the

fair value of its reporting segments in the fourth quarter and determined that the fair value of its

reporting segments was greater than their carrying value and therefore no impairment of goodwill

existed

Long Lived and Finite-Lived Intangible Assets

Long-lived assets and identifiable intangibles with finite lives are reviewed for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be

recoverable Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparison of the carrying

amount of an asset or group of assets to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated

by the asset or group of assets If such assets are considered to be impaired the impairment recognized

is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the

assets Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs

to sell

Debt Issuance Costs

The costs of obtaining financing are capitalized and amortized as interest expense over the term of

the respective financing using the interest rate method Debt issuance costs of $2776 and $885 at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively are included in intangibles and other assets in the

consolidated balance sheets and are reflected net of accumulated amortization Amortization expense

was $449 $275 and $525 at December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively
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STANDARD PARKING CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

In thousands except share and per share data

Note Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash accounts receivable and accounts payable are reasonable estimates of

their fair value due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments Other long-term debt has

carrying value that approximates fair value because these instruments bear interest at market rates

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Companys foreign operations is the local currency Accordingly

assets and liabilities of the Companys foreign operations are translated from foreign currencies into

U.S dollars at the rates in effect on the balance sheet date while income and expenses are translated at

the weighted-average exchange rates for the year Adjustments resulting from the translations of foreign

currency financial statements are accumulated and classified as separate component of stockholders

equity

Interest Rate Caps

We use variable rate senior credit facility to finance our operations This facility exposes us to

variability in interest payments due to changes in interest rates If interest rates increase interest

expense increases and conversely if interest rates decrease interest expense also decreases We believe

that it is prudent to limit the exposure of an increase in interest rates

To meet this objective we entered into an interest rate cap transaction with Bank of America
N.A in 2005 allowing us to continue to take advantage of LIBOR based pricing under our Credit

Agreement while hedging our interest rate exposure on portion of our borrowings under the Credit

Agreement Rate Cap Transaction Under the Rate Cap Transaction we received payments from

Bank of America at the end of each quarterly period to the extent that the prevailing three month
LIBOR during that period exceeded our cap rate The Rate Cap Transaction capped our LIBOR rate

on $30000 principal balance at 2.5% for total of 18 months which matured on July 12 2006 and

for which we recognized gain of $290 over the life of the cap For the year ended December 31 2006
we recognized gain of $152 which was reported as reduction of interest expense in the Consolidated

Statement of Income The Rate Cap Transaction began as of January 12 2005 and settled each quarter

on date that coincided with our quarterly interest payment dates under the Credit Agreement

In 2006 we entered into an additional Rate Cap Transaction with Bank of America which allows

us to limit our exposure on portion of our borrowings under the Credit Agreement Under this Rate

Cap Transaction we receive payments from Bank of America each quarterly period to the extent that

the prevailing three month LIBOR during that period exceeds our cap rate of 5.75% This Rate Cap
Transaction caps our LIBOR interest rate on notional amount of $50000 at 5.75% for total of

36 months The Rate Cap Transaction began as of August 2006 and settles each quarter on date

that coincides with our quarterly interest payment dates under the Credit Agreement This Rate Cap
Transaction is classified as cash flow hedge and we calculate the effectiveness of the hedge on

quarterly basis The ineffective portion of the cash flow hedge is recognized in current period earnings

as an increase of interest expense
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At December 31 2008 the fair value of the Rate Cap Transaction was immaterial Total changes in

the fair value of the Rate Cap Transaction at December 31 2008 was $300 of which $158 was recorded

as an increase of interest expense in the consolidated statement of income for the year ended

December 31 2008 $83 of this change was due to hedge ineffectiveness

At December 31 2007 the fair value of the Rate Cap Transaction was immaterial Total changes in

the fair value of the Rate Cap Transaºtion as of December 31 2007 was $300 of which $93 was

reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income net of tax on the consolidated balance sheet

$100 and $42 of this change was recorded as an increase of interest expense in the consolidated

statement of income for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively

We do not enter into derivative instruments for any purpose other than cash flow hedging

purposes

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts

reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes Actual results could differ from those

estimates

Insurance Reserves

The Company purchases comprehensive liability insurance covering certain claims that occur at

parking facilities the Company leases or manages In addition the Company purchases umbrella/excess

liability coverage The Companys various liability insurance policies have deductibles of up to $250 that

must be met before the insurance companies are required to reimburse the Company for costs incurred

relating to covered claims As result the Company is in effect self-insured for all claims up to the

deductible levels The Company applies the provisions of SFAS No Accounting for Contingencies in

determining the timing and amount of expense recognition associated with claims against the Company

The expense recognition is based upon the Companys determination of an unfavorable outcome of

claim being deemed as probable and capable of being reasonably estimated as defined in SFAS No

This determination requires the use of judgment in both the estimation of probability and the amount

to be recognized as an expense The Company utilizes historical claims experience along with regular

input from third party insurance advisors in determining the required level of insurance reserves

Future information regarding historical loss experience may require changes to the level of insurance

reserves and could result in increased expense recognition in the future

Contingencies

The Company is subject to litigation in the normal course of our business The Company applies

the provisions of SFAS No Accounting for Contingencies in determining the recognition and

measurement of expense recognition associated with legal claims against the Company Management

uses guidance from internal and external legal counsel on the potential outcome of litigation in
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determining the need to record liabilities for potential losses and the disclosure of pending legal claims

See Note

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Fair Value

Measurements Statement No 157 Statement No 157 defines fair value establishes framework for

measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair

value measurements The statement does not require new fair value measurements but is applied to

the extent that other accounting pronouncements require or permit fair value measurements The

statement emphasizes that fair value is market-based measurement that should be determined based

on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability Companies will

be required to disclose the extent to which fair value is used to measure assets and liabilities the inputs

used to develop the measurements and the effect of certain of the measurements on earnings or
changes in net assets for the period Certain requirements of Statement No 157 are required for fiscal

years beginning after November 15 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years The effective

date for other requirements of Statement No 157 has been deferred for one year by the FASB The

Company adopted the sections of Statement No 157 which are effective for fiscal
years beginning after

November 15 2007 and there was no impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements The

Company is currently evaluating the impact of the delayed Sections of Statement No 157 on its

consolidated financial statements but is not yet in position to determine the impact of its adoption

In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement No 141 Revised 2007 Business Combinations

Statement No 141R effective prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date

is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15
2008 Statement No 141R establishes principles and requirements on how an acquirer recognizes and

measures in its financial statements identifiable assets acquired liabilities assumed noncontrolling

interests in the acquiree goodwill or gain from bargain purchase and accounting for transaction costs

Additionally Statement No 141R determines what information must be disclosed to enable users of

the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination The

Company adopted Statement No 141R on January 2009 The impact of the adoption of Statement

No 141R will depend on the nature and extent of business combinations occurring on or after the

effective date

In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated

Financial Statementsan amendment of ARB No 51 Statement No 160 Statement No 160

requires entities to report noncontrolling minority interests as component of shareholders equity on

the balance sheet include all earnings of consolidated subsidiary in consolidated results of operations
and treat all transactions between the parent and its noncontrolling interest holder that increase or

decrease the noncontrolling interest as equity provided the parent does not lose control Statement

No 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15 2008 must be adopted

concurrently with SFAS 141R and adoption is prospective only however presentation and disclosure

requirements described above must be applied retrospectively The Company has evaluated the impact
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that Statement No 160 will have on its financial statements and disclosures and determined that the

impact will not be material

Reclassification

Certain amounts previously presented in the financial statements of prior periods have been

reclassified to conform to current year presentation

Stock Split

On December 2007 the Board of Directors declared 2-for-i stock split in the form of 100%

common stock dividend to stockholders of record as of the close of business on January 2008 which

was distributed on January 17 2008 All share and per share data included in the consolidated financial

statements and accompanying notes have been adjusted to reflect this stock split

Note Net Income Per Common Share

In accordance with SFAS No.128 Earnings Per Share EPS basic net income per share is

computed by dividing net income by the weighted daily average number of shares of common stock

outstanding during the year Diluted net income per share is based upon the weighted daily average

number of shares of common stock outstanding for the year plus dilutive potential common shares

including stock options and restricted stock units using the treasury-stock method

reconciliation of the weighted average basic shares outstanding to the weighted average diluted

shares outstanding is as follows

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

in thousands except for share

and per share data

Net income 19045 17373 35751

Weighted average basic shares outstanding 17325235 18831667 19967286

Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock units 406238 457409 525234

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 17731473 19289076 20492520

Net income per share

Basic 1.10 0.92 1.79

Diluted 1.07 0.90 1.75

There were no anti-dilutive shares for the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

The dilutive effect of the one-time grant of 755000 restricted stock units is 47032 shares and is

reflected in diluted EPS by application of the treasury stock method pursuant to paragraph 17 of SPAS

No 128
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For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 18777 and 25849 shares respectively of

performance based restricted stock were not included in the computation of weighted diluted common
share amounts because the number of shares ultimately issued is contingent on the Companys
performance goals which were not achieved as of that date There were no performance based

restricted stock awards issued and outstanding in 2006

There are no additional securities that could dilute basic EPS in the future that were not included

in the computation of diluted EPS other than those disclosed

Note Leasehold Improvements Equipment and Construction in Progress net

summary of leasehold improvements equipment and construction in progress and related

accumulated depreciation and amortization is as follows

December 31

Ranges of Estimated useful life 2008 2007

Equipment 10 years 29615 30234
Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or

economic life up to 10
years 10340 10082

Construction in
progress 6517 4129

46472 44445
Less accumulated depreciation and

amortization 28930 28750
Leasehold improvements equipment and

construction in progress net $17542 $15695

Depreciation expense was $4403 $4200 and $4481 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Depreciation includes losses on abandonments of leasehold improvements and equipment of $584 $148

and $368 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Note Cost of Contracts net

Cost of contracts represents the contractual rights associated with providing parking services at

managed or leased facility Cost consists of either capitalized payments made to third parties or the

value ascribed to contracts acquired through acquisition Cost of contracts are amortized over the

estimated life of the contracts including anticipated renewals and terminations
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The balance of cost of contracts is comprised of the following

December 31

2008 2007

Cost of contracts $15303 39953

Accumulated amortization 4431 32265

Cost of contracts net $10872 7688

During 2008 we retired fully amortized contracts in the amount of $29177 that had expired

The expected future amortization of cost of contracts is as follows

Cost of Contract

2009 $1517

2010 1509

2011 1379

2012 1105

2013 1082

2014 and Thereafter 4280

Total
$10872

Note Acquisitions

During the year
ended December 31 2008 the Company completed two acquisitions

Consideration for all acquisitions was $8505 of which $6008 was paid in cash and $2497 in

discounted non-interest bearing note to be paid in the annual installments of $600 commencing

February 2009 and an estimated $187 to be paid in the future based upon financial performance

compared to forecast In addition the Company paid and capitalized $310 in acquisition costs

summary of the acquisitions follows

In November 2008 we acquired certain assets of Downtown Valet LLC valet operator in

Seattle Washington

In February 2008 we acquired certain assets of 0.0 Parking parking operator in Chicago

Illinois

The acquisitions
of Downtown Valet LLC and G.0 Parking represent acquisitions of businesses

as defined by EITF Issue No 98-3

These acquisitions consisted of goodwill of $3007 cost of contract of $5314 intangible assets of

$233 and equipment of $261 At December 31 2008 we accrued for contingency payment of $225

related to 2007 acquisition

During the year ended December 31 2007 the Company completed four acquisitions and

purchased certain assets of valet operation in Seattle Washington Consideration for all acquisitions
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was approximately $6550 $5928 paid in cash and $622 through the sale of certain contract rights in

non-cash transaction with an estimated $1525 to be paid in the future based upon financial

performance compared to forecast of which $64 has been paid in 2008 In addition the Company paid
and capitalized $274 in acquisition costs summary of the acquisitions follows

In September 2007 we acquired certain assets of Downtown Parking LLC parking operator
in Chicago Illinois

In September 2007 we acquired certain assets of Alliance International Security Inc regional

security services firm based in Los Angeles California

In July 2007 we acquired contract rights for certain locations in Los Angeles California from

related party

In July 2007 we acquired certain valet parking locations in Honolulu Hawaii

These acquisitions consisted of goodwill of $1252 cost of contract of $5195 intangible assets of

$260 and equipment of $117

The acquisitions for 2008 and 2007 were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting
The Company financed the acquisitions through additional term borrowings under the senior credit

facility and existing cash The results of operations of these acquisitions are included in the Companys
consolidated statement of income from the date of acquisition None of the acquisitions either

individually or in the aggregate is considered material to the Company

Note Borrowing Arrangements

Long-term borrowings in order of preference consist of

Amount Outstanding

December 31 December 31
Due Date 2008 2007

in thousands

Senior credit facility June 2013 $120600 $74150
Capital lease obligations Various 3039 4649
Obligations on Seller notes and other Various 1425 1564

125064 80363
Less current portion 1068 1938

$123996 $78425

Senior Credit Facility

On July 15 2008 we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement with group of six

banks Bank of America N.A as administrative agent issuing lender and as lender Wells Fargo
Bank N.A as syndication agent issuing lender and as lender Fifth Third Bank as lender First

Hawaiian Bank as lender JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as lender and U.S Bank National
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Association as lender This credit agreement amended and restated our credit facility dated June 29

2006

The senior credit facility was increased from $135000 to $210000 The $210000 revolving credit

facility will expire in July 2013 The revolving credit facility includes letter of credit sub-facility with

sublimit of $50000 and swing line sub-facility with sublimit of $10000

This revolving credit facility bears interest at our option at either LIBOR plus the applicable

LIBOR Margin ranging between 2.00% and 3.50% depending on the ratio of our total funded

indebtedness to our EBITDA from time to time Total Debt Ratio or the Base Rate as defined

below plus the applicable
Base Rate Margin ranging between 0.50% and 2.00% depending on our

Total Debt Ratio We may elect interest periods of one two three or six months for LIBOR based

borrowings The Base Rate is the greater
of the rate publicly announced from time to time by Bank

of America N.A as its prime rate or ii the overnight federal funds rate plus 0.50%

The senior credit facility includes fixed charge ratio covenant total debt to EBITDA ratio

covenant limit on our ability to incur additional indebtedness issue preferred stock or pay dividends

and certain other restrictions on our activities We are required to repay borrowings under the senior

credit facility out of the proceeds of future issuances of debt or equity securities and asset sales subject

to certain customary exceptions The senior credit facility is secured by substantially all of our assets

and all assets acquired in the future including pledge of 100% of the stock of our existing and future

domestic guarantor subsidiaries and 65% of the stock of our existing and future foreign subsidiaries

At December 31 2008 we are in compliance with all of our financial covenants

The weighted average interest rate on our senior credit facility at December 31 2008 and 2007 was

3.6% and 5.4% respectively The rate includes all outstanding LIBOR contracts interest rate cap effect

and letters of credit The weighted average interest rate on outstanding borrowings not including

letters of credit was 3.8% and 6.5% at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

At December 31 2008 we had $20767 of letters of credit outstanding under the senior credit

facility borrowings against the senior credit facility aggregated $120600 and we had $68633 available

under the senior credit facility

We have entered into various financing agreements which were used for the purchase of

equipment

Note Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income net of tax are as follows

2008 2007

Revaluation of interest rate cap 93
Effect of foreign currency translation 85 575

Total $85 $482
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Note Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense benefit for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006 were as follows

2008 2007 2006

Current provision

U.S federal 2797 901 298

Foreign 401 497 374

State 696 1007 191

Total current 3894 2405 863

Deferred provision benefit
U.S federal 6961 8018 14152
Foreign

State 767 844 1591
Total deferred 7728 8862 15743

Income tax expense benefit $11622 $11267 $14880

Deferred income taxes reflect the net effects of temporary differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amount used for income tax

purposes Significant components of the Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 are as follows

2008 2007

in thousands

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss carry forwards 8739 $12782
Accrued expenses 6360 6871
Accrued compensation 3694 3367
Tax credit carry forwards 861 1649
Book over tax depreciation and amortization 626 1114
Accrued lease obligations 148 211

Gross deferred tax assets 20428 25994
Less valuation allowance 456 608
Total deferred tax asset 19972 25386

Deferred tax liabilities

Prepaid expenses 280
Undistributed Foreign Earnings 527 646
Tax over book goodwill amortization 19217 17148
Total deferred tax liabilities 20024 17794
Net deferred tax liabilities assets 52 7592
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Amounts recognized on the balance sheet consist of

2008 2007

in thousands

Deferred tax asset current 3253 $6247

Deferred tax liability asset long term 3305 1345

Net deferred tax liabilities assets 52 $7592

SEAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes requires that we assess the realizability of deferred tax

assets at each reporting period These assessments generally consider several factors including the

reversal of existing temporary differences projected future taxable income and potential tax planning

strategies We have valuation allowances totaling $456 and $608 at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively
related to our state net operating loss carryforwards NOLs that we believe are not likely

to be realized based upon our estimates of future state taxable income limitations of the use of our

state NOLs and the carryforward life over which the state tax benefit will be realized

At December 31 2008 the Company had $21020 of gross federal net operating loss NOL5

carryforwards which will expire in the years 2021 through 2024 and $1382 of tax effected state net

operating loss NOLs carryforwards which will expire 2009 through 2026 As result of the initial

public offering completed in June of 2004 an ownership change occurred under Internal Revenue

Code Section 382 which limits our ability to use pre-change NOLs to reduce future taxable income

Since 2005 the Company has treated its investment in its Canadian subsidiary as non-permanent in

duration and provided taxes on the undistributed Canadian earnings under APB 23 In 2008 the

Company reassessed the treatment of the undistributed earnings of its Canadian subsidiary and

determined that approximately $500 of Canadian earnings are permanently reinvested to meet the

Canadian subsidiarys working capital requirements The Company has provided taxes for the remaining

undistributed earnings of its Canadian subsidiary in excess of the permanently reinvested amount
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reconciliation of the Companys reported income tax provision benefit to the amount
computed by multiplying book income/loss before income taxes by the statutory United States federal
income tax rate is as follows

2008 2007 2006

Tax at statutory rate
$10733 $10024 7305

Foreign Dividend and repatriation of foreign earnings 104 268 295
Permanent Differences 369 484 311
State taxes net of federal benefit 1498 1459 987
Effect of foreign tax rates 10 40 25

Recognition of tax credits 844 1047 223
Other 76 344

11774 11228 9044
Change in valuation allowance 152 39 23924
Income tax expense benefit $11622 $11267 $14880

Income taxes paid in aggregate to United States federal state and Canadian tax authorities was
$2564 $1145 and $572 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

In July 2006 FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Interpretation No 48

FIN 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty
in income taxes recognized in an enterprises financial statements in accordance with SFAS 109
Accounting for Income Taxes FIN 48 also prescribes recognition threshold and measurement attribute
for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax position taken or expected to be
taken in tax return The Company recognizes potential interest and penalties related to uncertain tax

positions if any in income tax expense Upon adoption as of January 2007 the Company completed
detailed analysis of its tax positions and determined that the implementation of FIN 48 did not have

an impact on the Companys financial position or results from operations As of December 31 2008
the Company has not identified any tax positions that would have material impact on the Companys
financial position

The tax years that remain subject to examination for the Companys major tax jurisdictions at

December 31 2008 are shown below

2004 2007 United Statesfederal income tax
2003 2007 United Statesstate and local income tax
2004 2007 Canada

Note Benefit Plans

The Company offers deferred compensation arrangements for certain key executives and sponsors
an employees savings and retirement plan in which certain employees are eligible to participate
Subject to their continued employment by the Company certain employees offered supplemental
pension arrangements will receive defined monthly benefit upon attaining age 65 At December 31
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2008 and 2007 the Company has accrued $3008 and $2925 respectively representing the present

value of the future benefit payments Expenses related to these plans amounted to $154 $171 and

$182 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Participants in the savings and retirement plan may elect to contribute portion of their

compensation to the plan The Company contributes an amount in cash or other property as required

by the plan Expenses related to these plans amounted to $904 $919 and $808 in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

The Company also offers non-qualified deferred compensation plan This plan allows certain

employees to defer portion of their compensation limited tO maximum of $50 per year to be paid

to the participants upon retirement To support the non-qualified deferred compensation plan the

Company has elected to purchase Company owned life insurance COLI policies on certain plan

participants The cash surrender value of the COLI policies is designed to provide source for funding

the accrued liability As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the cash surrender value of the COLI policies

is $943 and $717 respectivcly and is included in intangible and other assets net on the consolidated

balance sheet The liability for the non-qualified deferred compensation plan is included in other

long-term liabilities and was $1336 and $1148 as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively As of

December 31 2008 and 2007 the plan also included restricted cash of $484 and $438 respectively and

is included in intangible and other assets net on the consolidated balance sheet

The Company also contributes to two multi-employer defined contribution and seven multi-

employer defined benefit plans which cover certain union employees Expenses related to these plans

were $575 $374 and $418 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Note Leases and Contingencies

The Company operates parking facilities under operating leases expiring on various dates

generally prior to 2019 Certain of the leases contain options to renew at the Companys discretion

Total future annual rent expense is not determinable due to the application of percentage factors

based on revenues At December 31 2008 the Companys minimum rental commitments excluding

contingent rent provisions under all non-cancelable leases are as follows

20091 31556

2010 23299

2011 19362

2012 14648

2013 8365

2014 and thereafter 19922

$117152

$6495 is included in 2009s minimum commitments for leases that expire in less than one

year
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Rent expense including contingent rents was $110134 $104032 and $109597 in 2008 2007 and

2006 respectively

Contingent rent expense was $62013 64874 and $65421 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Contingent rent expense consists primarily of percentage rent payments which will cease at various

times as certain leases expire

Note Management Contracts and Related Arrangements with Affiliates

In connection with the acquisition of 76% interest in Executive Parking Industries LLC we
entered into management agreement dated May 1998 with DE Parking Inc privately held

company owned by Ed Simmons an executive officer and Dale Stark former Senior Vice President

and presently consultant of the Company The management agreement was for period of nine years

and terminated on April 30 2007 In consideration of the services provided by DE under this

arrangement we paid DE an annual fee of $411 in 2007 and $549 in 2006

We entered into consulting agreement with DE Parking Inc and Dale Stark that became
effective on May 2007 after the aforementioned management agreement terminated by its terms

This consulting agreement is for period of three years terminating on April30 2010 Per the terms

of the agreement consideration for services provided are $250 per year In addition the consultant is

eligible for consultant fee of up to $50 per year In consideration of the services provided by DE
under this arrangement we paid DE $401 and accrued $50 in 2008 and paid $167 in 2007

On December 31 2000 we sold at fair market value certain contract rights to DE In July 2007
we bought back certain contract rights for approximately $1472 $850 paid in cash and $62 gain

through the sale of certain contract rights representing five locations The Company continued to

operate an additional location through January 2008 at which time the location was sold to an

unrelated third party We received net management fees and reimbursement for support services in

connection with the operation of the parking facilities from DE We recorded net management fees

from DE of $4 in 2008 $66 in 2007 and $149 in 2006

In 2008 Standard Parking provided property management services for twenty separate retail

shopping centers and commercial office buildings in which DE has an ownership interest Dale Stark

is the managing member of each of the property ownership entity In consideration of the property

management services we provided for these twenty properties we recorded net management fees

totaling $632 in 2008 In 2007 we operated fifteen of these properties and recorded net management
fees totaling $500 In 2006 we operated nine of these properties and recorded net management fees

totaling $363

In 2008 our wholly owned subsidiary Preferred Response Security Services Inc provided security

services for one retail shopping center owned by DE and two retail shopping centers in 2007 and

2006 We recorded net management fees amounting to $34 for these security services in 2008 $35 in

2007 and $37 in 2006 In 2008 and 2007 we provided sweeping and power washing for two retail

shopping facilities in which DE has an ownership interest and three facilities in 2006 For these

services we recorded net management fees totaling $9 in 2008 $9 in 2007 and $45 in 2006
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Note Legal Proceedings

In addition to any litigation that may arise in connection with insured matters we are subject to

various claims and legal proceedings that consist principally of lease and contract disputes We consider

these claims and legal proceedings to be routine and incidental to our business and in the opinion of

management the ultimate liability with respect to these proceedings and claims will not materially

affect our financial position operations or liquidity

Note Capital Leases

Property under capital leases included within equipment is as follows

December 31

2008 2007

Service vehicles $6795 $10296

Computer equipment 1667

Parking equipment 497 768

7292 12731

Less Accumulated depreciation 3721 6197

$3571 6534

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases at December 31 2008 together with the

present
value of the minimum lease payments are as follows

2009 $1026

2010 625

2011 588

2012 643

2013 and thereafter 410

Total minimum payments 3292

Less Amounts representing interest 253

Present value of minimum payments 3039

Less Current portion
948

Total long-term portion $2091

Note Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In accordance with FASB Statement No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets goodwill

was assigned to respective segments that we now present based upon the specific Region where the

assets acquired and associate goodwill resided

As result of the acquisitions which occurred during 2008 and 2007 our contingent payments

outstanding as of December 31 2008 total $1423 will be paid over time based on achieving certain

performance criteria Such contingent payments will be accounted for as additional purchase price
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The following table reflects the changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill by reported segment
for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Balance as of December 31 2006

Acquired during the period

Foreign currency translation

Balance as of December 31 2007

Acquired during the period

Adjustments to purchase price

Contingency payments related to acquisitions

Foreign currency translation

Balance as of December 31 2008 $58454

Note Long-Term Receivables net

Long-term receivables net consist of the following

Bradley International Airport

Deficiency payments

Other Bradley related net

Valuation allowance

Total long-term receivables net

Total

$119078

102

______
710

_______
$119890

3007

1252

289

888

$22577 $123550

Amount Outstanding

December 31 2008 December 31 2007

We are entered into 25-year agreement with the State of Connecticut State that expires on

April 2025 under which we operate the surface parking and 3500 garage parking spaces at Bradley
International Airport located in the Hartford Connecticut metropolitan area The company manages
the facility for which it is expected to receive management fee

The parking garage was financed on April 2000 through the issuance of $53800 of State of

Connecticut special facility revenue bonds representing $47700 non-taxable Series bonds and

separate taxable issuance of $6100 Series bonds The Series bonds were retired on July 2006

according to the terms of the indenture The Bradley agreement provides that we deposit with trustee

for the bondholders all gross revenues collected from operations of the surface and garage parking and

from these
gross revenues Principal and interest on the Bradley special facility revenue bonds increase

from approximately $3600 in lease year 2002 to approximately $4500 in lease year 2025 Annual

guaranteed minimum payments to the State increase from approximately $8300 in lease year 2002 to

Region
One

$55175

Region
iWo

$15657

710

$16367

Region
Three

$25669

102

25771

Region
Four

$22577

$22577$55175

3007

272

1252

17

888

$15479 $27040

Agreement

5961

3203

2484

6680

4135

3203

2484

4854
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approximately $13200 in lease
year

2024 The annual minimum guaranteed payment to the State as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 was $9531 and $9335 respectively

All of the cash flow from the Parking Facilities are pledged to the security of the bonds and are

collected and deposited with the bond trustee Each month the bond trustee makes certain required

monthly distributions which are characterized as Guaranteed Payments To the extent the monthly

gross receipts generated by the Parking Facilities are not sufficient for the trustee to make the required

Guaranteed Payments we are obligated to deliver the deficiency amount to the trustee Additionally

the Guaranteed Payments are required to be paid before we are reimbursed for deficiency payments or

management fees

The following is the list of Guaranteed Payments

Garage and Surface Operating Expenses

Principal and Interest on Bonds

Trustee Expenses

Major Maintenance and Capital Improvement Deposits

State Minimum Guarantee

However to the extent there is cash surplus in any month during the term of the Lease we

have the right to be repaid the principal amount of any and all deficiency payments together with

actual interest expenses and premium not to exceed 10% of the initial deficiency payment We

calculate and record interest income and premium income in the period the associated deficiency

payment is received from the trustee

Deficiency Payments

To the extent that monthly gross receipts are not sufficient for the trustee to make the required

payments we are obligated pursuant to our agreement to deliver the deficiency amount to the trustee

within three business days of being notified We are responsible for these deficiency payments

regardless of the amount of utilization for the Bradley parking facilities The deficiency payments

represent contingent interest bearing advances to the trustee to cover operating cash flow requirements

To the extent sufficient funds are available in the appropriate fund the trustee is then directed by the

State to reimburse us for deficiency payments up to the amount of the calculated surplus

In the year ended December 31 2008 we made deficiency payments net of repayments received

of $1826 In addition in 2008 we received $18 for premium income on deficiency repayments from the

trustee and reversed the $52 interest and premium receivable recorded in 2007 In the year
ended

December 31 2007 we received repayments net of deficiency payments of $202 In addition in 2007

we received $114 for the 2006 receivable and $282 for interest and premium income on deficiency

repayments from the trustee The total receivable from the trustee for interest and premium income

related to deficiency repayments were $0 and $52 as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
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The payments if any are recorded as receivable by us for which we are reimbursed from time to

time as provided in the trust agreement As of December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 we have

receivable of $5961 and $4135 respectively compromised of cumulative deficiency payments to the

trustee net of reimbursements We believe these advances to be fully recoverable and therefore have

not recorded valuation allowance for them We do not guarantee the payment of any principal or

interest on any debt obligations of the State of Connecticut or the trustee

Per the Construction Financing and Operating Special Facility Lease Agreement which governs
reimbursement of Guarantor Payments places no time restriction or language exists limiting our right

to reimbursement in the Lease

The following table reconciles the beginning and ending balance of the receivable for each year

presented

Deficiency payments
Balance at beginning of year

Deficiency payments made

Deficiency repayment received

December 31

2008 2007

4135

2153

327

5961

3203

2484
Total long-term receivables 6680

The following table reconciles interest and premium income accrued and interest and premium
income received which are not included in the above balances

Interest and premium on deficiency payments
Balance at beginning of

year

Reversal of uncollected interest and premium accrued in prior year
Interest and premium accrued

Interest and premium income received

December 31

2008 2007

18 334

18 396
Balance at end of

year 52

In addition to the recovery of certain general and administrative expenses incurred our agreement

provides for an annual management fee payment which is based on three operating profit tiers

calculated for each year during the term of the agreement The management fee is further apportioned

Balance at end of year

Other Bradley related

Valuation allowance

4337
651

853

4135

3203

2484

4854

Compensation

$52 $114

52
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60% to us and 40% to an un-affiliated entity To the extent that funds are available for the trustee to

make distribution the annual management fee is paid when sufficient cash is paid after the

Guaranteed Payments as defined in our agreement and after the repayment of all deficiency

payments including accrued interest and premium However our right to the management fee accrues

each year during the term of the agreement and is paid when sufficient cash is available for the trustee

to make distribution

The annual management fee is paid after the repayment of all deficiency payments including

accrued interest and premium therefore due to the existence and length of time for repayment of the

deficiency amounts to the Company no management fees have been recognized Management fees will

be recognized
in accordance with SAB 104 when collectibility is reasonably assured

Cumulative management fees of $3600 have not been recognized as of December 31 2008 and no

management fees were recognized during 2008 and 2007

Note Stock Repurchases

2008 Stock Repurchases

In December 2007 the Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase shares of our common

stock on the open market or through private purchases up to $25000 in aggregate As of

December 31 2007 $22882 remained available for repurchase under this authorization

During the first quarter of 2008 we repurchased from third party shareholders 257125 shares at

an average price of $20.79 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open

market Our majority shareholder sold to us 120111 shares in the first quarter at an average price of

$20.76 per
share The total value of the first quarter

transactions was $7839 214500 shares were

retired in March 2008 and the remaining 162736 shares were retired in June 2008

During the second quarter of 2008 we repurchased from third party shareholders 120000 shares at

an average price of $20.70 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open

market Our majority shareholder sold to us 125964 shares in the second quarter at an average price of

$20.67 per
share The total value of the second quarter

transactions was $5087 173701 shares were

retired in June 2008 and the remaining 72263 were retired during the third quarter

In July 2008 the Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase shares of our common stock on

the open market or through private purchases up to an additional $60000 in aggregate

During the third quarter of 2008 we repurchased from third
party

shareholders 565447 shares at

an average price of $21.19 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open

market Our majority shareholder sold to us 580060 shares in the third quarter at an average price of

$21.16 per
share In addition we repurchased from third party

shareholders 14600 shares at an average

price of $22.66 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open market The

total value of the third quarter transactions was $24586 994841 shares were retired during the third

quarter
of 2008 and the remaining 165266 shares were retired in the fourth quarter of 2008
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The December 2007 repurchase authorization by the Board of Directors was completed in August

2008

During the fourth quarter of 2008 we repurchased from third party shareholders 640348 shares at

an average price of $18.34 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open
market Our majority shareholder sold to us 545683 shares in the fourth quarter at an average price of

$18.31 per share In addition we repurchased from third party shareholders 24700 shares at an average

price of $18.21 per share including average commissions of $0.03 per share on the open market Our

majority shareholder also sold us its pro-rata ownership of third quarter open market repurchase of

14904 shares at an average price of $22.63 per share The total value of the fourth quarter transactions

was $22512 598212 shares were retired during the fourth quarter of 2008 and the remaining 627423

shares were held as treasury stock and retired during the first quarter of 2009

As of December 31 2008 $22857 remained available for repurchase under the July 2008

authorization by the Board of Directors

2007 Stock Repurchase

In March 2007 the Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase shares of our common stock

on the open market or through private purchases up to $20000 in aggregate This repurchase program

was completed during the fourth quarter of 2007

During the first quarter of 2007 we repurchased from third
party shareholders 95278 shares at an

average price of $17.57 per share including average commissions of $0.01 per share on the open

market Our majority shareholder sold to us 100000 shares in the first quarter at an average price of

$17.56 per share The total value of the first quarter transactions was $3430 All treasury shares were

retired in March 2007

During the second quarter of 2007 we repurchased from third party shareholders 175600 shares at

an average price of $18.33 per share including average commissions of $0.01 per share on the open
market Our majority shareholder sold to us 182808 shares in the second quarter at an average price of

$18.32 per share The total value of the second quarter transactions was $6568 All
treasury shares

were retired during the second quarter

During the third quarter of 2007 we repurchased from third party shareholders 135756 shares at

an average price of $18.14 per share including average commission of $0.01 per share on the open
market Our majority shareholder sold to us 139772 shares in the third quarter at an average price of

$18.13 per share The total value of the third quarter transactions was $4997 215012 shares were

retired in September 2007 and the remaining 60516 shares were retired in October 2007

In December 2007 the Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase shares of our common
stock on the open market or through private purchases up to an additional $25000 in aggregate

During the fourth
quarter of 2007 we repurchased from third

party shareholders 74052 shares at

an average price of $20.43 per share including average commissions of $0.01 per share on the open
market and our majority shareholder agreed in each case to sell shares equal to its

pro-rata ownership
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of 76106 shares at an average price of $20.42 per share In addition we repurchased from third party

shareholders 167544 shares at an average price of $24.22 per share including average commissions of

$0.01 per share on the open market The total value of the fourth quarter
transactions was $7124

269228 shares were retired during the fourth quarter of 2007 and the remaining 48474 shares were

held as treasury stock and retired during the first quarter of 2008

Note Domestic and Foreign Operations

Our business activities consist of domestic and foreign operations Foreign operations are

conducted in Canada Revenue attributable to foreign operations were less than 10% of consolidated

revenues for each of the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

summary of information about our foreign and domestic operations is as follows

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Total revenues excluding reimbursement of management contract

expenses

Domestic $294573 $260793 $255959

Foreign 5566 4146 3931

Consolidated $300139 $264939 $259890

Operating income

Domestic 35993 34440 28191

Foreign 1125 1092 800

Consolidated 37118 35532 28991

Income before income taxes

Domestic 29493 27503 20004

Foreign 1174 1137 867

Consolidated 30667 28640 20871

Identifiable assets

Domestic $222415 $207375 $205412

Foreign 6826 8013 7116

Consolidated $229241 $215388 $212528

Business Unit Segment Information

SFAS No 131 Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information SFAS 131
establishes annual and interim reporting

standards for an enterprises operating segments and related

disclosures about its products services geographic areas and major customers An operating segment is

defined as component of an enterprise that engages in business activities from which it may earn

revenues and incur expenses and about which separate financial information is regularly evaluated by
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the Chief Operating Decision Maker CODM in
deciding how to allocate resources The CODM as

defined by SFAS 131 is the Companys President and Chief Executive Officer CEO
Each of the operating segments is directly responsible for revenue and expenses related to their

operations including direct regional administrative costs Finance information technology human

resources and legal are shared functions that are not allocated back to the four
operating segments

The CODM assesses the performance of each
operating segment using information about its revenue

and operating income loss before interest taxes and depreciation and amortization but does not

evaluate segments using discrete asset information There are no inter-segment transactions and the

Company does not allocate interest and other income interest expense depreciation and amortization

or taxes to operating segments The accounting policies for segment reporting are the same as for the

Company as whole

The Company is managed based on regions administered by executive vice presidents Three

regions are generally organized geographically with the fourth region encompassing major airports and

transportation operations nationwide The following is summary of revenues excluding
reimbursement of management contract expenses and

gross profit by regions for the
years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 Information related to prior years has been recast to conform to

the current region alignment
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In accordance with SFAS 131 the Company has provided this business unit segment information

for all comparable prior periods Segment information is summarized as follows in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Revenuesa
Region One

Lease contracts 73006 62788 59542

Management contracts 49102 44202 40460

Total Region One 122108 106990 100002

Region Two

Lease contracts 17517 13594 13292

Management contracts 18158 15157 11450

Total Region Two 35675 28751 24742

Region Three

Lease contracts 19905 23707 35365

Management contracts 45985 37822 34456

Total Region Three 65890 61529 69821

Region Four

Lease contracts 43782 44873 44891

Management contracts 32895 24555 20044

Total Region Four 76677 69428 64935

Other

Lease contracts 101 365 246

Management contracts 312 2124 144

Total Other 211 1759 390

Reimbursed expense 400621 356782 346055

Total revenues $700760 $621721 $605945

Gross Profit

Region One
Lease contracts 5700 8% 5800 9% 5334 9%

Management contracts 27168 55% 26528 60% 26204 65%

Total Region One 32868 32328 31538

Region Two

Lease contracts 3429 20% 2981 22% 2974 22%

Management contracts 10934 60% 8065 53% 6301 55%

Total Region Two 14363 11046 9.275

Region Three

Lease contracts 1475 7% 2216 9% 2303 7%

Management contracts 22223 48% 20473 54% 17800 52%

Total Region Three 23698 22689 20103

Region Four

Lease contracts 3512 8% 4154 9% 4116 9%

Management contracts 14390 44% 12389 50% 10937 55%

ibtal Region Four 17902 16543 15053

Other

Lease contracts 137 136% 626 172% 434 176%
Management contracts 1828 586% 2431 114% 322 224%

Total Other 1965 3057 112

ibtal gross profit
90796 85663 75857
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Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

General and administrative expenses 47619 44796 41228
General and administrative

expense percentage of gross profit 52% 52% 54%

Depreciation and amortization 6059 5335 5638

Operating income
37118 35532 28991

Other expenses income
Interest expense 6476 7056 8296
Interest income 173 610 552

6303 6446 7744
Minority interest 148 446 376

Income before income taxes 30667 28640 20871
Income tax expense benefit 11622 11267 14880
Net income 19045 17373 35751

Excludes reimbursement of management contract expenses

Region One encompasses operations in Delaware District of Columbia Illinois Indiana Iowa
Kansas Maine Maryland Massachusetts Minnesota Missouri New Hampshire New Jersey New
York North Carolina Ohio Rhode Island Vermont Virginia and Wisconsin

Region Two encompasses operations in Alabama British Columbia Florida Georgia Louisiana

Ontario Tennessee and Texas

Region Three encompasses operations in Arizona California Colorado Hawaii Nevada Utah
Washington and Wyoming

Region Four encompasses all major airport and transportation operations nationwide

Other consists of ancillary revenue that is not specifically identifiable to region and insurance

reserve adjustments related to prior years

The CODM does not evaluate segments using discrete asset information

Note Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 2006 we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No 123R

using the modified prospective method and consequently we have not retroactively adjusted prior

period results Under this method compensation costs for the
years ended December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 are based on the estimated fair value of the respective options and the proportion vesting in

the period Deductions for stock-based employee compensation expense for the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
Allocation of compensation expense was made using historical option terms for option grants made to

our employees and historical price volatility

The Company has an amended and restated Long-Term Incentive Plan that was adopted in

conjunction with our IPO On February 27 2008 our Board of Directors approved an amendment to
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our Long-Term Incentive Plan subject to shareholder approval that increased the maximum number of

shares of common stock available for awards under the Long-Term Incentive Plan from 2000000 to

2175000 and extended the Plans termination date Our shareholders approved this Plan amendment

on April 22 2008 and the Plan now terminates twenty years
from the date of such approval or

April 22 2028 At December 31 2008 122471 shares remained available for award under the Plan In

most cases options granted under the Plan vest at the end of three-year period from the date of the

award Options are granted with an exercise price equal to the closing price at the date of grant

Stock Options and Grants

We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of each option grant as

of the date of grant The volatilities are based on the 90 day historical volatility of our common stock

as the grant date The risk free interest rate is based on zero-coupon U.S government issues with

remaining term equal to the expected life of the option For options granted prior to 2008 the

expected life for options was calculated using the simplified method The simplified method was

calculated as the vesting term plus the contractual term divided by two

2007 2006

Estimated weighted-average fair value of options granted $7.86 $5.59

2007 2006

Weighted average dividend yield
0% 0%

Weighted average volatility
34.84% 27.07%

Weighted average risk free interest rate 4.65% 5.03%

Expected life of option years

There were no options granted during the year ended December 31 2008

On January 24 2008 we issued vested stock grants totaling 1084 shares to certain director The

total value of the grant was $25 and is included in general and administrative expenses

On April 22 2008 we issued vested stock grants totaling 16200 to certain directors The total

value of the grant was $385 and is included in general and administrative expenses

On April 25 2007 we issued stock options which vested immediately to purchase 19068 shares of

common stock at market price of $17.02 per share to certain directors

On May 2006 we issued stock options which vested immediately to purchase 26820 shares of

common stock at market price of $13.53 per share to certain directors

The Company recognized $411 $282 and $480 of stock based compensation expense for the years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively which is included in general and administrative

expense As of December 31 2008 there was no unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested

options
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The following table summarizes the transactions pursuant to our stock option plans for the last

three years ended December 31

Outstanding at December 31 2005

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Outstanding at December 31 2006

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Outstanding at December 31 2007

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Outstanding at December 31 2008

Vested and Exercisable at

December 31 2008

Nonvested Options

Nonvested at January 2008

Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Nonvested at December 31 2008

Weighted Average

Exercise Price

4.10

$13.53

3.41

n/a

4.45

$17.03

4.36

5.75

4.77

n/a

4.75

n/a

4.77

Number of

Shares

1142510

26820

148266

1021064

19068

228654

2414

809064

152161

656903

Aggregate

Weighted Average Remaining Intrinsic

Contractual Term in years Value

5.6 $9572

5.6656903 4.77 $9572

At December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 options to purchase 656903 801964 and 722272 shares of

common stock respectively were exercisable at weighted average exercise prices of $4.77 $4.75 and

$3.85 per share respectively The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $2615 $3204 and $1354 respectively

summary of the status of the nonvested options as of December 31 2008 and changes during

the year ended December 31 2008 is presented below

Shares

7100

7100

Weighted Average

Grant-Date

Fair Value

$7.40

$7.40
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Performance-Based Incentive Program

In December 2006 the Board of Directors adopted performance-based incentive program under

our Long-Term Incentive Plan This new program provides participating executives with the opportunity

to earn combination of stock 50% and cash 50% if certain performance targets for pre-tax income

and pre-tax free cash flow are achieved On February 23 2007 certain participating executives became

entitled to performance restricted stock based on the stock price at the commencement of the three

year performance cycle 2007 2009 and as result 16404 shares were issued subject to vesting upon

the achievement of the performance goals On April 13 2007 an additional 13294 shares of the

performance restricted stock were issued subject to vesting upon the achievement of the three year

performance goals to the remaining participating executives On December 31 2007 3849 shares were

released free of restrictions in accordance with the achievement of the first year performance goals On

December 31 2008 7072 shares were released free of restrictions in accordance with the achievement

of the second year performance goals

summary of the status of the nonvested restricted stock shares as of December 31 2008 and

changes during the year ended December 31 2008 is presented below

Weighted Average

Grant-Date

Nonvested Shares Shares Fair Value

Nonvested at January 2008 25849 $19.21

Granted

Vested 7072 $19.21

Forfeited 2816 $19.21

Nonvested at December 31 2008 15961 $19.21

The total value of the restricted stock awards vested during the
year

ended December 31 2008 was

$136

In accordance with SFAS No 123R recording of stock-based compensation expense for awards

with performance conditions is based on the probable outcome of that performance condition The

Company recognized $107 and $182 of stock-based compensation expense and $107 and $182 of cash

compensation expense related to the performance-based incentive program for the
years

ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively which is included in general and administrative expenses As

of December 31 2008 there was $91 of unrecognized compensation costs related to the performance-

based incentive program which is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of year

Restricted Stock Unit

In March 2008 the Companys Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors authorized

one-time grant of 750000 restricted stock units that subsequently were awarded to members of our

senior management team on July 2008 In November 2008 an additional 5000 restricted stock units

were also awarded The restricted stock units vest in one-third installments on each of the tenth
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eleventh and twelfth anniversaries of the grant date The restricted stock unit agreements provide for

accelerated vesting upon the recipients retirement age

The cost of restricted stock units is determined using the fair value of our common stock on the

date of the grant and compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period In accordance with

SFAS No 123R we estimate forfeitures at the time of the grant and revise those estimates in

subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates We use historical data to estimate

pre-vesting forfeitures and record stock-based compensation expense only for those awards that are

expected to vest

summary of the status of the restricted stock units as of December 31 2008 and changes during
the year ended December 31 2008 is presented below

Weighted Average
Grant-Date

Nonvested Shares Shares Fair Value

Nonvested at January 2008

Granted 755000 $18.26

Vested

Forfeited

Nonvested at December 31 2008 755000 $18.26

The Company recognized $991 of stock based compensation expense related to the restricted stock

units for the year ended December 31 2008 which is included in general and administrative expense
As of December 31 2008 there was $11661 of unrecognized stock-based compensation costs net of

estimated forfeitures related to the restricted stock units that is expected to be recognized over

weighted average period of approximately 7.8 years

Note Hurricane Katrina

On May 2008 we entered into definitive settlement agreement with our insurance carrier

which finalized all of our open claims with respect to Hurricane Katrina The settlement agreement was

for $4225 of which $2000 was received previously We were required to reimburse the owners of the

leased and managed locations for property damage of approximately $2228 After payment of

settlement fees expenses and other amounts due under contractual arrangements we recorded $1997
in pre-tax income of which $1577 was recorded as revenue and $420 was recorded as reduction of

general and administrative expenses
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authorized

STANDARD PARKING CORPORATION

By Is JAMES WILHELM

James Wilhelm

Directo President and Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer
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indicated
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In Thousands

Additions

Balance at Charged to Balance at

Beginning of Costs and End of

Description
Year Expenses Reductions1 Year2

Year ended December 31 2008

Deducted from asset accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts 3617 850 600 $3867

Year ended December 31 2007

Deducted from asset accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts 3384 1066 833 3617

Year ended December 31 2006

Allowance for doubtful accounts 3565 971 1152 3384

Deducted from asset accounts

Deferred tax valuation account

Year ended December 31 2008 608 152 456

Year ended December 31 2007 569 39 608

Year ended December 31 2006 24493 23924 569

Represents uncollectible accounts written off net of recoveries and reversal of provision

Includes long-term receivables valuation allowance of $2.5 million
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June 2004
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Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2004

10.4.2 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of May 10 2004 between the Company
and Myron Warshauer incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.4.2 of the Companys
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2004

10.5 Employment Agreement dated as of March 26 1998 between the Company and

Michael Wolf incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.12 of the Companys Registration

Statement on Form S-4 File No 333-50437 filed on April 17 1998

10.5.1 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of June 19 2000 between the Company
and Michael Wolf incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.5.1 of the Companys

Registration Statement on Form 5-1 File No 333-112652 filed on February 10 2004

10.5.2 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of December 2000 between

the Company and Michael Wolf incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.22 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2000

10.5.3 Third Amendment to Employment Agreement dated April 2002 between the Company
and Michael Wolf incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.19.3 to the Companys
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2002
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10.5.4 Fourth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 31 2003 between the

Company and Michael Wolf incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.5.4 of the

Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on February 10

2004

10.5.5 Fifth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 18 2008 between the

Company and Michael Wolf

10.5.6 Sixth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated January 28 2009 between the

Company and Michael Wolf incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.3 of the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 2009

10.6 Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated as of January 28 2009

between Company and James Wilhelm incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.3 of the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 2009

10.7 Employment Agreement dated May 18 1998 between the Company and Robert Sacks

incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.24 of the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K filed for December 31 2001

10.7.1 First Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of November 2001 between the

Company and Robert Sacks incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.25 of the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2001

10.7.2 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of August 2003 between the

Company and Robert Sacks incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.7.2 of the

Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on February 10

2004

10.7.3 Third Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of April 2005 between the

Company and Robert Sacks

10.7.4 Fourth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of December 29 2008 between

the Company and Robert Sacks

10.7.5 Fifth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of January 28 2009 between the

Company and Robert Sacks

10.8 Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated as of December 2002

between the Company and John Ricchiuto incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.22.2 of

the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2002

10.8.1 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated as

of April 11 2005 between the Company and John Ricchiuto incorporated by reference to

exhibit 10.3 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2005

10.9 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated March 2005 between the

Company and Steven Warshauer incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2005

10.10 Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated as of May 18 2006

between the Company and Edward Simmons incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1

of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 24 2006
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10.11 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Marc

Baumann dated as of October 2001 incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.27 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2001

10.11.P First Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the

Company and Marc Baumann dated as of December 29 2008

10.11.2 Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the

Company and Marc Baumann dated as of January 28 2009 incorporated by reference

to exhibit 10.2 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 2009

10.12 Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated as of March 2005
between the Company and Thomas Hagerman incorporated by reference to

exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2005

10.12.1 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement dated

October 2007 between the Company and Thomas Hagerman incorporated by reference

to exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 100 filed for September 30

2007

10.13 Long-Term Incentive Plan dated as of May 2004 incorporated by reference to

exhibit 10.12 of Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i

File No 333-112652 filed on May 10 2004

10.13.1 Long-Term Incentive Plan Amendment effective as of April 22 2008 incorporated by

reference to Appendix of the Companys 2008 Proxy on Form DEF 14A filed on

April 2008

10.14 Form of Amended and Restated Stock Option Award Agreement between the Company
and an optionee incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on November 21 2005

10.14.1 Form of First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Stock Option Award Agreement
between the Company and an optionee incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 of the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 21 2005

10.15 Consulting Agreement dated as of October 16 2001 between the Company and Shoreline

Enterprises LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.36 of the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2001

10.15.1 Amendment to Consulting Agreement dated as of May 10 2004 between the Company
and Shoreline Enterprises LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.14.1 of the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for December 31 2004

10.16 Executive Parking Management Agreement dated as of May 1998 by and among the

Company DE Parking Edward Simmons and Dale Stark incorporated by

reference to exhibit 10.32 of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for

December 31 2002

10.16.1 First Amendment to Executive Parking Management Agreement dated as of August

1999 by and among the Company DE Parking Edward Simmons and Dale Stark

incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.32.1 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K filed for December 31 2002
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10.17 Consulting Agreement effective as of May 2007 by and among the Company DE
Parking Inc and Dale Stark incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.17 of the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for December 31 2007

10.18 Property Management Agreement dated as of September 2003 between the Company
and Paxton Plaza LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.19 of the Companys

Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on February 10 2004

10.19 Property Management Agreement dated as of September 2003 between the Company
and Infinity Equities LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.20 of the Companys

Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on February 10 2004

10.20 Agreement of Lease dated as of June 1998 between the Company and LaSalle National

Bank as successor trustee to LaSalle National Trust N.A as successor trustee to LaSalle

National Bank incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.21 of the Companys Registration

Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on February 10 2004

10.20.1 First Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated as of May 1999 between the Company

and LaSalle National Bank as successor trustee to LaSalle National Trust N.A as

successor trustee to LaSalle National Bank incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.21.1 of

the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on

February 10 2004

10.20.2 Second Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated as of July 27 2000 between the

Company and LaSalle National Bank as successor trustee to LaSalle National Trust N.A

as successor trustee to LaSalle National Bank incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.21.2

of the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on

February 10 2004

10.20.3 Third Amendment to Agreement of Lease dated as of September ii 2003 between the

Company and LaSalle National Bank as successor trustee to LaSalle National Trust N.A

as successor trustee to LaSalle National Bank incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.21.3

of the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on

February 10 2004

10.21 Employment Agreement dated May 2004 between the Company and John Holten

incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.23 of Amendment No to the Companys

Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on May 18 2004

10.2 1.1 Side Letters dated May 2004 related to the Employment Agreement dated May 2004

between the Company and John Holten incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.23.1 of

Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File

No 333-112652 filed on May 18 2004

10.22 Consulting Agreement dated as of March 2004 between the Company and Gunnar

Klintberg incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.24 of Amendment No to the

Companys Registration Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on May 10 2004

10.22.1 First Amendment to Consulting Agreement dated March 15 2006 between the Company
and Gunnar Klintberg incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.24.1 of the Companys
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 16 2006

137



Exhibit

Number Description

10.23 Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 27 2004 between the Company
and Steamboat Industries LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10 26 of Amendment

No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-112652 filed on

May 24 2004

10.24 Stock Repurchase Agreement dated as of December 31 2007 by and between the

Company and Steamboat Industries LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 of the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 2008

10.25 Form of Property Management Agreement incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.30 of

the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 10 2006

10.26 Standard Parking Corporation Restricted Stock Unit Agreement dated as of July 2008

incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 of the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on July 2008

10.27 Guaranty Agreement of APCOA/Standard Parking Inc dated as of March 2000 to and for

the benefit of the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation

10.28 Construction Financing and Operating Special Facility Lease Agreement dated as of

March 2000 between the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation and APCOA
Bradley Parking Company LLC

10.29 Trust Indenture dated March 2000 between State of Connecticut and First Union

National Bank as Trustee

14.1 Code of Ethics incorporated by reference to exhibit 14.1 of the Companys Annual Report

on Form 10-K for December 31 2002

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm dated as of March 12 2009

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by James

Wilhelm

31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Marc

Baumann

31.3 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Daniel

Meyer

32 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by James

Wilhelm Marc Baumann and Daniel Meyer

Filed herewith

Management contract or compensation plan contract or agreement
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

James Wilhelm certify that

have reviewed this Form 10-K of Standard Parking Corporation

Based on my knowledge this
report

does not contain any untrue statement of material fact

or omit to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances

under which such statements were made not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this

report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in

this report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and

maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and

15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f

and 15d-15for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to

the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control

over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and

presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and

procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial

reporting that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent

evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit

committee of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who

have significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 13 2009 By Is JAMES WILHELM

James Wilhelm
Directo President And Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Marc Baumann certify that

have reviewed this Form 10-K of Standard Parking Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact

or omit to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances

under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in

this report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and

maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and

15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f
and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to

the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control

over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and

presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and

procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial

reporting that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal
quarter

that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent

evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit

committee of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who

have significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 13 2009 By Is MARC BAUMANN

Marc Baumann
Executive Vice President

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 313

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Daniel Meyer certify that

have reviewed this Form 10-K of Standard Parking Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact

or omit to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances

under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in

this report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and

maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and

15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f
and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to

the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control

over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and

presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and

procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial

reporting that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent

evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit

committee of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who

have significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 13 2009 By Is DANIEL MEYER

Daniel Meyer

Senior Vice President Corporate Controller and

Assistant Treasurer

Principal Accounting Officer



Exhibit 32

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350

as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Form 10-K of Standard Parking Corporation the Company for the year

ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof

the Report each of the undersigned certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Sections 13a or 15d of the Securities

and Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company

/s JAMES WILHELM

Name James Wilhelm
Title Director President And Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Date March 13 2009

Is Muc BAUMANN

Name Marc Baumann
Title Executive Vice President Chief Financial

Officer and Treasurer Principal Financial

Officer

Date March 13 2009

Is DANIEL MEYER

Name Daniel Meyer
Title Senior Vice President Coiporate Controller and

Assistant Treasurer Principal Accounting

Officer

Date March 13 2009

This certification shall not be deemed filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities and

Exchange Act of 1934 or the Exchange Act or otherwise subject to the liability of Section 18 of the

Exchange Act Such certification shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing

under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act except to the extent that the Company

specifically incorporates it by reference
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